Select Board Meeting
Monday, May 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m.

Z00M
Virtual Meetings can be watched on Channel 22 and on Exeter TV's Facebook and YouTube pages.

To participate in public comment, click this link: https://exeternh.zoom.us//83976949643
To participate via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID; 839 7624 9643
Contact Bob Glowacky at rglowacky@exeternh.qov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues.

1. Call Meeting to Order
2. Board Interviews — Conservation Commission, Communications Advisory Committee,
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Comment
4. Proclamations/Recognitions
a. Proclamations/Recognitions — Arbor Day May 21%, 2020
S. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: May 4, 2020

Appointments
7. Discussion/Action Items

a. Involuntary Lot Merger — 65 High Street, Tax Map 71, Lot 106
FY20 Quarterly Financial Report Q1 through March 31st - Finance
FY20 Budget Updates — Town Manager
Gilman Park Dogs Discussion :
COVID 19 Updates — Rec Camp Discussion, AIM Festival Discussion, Brass
Band, Downeaster Update, Reopening Task Force Activities, Stay at Home 2.0
Updates, Outdoor Dining Applications

f. GOFERR Agreement
8. Regular Business

a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions

b. Permits & Approvals

c. Town Manager’s Report

d. Select Board Committee Reports

e. Correspondence
9. Review Board Calendar
10. Non-Public Session
11. Adjournment

o w

Poo o

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair
Select Board

Posted: 5/15/20 Town Office, Town Website

Persons may requést an accommodation for a disabling condition in order to attend this meeting. It
is asked that such requests be made with 72 hours notice.

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE




'OFFICE OF THEVGOVERNOR |

‘CHRIS‘I‘DPHEE T SUNUNU
Gavirnor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
_BY HIS EXCELLENCY
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU, GOVERNOR

E,mergemqmer #16 Pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04

Pursuant to section 18 ofExecuﬁveord'e,r 2920-04; it is hereby ordered, effective immediately, that:

1.

v4'v

In accordance with updated CDC: gu:delmes, the following activities are hereby prohibited within
the State of New Hampshire;

Scheduled gatherings of 10 people or more for social, spiritual and recreational activities,
including but not limited to, community, civic, public, leisure, faith based, or sporting events;
parades; concerts; festivals; conventions; fundraisers; and similar activities. This prohlbltlon does
ot apply to the General Court; day-to-day operations of for profit or not for proﬁt organizations
and State Government, or gathetings for urgent medical purposes such as blood drives or-
‘meetings of medical personnel to discuss efforts to comhat the COVD-19 pandemic.

The Divisiqnnf,?ublic Health shall enforce this Order and if necessary may do so with the
assistance of State or locdl police.

This Order shall remain in effect until Monday, April 6, 2020.

Gwen under my hand. and seal at the Executwe

Vyear of Our Lord, two thousand and twenty, and the
independence of the United States of America, two.
hundred and forty-four.

‘GOVERNOR OF NEW HAMPSHIRE




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU
Governor
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
BY HIS EXCELLENCY

CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU, GOVERNOR
Emergency Order #12 Pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04
Temporary modification of public access to meetings under RSA 91-A
Pursuant to Section 18 of Executive Order 2020-04 it is hereby ordered, effective immediately, that:

1. Pursuanit to Executive Order 2020-04, paragraph 8 provides: “State and local government bodies are
permitted and encouraged to utilize the emergency meeting provisions of RSA 91-A to conduct meetings
through electronic means while preserving, to the extent feasible, the public's right to notice of such
meetings and ability to observe and listen contemporaneously.”

2. Pursuant to Emergency Order #2 issued pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04, gatherings of fifty
people or more are prohibited.

3. To implement these orders and recommendations, the requirement in RSA 91-A:2, IiI(b), that a
quorum of a public body be physically present unless immediate action is imperative, is waived for the
duration of the State of Emergency declared in Executive Order 2020-04.

4. To further implement these orders and recommendations, the requirement in RSA 91-A:2, I1i(c), that
cach part of a meeting of a public body be audible or otherwise discernible to the public “at the location
specified in the meeting notice as the location of the meeting,” is waived for the duration of the State of
Emergency declared in Executive Order. 2020-04 so long as the public body:

a) Provides public access to the meeting by telephone, with additional access possibilities by
video or other electronic means;

b) Provides public notice of the necessary information for accessing the meeting;

¢) Provides a mechanism for thie public to alert the public body during the meeting if there are
problems with access; and

d) Adjourns the meeting if the public is unable to access the meeting.

Given under my hand and seal at the Executive
Chambers in Concord, this 23rd day of March, in.
the year of Our Lord, two thousand and twenty,
and the independence of the United States of
America, two hundred and forty-four.

L]

GOVERNOR OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

107 North Main Street, State House  Rm 208, Concord, New Hampshire: 08801
Telephone (803) 2712121 ¢ FAX (608) 271-7640
Website:: http.llwww.governor.nh.gov/ * Email: governorsununu@nh.gov
TDD Access: Relay NH 1 800-785-2984




Board Interviews



Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Zoning Board of Adjustment Application

2 messages

Anne Surman <annesurman3@gmail.com> Thu, May 7, 2020 at 10:14 AM
To: Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Dear Pam,

| hope that you are doing well during these challenging times!

| have attached an application for the open alternate position on the Zoning Board of Adjustment.
| scanned one page upside down in error! Sorry about that.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Thank you.
Anne

%) ZBA.App.05.07.2020.pdf
92K

Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> Thu, May 7, 2020 at 10:47 AM
To: Anne Surman <annesurman3@gmail.com>

Hi Anne.
Yes, we're well. Thank you. Hope you are too. At least the weather has been looking up.
I'l forward your application to the Board and will be in touch when | receive a response.

Take care and stay safe.
[Quoted text hidden]

Pam McElroy

Town of Exeter

Executive Assistant, Town Manager's Office
603-773-6102

Human Services Administrator
603-773-6116



Town of Exeter

Town Manager’s Office
10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833

Statement of Interest
Boards and Committee Membership

Committee Selection:_Zoning Board of Appeals

New!z| Re-AppoinELnt li;ljlar AItL:Iate

Name: Anne L. Surman Email: annesurman3@gmail.com
Address: 14 Cullen Way, Exeter,NH Phone: 603-770-2402
Registered Voter: Yes |:] No D

Statement of Interest/experience/background/qualification, etc. (resume can be attached).

During the six years that | served as a Selectwoman, zoning and planning issues often were part of larger
discussions that involved decisions by the Select Board, | became very interested in their process and in fact, |
have always had a desire to serve either on the ZBA or the Planning Board. Planning and zoning decisions
are at the core of the future of any town and my experience in working with the town Conservation Committee,
TIF advisory committee, Budget Committee as well, | feel have given me quite a bit of background on some of
the process. | would look forward to being an alternate and to learning what is necessary to help make
decisions for those issues that would come before the Zoning Board of Appeals..

If this is re-appointment to a position, please list all training sessions you have attended relative to your appointed position.

| understand that: 1. this application will be presented to the Exeter Select Board only for the position specified
above and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; 2. The Town Manager and Select Board may
nominate someone who has not filed a similar application; 3. this application will be available for public
inspection.

After submitting this application for appointment to the Town Manager:
*  The application will be reviewed and you will be scheduled for an interview with the Select Board
*  Following the interview the Board will vote on your potential appointment at the next regular meeting
*  If appointed, you will receive a letter from the Town Manager and will be required to complete paperwork with the Town
Clerk prior to the start of your service on the committee or board.

| certify that | am 18 years of age or older:

Signature: Date: May 7, 2020




To be completed by Select Boqrd upon appointment:

Date Appointed: ______________________ Term Ending: - _'_ Full: _____ Alternate: __;__



Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Communication Advisory Committee Application
2 messages

Nina Braun <ninamb@live.com> Tue, Apr 28, 2020 at 12:45 PM
To: Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Hello Pam,

Please find my application attached in reference to the Communication Advisory Committee
as well as my supporting resume.

Thank you!
Kind Regards,
Nina Braun Aldrich

email: ninamb@live.com
cell:781-698-8824

2 attachments

g:;ter_board_committee_application_Communications Advisory.docx

c@ Nina Braun_resume_digitalmkt_2020.pdf
137K

Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> Tue, Apr 28, 2020 at 12:56 PM
To: Nina Braun <ninamb@live.com>

Thank you Nina. I'll forward it to the Select Board.
[Quoted text hidden)

Pam McElroy

Town of Exeter

Executive Assistant, Town Manager’s Office
603-773-6102

Human Services Administrator
603-773-6116



N
Town of Exeter S 4O (;M
Town Manager’s Office o "
10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833
Statement of Interest
Boards and Committee Membership
Committee Selection: Communications Advisory Committee
NewD Re-Appointment D Regular | x Alternate D
Name;: Nina Braun Aldrich Email: ninamb@live.com

Address: 156 Front St Exeter, NH Phone: 781-698-8824

Registered Voter: Yes| X NOI:I

Statement of Interest/experience/background/qualification, etc. (resume can be attached).

My interest in joining the Communications Advisory Committee stems from my interest in applying my 20+ years of experience in corporate

communications and marketing. For the past 10 years my career has had a focus on digital communications, content writing, graphic design and

website work for various industries including philanthropic, food, consumer goods, healthcare and technology. As a current member of the Exeter

Sustainability Advisory Committee we have had an ongoing discussion of how we can improve communication and outreach to the community. |

received a copy of the 2019 External Communications Analysis and realized | should be placing my efforts on improved communication for all

committees and town offices. | have enjoyed my time so far on the Sustainability Committee and appreciate the opportunity to be involved in

contributing to and enhancing all that our great town of Exeter has to offer. | hope to apply my range of communication and technology skills to

improve the processes and opportunities for reaching our community through the execution of a successful communication plan for all.

Please find my resume attached.

If this is re-appointment to a position, please list all training sessions you have attended relative to your appointed position.

| understand that: 1. this application will be presented to the Exeter Select Board only for the position specified above
and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; 2. The Town Manager and Select Board may nominate someone
who has not filed a similar application; 3. this application will be available for public inspection.

After submitting this application for appointment to the Town Manager:
e The application will be reviewed and you will be scheduled for an interview with the Select Board
e Following the interview the Board will vote on your potential appointment at the next regular meeting
e If appointed, you will receive a letter from the Town Manager and will be required to complete paperwork with the Town
Clerk prior to the start of your service on the committee or board.
| certify that | am 18 years of age or older:

Signature: ___ Nina Braun Aldrich Date: __04-28-2020

To be completed by Select Board upon appointment:

Date Appointed: Term Ending: Full: Alternate:




NINA M. BRAUN

Exeter, NH | c. 781-698-8824 | ninamb@live.com
LinkedIn: www.linkedin.com/in/nina-braun-digital-marketer

QUALIFICATIONS

Execute and produce strategic growth initiatives for companies’ marketing presence through management of
inbound/outbound marketing communications and branding tactics. Utilize digital design and writing experience to produce
marketing assets; highly creative, excellent writing and content skills. Technical and design focused individual with an
on-going curiosity of digital marketing discipline.

DIGITAL PLATFORM SPECIALIZATION

WEBSITE | Project Management for new website rollouts and upgrades. Content Management (CMS), Kentico,
Sitecore, Wordpress, MS Sharepoint

MARKETING TECHNOLOGY | Marketing Automation — Hubspot, Marketo, CRM - Salesforce, Microsoft Dynamics,
Google Analytics, Comscore, Google Adwords, Bing, SEO, PPC advertising, email execution and management

DESIGN | Adobe - Photoshop, Indesign, lllustrator, Video, HTML, CSS, Photography. Agency project management.

EXPERIENCE

Marketing Director

Alnoba Hospitality Group Kensington, NH 11 2019 - 03 2020
{Kensington {nvestment Company)

* Managed and strategized all marketing programing for corporate events, social mission and The Farm at
Eastman’s Corner. Maintained budgets and PL’s and worked collaboratively with other members of executive team.

¢ Designed and wrote all digital and print creative collateral utilizing the Adobe suite of design tools. Created social
messaging program and oversaw marketing assistant role to increase engagement and search traffic upwards of
50% within 6 months.

* Executed sales platform Salesforce with marketing platform, Hubspot into sales groups daily strategy for proper
management of incoming leads while constantly increasing lead numbers and assisting in closed sales.

* Integrated web presence into overall marketing strategy, established a cohesive and fresh perspective for all
marketing content through adoption of online technologies including social mediums for business.

Digital Marketing Manager
Security Innovation Wilmington, Ma 02 2018-11 2019

e Manage all elements of multi-channel integrated campaign tactics including email, social, website display ads,
Google adwords, content creation, blog and digital design

¢ Maintain marketing technology stack including marketing automation tool, Hubspot to leverage tactics for
increased lead generation and customer retention. YOY increase in leads by 15%.



Marketing Consultant / Website Development/
Marketing Operations/ Technology Project Management 2008-2018

Lead marketing project manager and content creator; inbound, b2b and b2c marketing tactics, marketing
automation; Hubspot, Salesforce; email execution and distribution; web analytics, analysis; SEQO, PPC; user

experience and design, ABM: Terminus.

Accounts:

Medispend/ MMIS (medispend.com), Portsmouth, NH — manage digital marketing management and execution of
all marketing campaigns for life science, SaaS company. Monitor and respond to data analytics, SEO - current

InHome/Lofts at 129, Exeter, NH — manage all aspects of marketing, print and digital campaign roll-outs and public
relations for condo development and interior design company — current

AARP Financial (aarpfinancial.com), Tewksbury, MA - project managed new site roll-out and web development
Endicott College (Endicott.edu), Beverly, MA - project managed new site role out (Sitecore), focus on UX design

Stone Farm (stonefarmliving.com), Newburyport, MA - established digital marketing program, used Wordpress and
Hubspot for home exterior design company

Eastern Mountain Sports (EMS.com), Peterborough, NH - maintained and edited eCommerce site and copywriting

Lexington Symphony Orchestra (lexingtonsymphony.org), Lexington, MA - developed Wordpress site, design and
integrated email campaigns

VDE Americas Burlington, MA 09 2015 - 03 2017
Global Regulatory Compliance for Technology Manufacturers — [OT
Marketing Manager

» Advisor for all digital marketing operations and stages of the buyer’s journey with direct report to CEO.
Establish strategic digital marketing plan in conjunction with company sales objectives for Americas group of
International company

o Established measurement data points and analysis to establish sales and marketing KPls and ROl metrics.
Optimized web assets through A/B testing and reviews. Efforts resulted in strong lead generation data and sales
response rate, helped reach company goal of $3M in sales for first year

* Wrote, edit and produced all communications related to promotional activities and sales campaigns. Managed
all industry and related press communication. Maintained knowledge in new technologies for enhanced creativity
and productivity

* Deployed rollout of new website and integration with marketing technology stack including CRM, Salesforce.
Company expert in all web based needs including: SEO management, Google data analytics, marketing
automation tool (Hubspot), CMS tool (Kentico, Wordpress) and CRM ( Salesforce). Managed entire online
marketing budget and vendor relationships Garnered 30% YOY increase in sales through online nurturing efforts

Nina M Braun | ¢ -781-698-8824 | e — ninamb@live.com



Digital Bungalow Salem, MA contract: 12 2014 - 09 2015
Digital Solutions Agency - Contractor

Digital Producer and Senior Project Manager - Consumer and B2B clients

Project managed the creation and execution of digital platforms and website roll-outs including SEO management:

 BJs Wholesale Club - digital members magazine, CMS (Drupal) site maintenance and program
development Stocked.bjs.com

» Coverys - Healthcare Co., new .Net website and agent portal (.Net site development, content strategy,
Marketo) Coverys.com

e Eastern Bank - eLearning microsite for new online banking offering {(video production and site
development) Easternbank.com

* Hologic - human resources campaign for website and social mediums (Linkedin, Facebook, Glassdoor)

TUV SUD America Peabody, MA 08 2012 - 11 2014

International Product Service and Safety Certification Body — TUVSUDamerica.com
Marketing Manager

* Administered all aspects of marketing and communications plan based on global company-wide rollout of new
website platform and marketing automation tools for The Americas, Canada and Mexico. Created and managed
audience development, lead gen campaigns for content, SEQO, and adwords that solidified 20% increase in site

engagement.

* Optimized highly targeted lead generating campaigns from concept development and execution through use, design
and integration of email, landing pages, events, global content. Inbound campaigns resulted an increase in
engagement and enhanced opportunities for the sales team. Accomplished qualified lead generation increase of 20%
YOY.

* Maintained all related technology. Wrote and edited all content and reported on content strategy and UX best
practices for the Americas’ digital presence in accordance with international brand guidelines and overall digital
marketing strategy. Reduced expenses for outside vendors by bringing content capabilities in-house.

Stonewall Kitchen York, ME 06 2010 - 08 2012
Specialty Food Manufacturer and Retailer
Marketing Content Developer/Copywriter

* Maintained and strengthened brand recognition for established and successful specialty food manufacturer through
creative copywriting for product labels, website content, company-wide marketing and sales collateral and all social
campaigns, focused on innovate ideas and customer affinity building

* Established a creative and comprehensive brand representation across omnichannels, including eCommerce content,
product labels, retail promotions, catalogs, and advertising and trade publications. Drove creative concepts and online
merchandising strategy and promotions. Online sales conversion rate increased from 2.4% to 8.0%



EDUCATION

George Mason University Fairfax, VA B.A. Communications 1994
Concentration in Journalism, Marketing Communications and Advertising

CONTINUING EDUCATION

New England Institute of Art Boston, Ma
Digital Graphic Design - Adobe CSS: Photoshop, InDesign, Illustrator, Typography

Harvard University - Extension Cambridge, MA
Graduate evening studies in Marketing - New Product Development

On going courses in: Website design: HTML, CSS, Wordpress, Dreamweaver, Photography

VOLUNTEER

Seacoast Big Sisters volunteer; Member of Exeter Toastmasters and VP of PR; Member of Town of Exeter, NH
Sustainability Advisory Board Committee; active volunteer within arts and food community, Seacoast farmers’
market; certified ski instructor — Vail Associates: Breckenridge, CO, Sugarbush, VT

Nina M Braun | ¢ -781-698-8824 | e — ninamb@live.com



Town of Exeter \ 0O

Town Manager’s Office 6 | \
10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833 20 P
)

LO .

Statement of Interest
Boards and Committee Membership

Committee Selection: Conservation Commission

NewD Re-Appointment D Regular D Alternate 8
Name: Kristen Osterwood Email: osterwood@gmail.com
Address: 160 High St Phone: 412-980-3515
Registered Voter: Yes )¢ No[ ]

Statement of Interest/experience/background/qualification, etc. (resume can be attached).

My interest in being part of the Conservation Commission stems from my and my family’s enjoyment and appreciation of the conservation

land and trails that Exeter has to offer. My experience and background are in working to make buildings healthier for people and the environment

through my work the Green Building Alliance (a nonprofit) and now in the newly created Sustainability Analyst position at Unitil. | also serve on the

Exeter Sustainability Advisory Committee and | could help facilitate communication between these two closely connected boards.

If this is re-appointment to a position, please list all training sessions you have attended relative to your appointed position.

| understand that: 1. this application will be presented to the Exeter Select Board only for the position specified above
and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; 2. The Town Manager and Select Board may nominate someone
who has not filed a similar application; 3. this application will be available for public inspection.

After submitting this application for appointment to the Town Manager:
*  The application will be reviewed and you will be scheduled for an interview with the Select Board
*  Following the interview the Board will vote on your potential appointment at the next regular meeting
* If appointed, you will receive a letter from the Town Manager and will be required to complete paperwork with the Town
Clerk prior to the start of your service on the committee or board.

| certify that | am 18 years of age or older:

o= Date:  04/23/2020

Signature:

To be completed by Select Board upon appointment:

Date Appointed: Term Ending: Full: Alternate:




Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Conservation Commission Alternate
2 messages

Osterwood <osterwood@gmail.com> Thu, Apr 23, 2020 at 9:53 AM
To: Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Pam -
Please find my attached application for the alternate position on the Conservation Commission.

Thank you,
Kristen Osterwood

E board_committee_application cc ko.pdf
79K

Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> Thu, Apr 23, 2020 at 10:05 AM
To: Osterwood <osterwcod@gmail.com>

Thank you Kristen. | will forward this to the Select Board.

Have a good day. Stay safe.
[Quoted text hidden}

Pam McElroy

Town of Exeter

Executive Assistant, Town Manager's Office
603-773-6102

Human Services Administrator
603-773-6116



Proclamations and Recognitions



: .- . L
. S
Lt i . | N
N [P .




" Select Board Meeting
Monday May 4th, 2020
Held Remotely via Zoom
Draft Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order ,
Members present: Julie Gilman, Molly Cowan, Lovey Roundtree Oliff, Niko Papakonstantis, and
Russ Dean were present at this meeting. Daryl Browne was absent. The meeting was called to
order by Mr. Papakonstantis at 6:52 PM.

Mr. Papakonstantis said that gatherings of 10 or more people currently pose a risk to our
community. The Select Board meeting is imperative to maintaining the Town of Exeter public
services, so per RSA 91-A:2(3)b, this meeting will be conducted without a quorum of this body
being physically present in one location. He welcomed the members of the public attending
remotely, and said the usual rules of conduct and decorum will apply. All votes will require a roll
call vote.

2. Public Comment

a. Dawn Jelley of 4 Nelson Drive, read a letter written by her and Eric Downer [also
in Correspondence] asking the Board to amend Town Ordinance 910c on Gilman
Park in order to allow dogs in certain areas. Mr. Papakonstantis said they will put
the issue on a future agenda.

b. Joanna Pellerin, Exeter resident and one of the former Trustees of Gilman Park,
said that the issue came up in 1996 and they went to the Select Board at that
time. It was her understanding that dogs could be there on a leash.

3. Board Interviews - Conservation Commission and Communications Advisory Board
a. There were two scheduled interviews, but they did not take place.

4. Proclamations/Recognitions
a. Public Works Week
Ms. Gilman read the Public Works Week proclamation:
Whereas, Public Works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services that
are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health,
high quality of life and well-being of the people of the Town of Exeter, New Hampshire;
and,

Whereas, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without the
dedicated efforts of Public Works professionals, who are engineers, managers and
employees at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for
rebuilding, improving and protecting our nation's transportation, water supply, water
treatment and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities
essential for our citizens; and,



TR

Whereas, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in Exeter
New Hampshire, to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive interest and
understanding of the rmportance of Public Works and Publrc Works programs in the/r
respectlve communities; and ' - . - ‘

Whereas, the year 2020 marks the 60th Annual Natlonal Publlc Works Week sponsored
by the Amencan Publlc Works Assocratlon SR
Be It Now Resolved we, the Select Board of Exeter New Hampshrre do hereby
designate the week of May-17 through 23, 2020 as National Public Works Week; we
urge all citizens to join with representatives of the American Public Works Association
and government agencie's in acknowledging our Public Works professionals, engineers,
managers and employees and to recognize the substantial contnbutlons they make to
protecting our national health, safety, and qualrty of life. '

In Witness Whereof, we have hereunto set our hand and caused the Seal of the Town to
be affixed, done at the Town of Exeter, New Hampshire this fourth day of May, 2020.

b. Bob Hall was recognized as a “Downeaster Ambassador” for his efforts with the
Amtrak passer’_xger train program.

5. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: April 27, 2020
MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve the minutes of April 27, 2020 as presented. Ms.
Cowan seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

6. Appointments
a. As afollow-up to the last meeting, it was determined that Conservation
Commission alternate Don Clement’s term expires next year, not this year.

7. Discussion/Action Items
a. Bid Award - Lagoon Sewer Sludge Removal Project
Jennifer Perry, the Public Works Director, recommended the award of the bid to
Synagro Northeast LLC of Baltimore MD. They were the lowest bidder at $630,053 and
can mobilize quickly to do this work. Ms. Oliff asked what will happen if they are unable
to complete the work due to Covid-19, and Ms. Perry said there is a clause in the
contract that allows the town to move on if they can't meet a certain timeline.
MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve the Wastewater Treatment Facility contract for lagoon
#1 sludge removal to Synagro Northeast LLC of Baltimore Maryland at a low bid price of
$630,053 and to designate Town Manager Russ Dean to sign any and all required documents.
Ms. Oliff seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

b. Public Hearing: RSA 79E Application — Pairpoint Group LLC, 23 Water Street



MOTION: Ms. Oliff moved to open the public hearing. Ms. Gilman seconded. By a roll call vote,
all were in favor (4-0).

Darren Winham described the process related to RSA 79E tax relief. The Select
Board holds a public hearing and decides if one or more public benefits are met by the
project. The Board decides the period of relief and creates a covenant that must run as
long as the tax relief. The covenant is then vetted by legal counsel at the applicant’s
expense. Mr. Dean added that the Board has 45 days from the date of the hearing to
determine the specifics of the covenant.

Ms. Cowan asked for a description of the project. Elliott Berkowitz, the project’s
developer, said this would be a four story building at 23 Water Street with six residential
and two retail units. It's a challenging site, being close to the river and to the surrounding
buildings. The next building over, 11 Water Street (which he happens to own), is 6.8 feet
from the property line, so a new building would also have been 6.8 feet away from the
property line, but he got a variance to build 23 Water Street right up to the property line.
Mr. Papakonstantis asked what portion of this project would be affordable, but the
answer was none.

Ms. Gilman said this project has gone through the Historic District Commission
and they found it appropriate for this area. She added that it will be good for the
community.

Mr. Papakonstantis said the project meets at least one, if not more, of the criteria
for tax relief. The Board was in agreement. Ms. Gilman said that it would encourage
economic vitality in the downtown and increase residential housing in an urban center.

Ms. Cowan asked how long the covenants usually are. Mr. Winham said that with
the Sea Dog project, the initial plan included residential units, and that project got a
covenant for nine years. The Wine Bar got one for seven years. Those are the only
projects that have come under this relief.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to open the hearing on RSA 79 E Tax Relief for 23 Water Street.
to the public. Ms. Cowan seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

Eileen Flockhart of 7 Jacks Court asked about the expected cost for residential
spaces in this building, and Mr. Berkowitz said a minimum of $250,000. Three units will
be one bedroom and three will be two bedroom.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to close the public hearing on RSA 79 E Tax Relief for 23 Water
Street. Ms. Oliff seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor.

Ms. Cowan asked about the timeline for the completion of the project. Mr.
Berkowitz said that from start to finish it would be about 12 months.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve the Community of Exeter Tax Relief Incentive aka RSA
79E for 23 Water Street Ownership Pairpoint Group LLC, with the public benefit #1, it enhances
the economic vitality of the downtown; #3, it promotes the development of municipal centers,



providing for the efficiency, safety and a greater sense of community consistent with RSA 9B;
and #4, it increases residential housing in an urban or town center. [The numbering refers back
to the ordinance.] Ms. Oliff seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

Mr. Papakonstantis said the application was for an 11 year covenant, but he
suggested nine years instead. Mr. Winham said they could apply the four additional
years given to a historic structure, as there was previously a historic building on the site.
Ms. Gilman said this only applies to a structure that exists. If the application is for a
vacant lot, she can’t consider it as a historic structure. She suggested seven years, five
years for the project itself plus two years for promoting residential space.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a Commumty Rewtallzatlon Tax Relief Incentive, RSA
79E, for 23 Water Street and Pairpoint Group LLC for a term of seven years, five years for
qualifying property and two years for adding residential units. Ms. Oliff seconded. By a roll call
vote, all were in favor (4-0).

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to close the public hearing. Ms. Oliff seconded. By a roll call vote,
all were in favor (4-0). '

c. MUND Presentation (Mixed Use Neighborhood District)

Dave Sharples, the Town Planner, discussed a new zoning amendment adopted
at the 2020 Town Meeting. In 2018, the Housing Advisory Committee did a study, and
the Master Plan was updated; both identified the need to create affordable housing in
Exeter. In response, he pursued a municipal assistance grant for $25,000 to allow him to
create an ordinance that would incentivize affordable housing: This is an optional
amendment; property owners wishing to develop their property can either go under
conventional zoning or choose to go under the MUND. It is only applicable in the C1 and
WC [Waterfront Commercial] zoning dlstncts The prOJect has to be mixed use, not just
residential or just commercial.

In normal zoning, there are three limiting factors to density: straight density
requirements (units per acre), parking space requirements; and the height of the
building. Under the MUND, the Density requirement is removed; there are reduced
parking requirements, to 50% of commercial use and only one space per unit regardless
of number of bedrooms. The ordinance gives the Planning Board the ability to reduce
the parking requirement further. It also increases the height from 35 feet and three
stories to 45 feet and four stories, although based on public input on the Lincoln Street
area this will remain at a maximum of 35 feet. The MUND requires that a minimum of
10% of the units are affordable in perpetuity; they are deed-restricted and monitored.
“Affordable” is according to the State definition, which is based on area median incomes.
They will enforce high quality urban design standards, in such areas as site circulation,
building design, stormwater management, etc. Mr. Papakonstantis asked if the 10%
affordable housing requirement persisted through a change in ownership, and Mr.
Sharples said yes.



Eileen Flockhart of 7 Jacks Court said she is excited about the MUND's potential,
especially the potential for landscaping and trees. She asked how the regulations will be
enforced. Mr. Sharples said town staff, not the Planning Board, do site inspections and
make sure that the project meets the requirements of the plan before the building gets a
certificate of occupancy. On monitoring the affordable housing, the Planning Board
designates the NH Housing Finance authority as the monitor. Ms. Flockhart suggested
that if a project didn’'t comply, they should have to pay into a fund that would pay for
more trees. Mr. Sharples said non-compliance in his experience is quite rare.

d. COVID 19 Updates

Darren Winham said he's striving to get the most accurate information out to
local businesses. He’s creating an email update each week along with Tim Roach of
RPC, which is sent out by Bob Glowacky. There was also a survey that went out to
businesses to track Covid 19 effects and concerns on a town and regional level, which
had 100 responses. He's keeping up with ongoing local business projects.

Fire Chief Eric Wilking said the state of NH has been ramping up testing, and it's
up to around 1500 tests per day. Increased testing means increased positive test results.
580 people tested positive last week; there were two new positive tests in Exeter, for a
total of 13 cases. Fire Department was at full staff for one week, but then one member
was called into the MA National Guard for a month.

Governor Sununu unveiled “Stay at Home 2.0,” which continues to ask people to
practice social distancing through the end of May. James Murray is talking with
campgrounds; members who have permanent structures at the campground can return.
Mr. Wilking spoke with hospital officials; starting May 4, the hospital will be allowed to
have certain non-emergency procedures. Businesses will reopen with a 50% allowed
occupant load, so the FD will work with businesses on an appropriate occupant load. On
May 11, salons and barbershops can open, but they can only have 10 occupants at one
time, including the staff. Golf courses are opening May 11. Restaurants are reopening
for outdoor seating May 18th, and they’re going to work with restaurants on setting that
up correctly. It won't be appropriate for all restaurants but will work with them.

Mr. Papakonstantis raised the issue of extending the closure of Swasey Parkway
for another 30 days. He would also like Parks and Rec to give the Board
recommendations regarding summer camp. He would like to discuss Farmer's Market
and its possible temporary relocation.

Greg Bisson said that Parks and Rec has been working with state and local
organizations, including the CDC, on guidelines for summer camps. Opening camp will
be very difficult. He met with Primex and discussed the extensive restrictions, if they will
be able to have camp at all. There must be a maximum of eight kids with two staff
members, with the same group all summer. Games must support social distancing. They
must increase handwashing stations. Parks and Rec put out a survey last week, and
have had 190 responses so far. People want summer camp, but there’s so much that's
unknown. The camp can’t access the schools this summer, which makes things difficult.
They'll offer the best and safest solution they can. Most of their programs only break
even, so any fluctuation in revenue will be a challenge. Already a handful of refunds



have been issued. Some communities are closing their pools. If they don’t have swim
lessons or day passes to the pool, it may be a huge cost to'the town. Playgrounds may
need to be closed, which would also be a challenge. ‘

Ms. Oliff asked about camp staffing levels, and Mr. Bisson said they're-working
on hiring the appropriate number for an 8/2 ratio, but it's challenging to find enough
people. :
Mr. Papakonstantis asked if shortening.the camp was an option. Mr. Bisson said
they could push it back to after July 4th, or condense the days to a shorter session. They
will likely not offer aftercare either way.

Maine will allow 40 or more kids per group in summer campl whlch would make it
more manageable. They're expecting a NH task force recommendation this week. Mr.
Papakonstantis asked about inclement. weather and Mr. Bisson said they'd have to
cancel the camp for the day. ~

Mr. Dean said the Farmer's Market has been desugnated an essential business.
They're trying to determine how to have the market but be conscious of the executive
order and limiting crowds to 10 people. They're trying to find a location that would help
them with social distancing, such as the SST site. Health Officer James Murray said he
believes that they can put on a safe Farmer’'s Market, but the venue is key.

The Board agreed to allow the representative from the Farmer’s Market, a non-
resident, to speak. :

Dorianne Barr said they’re still looking to have the Farmer's Market in Swasey
Park for consistency. If they have vendors on one side, there is a six foot alley for people
to walk or wait their turn. They can have one-way movement path. All food will be
packaged. No reusable bags will be allowed. All prepared food is take-out style and must
be consumed off-site. No samples are allowed. There will only be 17 vendors, comprised
of food vendors, plant vendors, and a soap vendor; no crafts, music, etc. Only one
shopper is allowed in a tent. They're encouraging cash-free payment options.

Mr. Papakonstantis said the Parkway is currently closed to allow people to walk
and exercise, and said that SST flows better as a venue. Ms. Barr said they would have
to completely redesign the market for a change of venue. Ms. Roy said they won't be
able to have the SST site through the end of the Farmeér's Market, as school is starting.
Mr. Dean said he would have to discuss the timeline of the venue with the
Superintendent.

Ms. Cowan said she’s very concerned about the safety of bringing more people
downtown. Ms. Barr listed the many safety precautions they will be taking, including
limiting the number of vendors, obtaining a supply of masks, allowing only one person
into a tent at a time, and having a designated time to shop for high-risk people. Ms. Oliff
asked about having people pre-order for pickup. She would like to find a balance
between safety and serving residents. Mr. Papakonstantis asked how they will enforce
having only one customer in a tent at a time. Ms. Barr said there will be a person at the
entrance to explain the rules and volunteers will be walking through the market to ensure
guidelines are being followed. The packages of produce and food are already bundled,
so people are not taking time to hunt for and choose produce.



The Board was in agreement that they wanted to extend the thirty day closure of
Swasey Parkway to vehicle traffic. ,

Mr. Papakonstantis said he's concerned about walkers and exercisers along with
the shoppers at the market. Ms. Oliff said they should designate Thursday as Farmer’s
Market day and make it closed off to the public. Ms. Cowan said these regulations add
another layer of people required to set up and enforce them. She wants to encourage
shopping from local farmers, but it needs to be transactional, not social. She’s not
comfortable with these things happening in the same spot. If the numbers in NH change,
she can see the market moving back to Swasey Parkway. Mr. Papakonstantis asked
about the timeline, and Ms. Barr said they'd like to start this Thursday.

MOTION: Ms. Oliff moved to extend the closure of Swasey Parkway to vehicular traffic for an
additional 30 days. Ms. Gilman seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

MOTION: Ms. Oliff moved to relocate the Farmer's Market to SST. Ms. Cowan seconded. By a
roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

8. Regular Business
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions
MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a Jeopardy Tax for 55/34 in the amount of $326. Ms.
Oliff seconded. By a roll call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

b. Permits & Approvals

There were no permits or approvals at this meeting.

c. Town Manager’s Report

The Board and Committees are getting back online and up to speed on
Zoom protocols.

They're working on the Bond Bank application for the Library and
Groundwater Assessment projects.

The Planning Office received an application for a new solar farm on
Powder Mill Road.

The EPA permit comments are taking a lot of time. He’s coordinating with
member towns.

The paving program is continuing, Powder Mill Road and the Park Street
area have been paved.

elect Board Committee Reports

Ms. Cowan met with the Parks and Rec Advisory Board, where they
brainstormed best practices for summer camp.
Ms. Oliff had no meetings.

" Ms. Gilman said there’s an HDC meeting on May 21st where they’ll be

talking about the loka.
Mr. Papakonstantis has a Sustainability Committee meeting tomorrow
night.



e. Correspondence
i. A letter from Robin Tyner resigning from the Sustainability Committee.

Mr. Papakonstantis said that Robyn Tyner was named as an alternate to
the Planning Board, and there’s a rule about only serving on two .
committees at once. She will stay with the Energy Committee and
Planning Board.:

MOTION: Ms. Cowan moved to accept Robln Tyner’s. res:gnatlon Ms. Oliff seconded. By a roll

call vote, all were in favor (4-0).

9. Review Board Calendar :
a. The next meetlngs are May 18 and June 1

10. Non-Public Session
a. There was no non-public session at this meeting.

11. Adjournment
MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to adjourn. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor (4-0) and the
meeting adjourned at 10:03 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Joanna Bartell
Recording Secretary



Board and Committee Appointments



Board and Committee Appointments
May 18, 2020

Conservation Commission
Trevor Mattera

Motion: Move the Select Board appoint Trevor Mattera to an full position on the Conservation
Commission with a term to expire April 30, 2023. (NOTE: This appointment will vacate Trevor’s
alternate member position which has a term date of 4/30/21).



Restoration of Involuntary Merged Lots — Map 71, Lot 106



TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

10 FRONT STREET « EXETER, NH + 03833-3792 = (603) 778-0591 *FAX 772-4709
www.exeternh.gov

LEGAL NOTICE
for
“RESTORATION OF INVOLUNTARILY MERGED LOTS”

(pursuant to RSA 674:39-aa)

The Exeter Select Board will be considering an application for the “Restoration of Involuntarily Merged
Lots” for the property listed below at their next meeting on Monday, May 18, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. virtually
via ZOOM (see connection information below™®).

Property of Helen P. Crowe, Trustee
Helen P. Crowe Revocable Living Trust
65 High Street
Exeter, N.H.

Tax Map Parcel #71-106

EXETER SELECTBOARD
Niko Papakonstantis, Chairman

Posted 05/08/20: Exeter Town Hall Kiosk and Town of Exeter website

*Z00M MEETING INFORMATION:

o Virtual Meetings can be watched on Channel 22 and on Exeter TV's Facebook and YouTube
pages.

o To participate in public comment, click this link: htips.//exeternh.zoom.us/j/83976949643

e To participate via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 839 7694 9643

Contact Bob Glowacky at rglowacky@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues.




BUILDING DEPARTMENT

Douglas Eastman, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

DATE: April 29, 2020

MEMO TO:  Russ Dean, Town Manager
Board of Selectmen

CcC: Sharon Cuddy Somers, Esquire
Helen P. Crowe, Trustee — property owner

FROM: Douglas Eastman, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer
RE: Application for “Restoration of Involuntarily Merged Lot”

Our office has received a “Restoration of Involuntarily Merged Lot” application for the property located
at 65 High Street, currently owned by Helen P. Crowe, Trustee of the Helen P. Crowe Revocable Living
Trust.

Please be advised that | have reviewed the request to restore Lot #8 fronting on Gardner Street, and as
depicted on the plan entitled “A Plat of Land for Bonnie D. Griswold, dated August 1980, and recorded as
R.C.R.D. Plan #C-9826 which was included in the application. | concur with the evidence submitted by
Attorney Somers on behalf of her client and recommend restoring the said lot to its pre-merger status.

Once an agenda date has been determined for the required public hearing before the Select Board,
abutter notification and posting of the legal notice, including publication in the newspaper, will be
prepared by our office.

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact my office.

]
{ s



ROBERT D. CIANDELLA
LIZABETH M. MACDONALD
JOHN J. RATIGAN

DENISE A. POULOS
ROBERT M. DEROSIER
CHRISTOPHER L. BOLDT

SHARON CUDDY SOMERS
= La’ WYers DOUGLAS M. MANSFIELD
N s 7 KATHERINE B, MILLER
JM@ %’7’@ CHRISTOPHER T. HILSON
HEIDI J. BARRETT-KITCHEN
CELEBRATING OVER 30 YEARS OF SERVICE TO OUR CLIENTS JUSTIN L. PASAY

ERIC A. MAHER

BRENDAN A, O'DONNELL
Please respond to the Exeter Office ELAINA L. HOEPPNER

RETIRED
MICHAEL J. DONAHUE

April 24, 2020 CHARLES F. TUCKER
NICHOLAS R. AESCHLIMAN

Niko Papakonstantis, Chairman

Board of Selectmen

Town of Exeter

10 Front Street

Exeter NH 03833

Re: Helen P. Crowe Revocable Living Trust / 65 High Street, Exeter, New Hampshire
Dear Chairman Papakonstantis and Members of the Board:

Enclosed please find an application to restore an involuntarily merged lot pursuant to
RSA 674:39-aa, together with supporting documents. Following your review of the documents
and after taking all necessary steps pursuant to the statute, we request that you restore the lots to
pre-merger status for tax assessment and regulatory purposes.

The property in question sits on the corner of High Street and Gardner Street and is
owned by Helen P. Crowe, Trustee of the Helen P. Crowe Revocable Living Trust. The property
is depicted on two recorded plans. The first plan recorded as Plan 0081 is from 1888 and depicts
two lots; Lot 9 which fronts on High Street, and Lot 8 which fronts on Gardner Street. A
perimeter plan was also prepared in 1980 on behalf of Bonnie D. Griswold and recorded as Plan
C-9826. This second plan, which is not a subdivision plan, was approved by the Exeter Planning
Board. Our research did now show any evidence of a voluntary lot merger of these two lots nor
any transfers of any lot or portion of any lot. All deeds in the chain of title have consistently
referenced two lots as making up premises being conveyed. The property contains on what is
shown on recorded plans as Lot 9 a very large single-family home. Town assessment records
depict the location of the structure which is contained entirely within Lot 9. Additionally, Town
records show that a driveway was installed in 1989 to service Lot 8 situated on Gardner Street,
however this driveway does not service Lot 9. The access to Lot 9 is provided via a driveway
on Gardner Street which then goes into a garage under the house.

The tax records currently depict the property as being one lot with one building and
containing 0.46 acres. However, older tax cards, notably the 1977 tax card (a copy of which is

DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC
16 Acadia Lane, P.O. Box 630, Exeter, NH 03833
111 Maplewood Avenue, Suite D, Portsmouth, NH 03801
Towle House, Unit 2, 164 NH Route 25, Meredith, NH 03253
1-800-566-0506 83 Clinton Street, Concord, NH 03301 www.dtclawyers.com



Niko Papakonstantis, Chairman
April 24, 2020
Page 2

enclosed) contains references in the “remarks” section to the above referenced 1980 plan which
shows Lot 8 fronting on Gardner Street as containing 10,020 sq. ft. The remarks then go on to
reference that Lot 9 fronting on High Street contains 10,472 sq. ft., with a total of 20,130 sq. ft.
This suggests that the two lots were involuntarily merged on tax records.

Under New Hampshire law, a voluntary merger can only occur if a property owner
requests one or if the owner takes some overt action to indicate that the owner no longer regards
the two lots as being separate. The mere fact that the two lots were taxed as one does not in and
of itself create a voluntary merger. Roberts v. Town of Windham, 165 N.H. 186 (2013). Here,
the property was historically shown on recorded plans as comprising two lots. Each lot has a
separate driveway and the house on Lot 9 is contained entirely within that lot and can function
with complete independence of Lot 8. Further, the creation of a driveway in 1989 to service just
Lot 8 indicates that the then owner considered the two lots as being independent of each other.

Based on the evidence referenced above and based on the supporting documentation, we
request that the Board of Selectmen schedule a public hearing on this matter within the required
time frame and act to restore the lots to pre-merger status.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,
DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC

e
kc/ikvu &E'FC S

Sharon Cuddy Somers
ssomers(@dtclawyers.com

SCS/jh
cc: Helen P. Crowe, Trustee

SACN-CR\Crowe, Helen\Application Pkg\2020 04 17 BOS Ltr.Application.docx



Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
V- Exeter, NH 03833
s> 603-778-0591 Fax: 603-772-4709

Application for Restoration of Involuntarily Merged Lots
Pursuant to RSA 674:39-aa

Property Location/Address: 65 High Street

Existing Tax map Number (Map-Block-Lot): Map 71, Lot 106

Property Owner(s): Helen P. Crowe, Trustee, Helen P. Crowe Revocable Living Trust
Phone: 603-418-4529

Property Owner Mailing Address: 65 High Street, Exeter, NH 03833

Property Owner Email: hpcrowe@comcast.net

Agent (If different from Property Owner): Sharon Cuddy Somers, Esqg. Donahue, Tucker & Ciandella
Agent Phone: 603-778-0686  Agent Email: ssomers@dtclawyers.com
Agent Mailing Address: PO Box 630, Exeter, NH 03833

Instructions & general information for submitting Application:

In accordance with NH RSA 674:39-aa, any owner of lots merged by municipal action for zoning,
assessing or taxation purposes prior to September 18, 2010 and without the consent of the owner may
request that the lots be restored to their pre-merger status and all zoning and tax maps shall be updated
to identify the pre-merger boundaries of said lots or parcels as recorded at the Rockingham County
Registry of Deeds, provided:

a. The request is submitted to the Exeter Board of Selectmen prior to December 31, 2016.

b. No owner in the chain of title voluntarily merged his or her lots. If any owner in the chain of
title voluntarily merged his or her lots, then all subsequent owners shall be stopped from
requesting restoration. The municipality shall have the burden of proof to show that any
previous owner voluntarily merged his or her lots.

c. All decisions of the Board of Selectmen may be appealed in accordance with the provisions of
RSA 676.

d. The restoration of the lots to their pre-merger status shall not be deemed to cure any non-
conformity with existing local land use ordinances.

The following fees shall be submitted with the application:

Application Fee: $50.00
Abutter Notices: $ 10.00 per abutter
Newspaper Notice: $25.00

pagel 1 Updated: June 10, 2014




The procedure for requesting the Restoration of Involuntarily Merged Lots is as follows:

1.

Complete the Application for Restoration of Involuntarily Merged Lots per RSA 674:39-aa.

2. Attach copies of the following documents:

10.

1.

a. Most current deed(s) for the lots.

b. If property was obtained from an estate (inherited), attach copy of the statutory “Notice to
Cities and Towns”.

c. Copies of any recorded plans or surveys which may depict the “pre-merger” configuration of
any lots.

d. Unless such information already exists in the town records, if any part of the existing
mapl/lot is improved by a structure, the Applicant must provide a signed & stamped as-built
survey which reflects (at a minimum) the following features:

0] The location of all structures, including buildings, pools, fences, etc.
(i) The location of all driveways, walkways and associated features.
(iii) The location of all water supply wells.
(iv) The approximate location of all septic tanks, leach beds or cesspools.
v) The superimposed lines of the pre-merger lot lines as requested by the Applicant.
e. Alist of the names and addresses of abutting lot owners in similar manner as required under
RSA 676.

f.  Any other documentation deemed relevant.

The Selectmen’s office shall forward copies of the relevant materials to the Town Assessor and

Planning Department within three (3) days of application receipt for their review and comment.

The Assessor and Planning Department shall forward any comments to the Town Manager within
five (5) days of receipt of the materials.

The Board of Selectmen shall schedule consideration of the Application at a Public Hearing during a
regularly scheduled meeting within thirty (30) days of submittal. The Town shall send notice of the
Application and the scheduled meeting date to the Applicant and abutting property owners at least
seven (7) days before the scheduled meeting.

At the scheduled meeting, the Selectmen will consider the Application, including recommendation of
Town staff, input from abutters and the Applicant(s).

If upon review by the Board of Selectmen, the Board determines that additional information is
required; up to an additional ten (10) days will be provided to produce the additional information.
Within forty-five (45) days from the date of submission, the Board of Selectmen shall render a
decision on the Application at a meeting of the Board of Selectmen.

Within five (5) business days from the date of the Board of Selectmen’s final decision, a copy of the
written Notice of Decision shall be sent via regular mail to the Applicant(s) and shall be posted in
both the Assessor’s and Selectmen's Offices.

The Notice of Decision shall state that any aggrieved party has the right to appeal the decision of the
Board of Selectmen pursuant to RSA 676.

If the Application has been granted (in whole or in part), the appropriate changes will be noted on the
Tax Maps and Assessor records. The Planning Department will be notified and provided with a copy
of the plans approved by the Board of Selectmen and shall make appropriate notations as to the
existence of the new lots in its files. The Notice of Decision will be recorded at the Registry of Deeds.

Pagej2



TOWN OF EXETER, N.H.

APPLICATION FOR RESTORATION OF INVOLUNTARILY MERGED LOTS
PURSUANT TO RSA 674:39-aa

The undersigned applicant requests that the Town of Exeter, New Hampshire, hereby
restore the following parcels of land to their pre-merger status for the purposes of being assessed
and treated for regulatory purposes as separate tracts or parcels of land:

Please identify, with reference to an attached recorded plan or survey which the Applicant believes
may depict the “premerger” configuration of any lot, and to have existed prior to any “Involuntary
Merger" (See. RSA 674:39-aa (1)), which the Applicants) wishes to restore to separate assessment.

Recorded Plan Name & Identified as: Untitled plan dated February 14, 1888 and recorded as Plan
#0081 and plan entitled “Plat of Land for Bonnie D. Griswold in Exeter, NH" prepared by Parker

Survey Assoc., Inc. dated Aug. 1980 and recorded as Plan #C-9826.
Acknowledgment: By submitting this application, the Applicant(s) acknowledges they wish to
have an existing parcel on the Exeter Tax Map divided into two (2) or more previously existing
parcels. Such action will be effective for tax purposes following approval of this Application. Such
action may result in increased tax assessed value or supplemental tax liability for the current tax
year. In addition, the Applicant(s) understands that the separate lots may not conform to existing
zoning requirements, and that if any subsequent request for zoning variance is made by the
Applicant or a subsequent owner, the fact that the parcel was previously part of other premises may
affect one (1) or more factors which are considered when considering a variance (e.g., substantial
justice).

If granted by the Town, the Notice of Decision and plan will be recorded at the Rockingham
County Registry of Deeds.

Dated this day of 1'1/ 23 , 2020.

HELEN P. CROWE REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST

Helen P. Crowe, Trustee

STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE
ROCKINGHAM, SS.

Then personally appeared the above named owners and acknowledged the forgoing to be

her free act and deed, before me,
X wy Q% Notary Pubiicldumg
i3 COMMI'SSI e

; on Y2 o ] 3
{ AUGLDIRES  1BE My commission expires: /\(\E]I,M /Zf ‘0z )
iz

Wity

S,

Pagel|3

\“\ullllllf

X\
M’fl,r, i

X
sy
o0
-
]
)

<
&
7



Staff Use Only

Received by: Date:

Fees Collected: Date of BOS Meeting

Disposition of the Application (For use by Selectmen/Assessor)

Existing Parcel ldentification

Map-Block-Lot Street Address of Parcel
New Parcel Identification
Map-Block-Lot Street Address of Parcel
Map-Block-Lot Street Address of Parcel
Map-Block-Lot Street Address of Parcel
Map-Block-Lot Street Address of Parcel

Map-Block-Lot Street Address of Parcel



Exhibit 2d

Town of Exeter Application for Building Permit and Town of Exeter Driveway Permit



Town of Exeter, New Hampshire
Permit No.  03-102 BUILDING PERMIT

Property Owner: HELEN CROWE AND TOM MCGOVERN
Permanent Address: 65 HIGH STREET

EXETER, NH 03833
Building Address: 65 HIGH STREET

EXETER, NH 03833

Tocnect,remodel.orreconsu'nctabuildinginthcTownofoemroncondiﬁonﬂxatheoraheshallcomplywiﬂlﬂwZoning
Ordinance passed by the Town of Exeter as amended, and all applicable codes as adopted by the Town of Exeter.

This building is located in Zone(s) R-2 Tax Map Pareel # 71-106
Name of Contractor: UPRIGHT FENCE CO.

Address: 3601 LAFAYETTE ROAD, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 Telephone; 422-8797
Date Issued: 5/7/ 03 Expiration Date: 5/7/ 04
Type of Construction FENCE

Use of Buflding: RESIDENCE-SINGLE FAMILY
Description of Work: REPLACE EXISTING FENCE. ADD NEW FENCE ALONG PORTION OF PROPERTY.

I hereby certify, under the penaltics or perjury, that the estimated cost of construction, alteration or remodeling (including labor and
materials) is $5,473.00

__o:m@:‘ 0, M&@B)
N
Permittee Building Inspector

Fee Collected: 337.36

INSPECTIONS
Remarks Date Inspector

‘-B—uilding 1st

2nd
Plumbing 1st

2nd
Electrical 1st i /) .
__ 2nd N\ ( /
P Ce A AT Aebng
Certificate of Occupancy Issued: Number O~ Date: Issued: )

THIS PERMIT EXPIRES ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF ISSUE
Notes:




VWA OF EXELER - APPLICATION FOR BUILDING PERMIT..
mﬂ%ﬁﬂmmm mum FOR: ﬁjbélﬁ'& DATE rssumdz‘la_z m@é gﬁgc ﬁTj

-+ APPLICATION FEE: “$10.00 . " pERMIT FEE: 's5.00/51,000. 05 ESTIMATED COST OF MATERIALS AMD LABGR

PROPERTY GMIER'S NAE:. 4. _
PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS: {5

: c c . ‘ '.T'EL.# 22- ?79/ :

) a. (4] &3 :
B'UILDIMQWESS_ (Location of job site): é.5- .' )43L. S+ ‘

o Q2 sumvsion - wowe i g Q06 (D)0 )

IS THIS FROPERTY LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLODD HAZARD AREAY  (to be ‘determinad by Tocation on Flood Insurance Maps) ** -YEs
If so, msfrucblqn nust comply with Article 9.40 of the Exetm-bnjns Ordinance, PR ,

' et R T4 4228057 i

CITY/STATE: Pacism' ‘;;:E‘%, .NH 5.3 soj

TVPE OF. CONSTRUCTION: | (Cirele: descripion) (RESTOBNTIAL) CMMRCIL  IOUSRIAL % - N3y . REHODEL ADDITION  RENUAT

RLANS AND/OR SPECIFICATIONS AVATLABLE: YES X_NO'__ (Attach plans it required by Bullding Inspector. * Attach.plot pPlan, inclugis
811 required setback distances, for al) construction citside the existing footprint ‘of the structure. ).

SRIEF DESCIPTION OF WORX T BE DOKE (Flease capplete reverse side of jor far any NV, construction.):

= R’:ﬂ.l‘b’- “'Sﬁ-s_*"“c). -C«u-; Add new —Q—\g_ aleay Pw-}?ao ‘0! .

APpryzs. , .
. . \\\“) '/‘-:J
\\ o
1 hereby sgree to comply will the Zoning Ordinance adopted by the Town of Exeter as emended and to camply with the 8.0.CAA.. .
Building Code as dﬁnp‘ted‘by,ﬂ:g Town of Exeter. . : ..

1 sgree to give the Buflding Inspector THENTY-FOUR (24 HOURS WOTICE before any: rough wiring, r Tmbing or chimey-fs covered
with' wall saterfal, aiso to notify fnspecter on campletion of job. . L. eahp n’ v :

* .

Does the sbove estimated cost include electrical and/or plubing costs? vYes = ° @L (Please specify betow.)
Electrical Cost;'s N/A ' : “Plubing Cost: s - N / A
. ’ . . .

If electrical work 1nvolves the replacenent or installation-of a new meter, » 'PBMIT/TD ENERGIZE*
office prior to the utility company turning on the power. )

PLEASE NOTE: ELECTRICAL AD PLIMBING CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO OBTAIN THEIR OUN PERMITS

o apvereby certity, under penplties of periury. that the estimsted FOSt of construction. alterstion. or ramdeling (including abor
ond materiais) is § Ly Y23, - . . B . L

will also be required from this

EVEN IF THE COST OF THEIR WORK 1S INCLUDED
IN THIS PERAIT. SUCH A PERMIT WILL owy REQUIRE PAYMENT OF THE APPLICATION FEE..
DATE: 5/‘/ A{/o.s SIGNED: J : '

If other then property omer, plesse state such relatienship:




e thelen Crowe
raaee {05 ﬂmhﬁl*

Date deposit recd.

gide in

Dog Proof




The Residentiat Speclaiists

3601 Lafayette Road - Portsmouth, NH 03801

May 2, 2003

Helen Crows
65 High Street
Exater, NH 03833

Dear Helsn,

Thank you for the cpportunity to prepare this proposal for you. The following i3 an estimate for the fence work we discussed.
To supply materials and install:

-5 sactions of 8'H Solid Board fence-848

using 1" x 4* $4S board, 5" x 5” posts, 2" x 4" melded back ralis, post caps, section cap, drillsd and doweled construction
-1 sections of 6’H to 6°H transition Solld Board fonce-848

<18 sactions of 8'H Solld Board fance-548

using 1° x 4" 84S board, 5" x §" posts, 2" x 4" molded back rails, post caps, secticn cap, drilled and doweled construction
-1 section of T’H Sofid Board fence-848

using 1" x 4" S4S board, 5" x 5" posts, 2" x 4" molded back rails, post caps, section cap, drilled and doweled construction

$4,848.00
-2 sections of 6'H to 4°H Solid Board transition fence-848 '
using 1" x 4" 84S board, 5” x 5" posts, 2* x 4° molded back ralle, post caps, section cap, drilled and doweled construction

$400.00
-Freo standing 4'W x 6’H Tretlis with window pane lattice set on 5° x 6" posts
$225.00
/'——.‘-..-“ sy —
“Where applicable, take down and removal of thé-existing fence Is Included in this proposal, # oy » ‘f 7373

1524, 33
-Only #1 grade cedar products are used in the fabrication of all of the fonces bulit and installed by Upright Fence Company, Inc. We also use

only ogylld cedar posting and aluminum nalls for fabrication of our cedar fences. This combined with profassional Installation guarantess you
a quality product.

-Our cortificate of insurance can be provided upon request. This proposal is valid for 80 days from quote date.

-t ls the property owner's responsibility to be aware of the town stipulations In terms of fence location and positioning. Upright Fence
Company, {nc., holds no responsibility for the ownor's decislon when it Is not in compliance with town stipulations. Any changes that need to
be made In accordance with town laws after the installation of tha Yence will be the owners responsibifity.

Our fencas can be crowned or scalioped at no addltienal charge. The majority of our cedar fencing s a drilled and doweled construction. Our goal Is to
provide a quality fence, expertly installed by the owners of the company that will provide years of service and Satisfaction. We do not use sub-
contractors to install our fencing: therefore we maintain a tight quality control over conatruction and Installation of your fance, We offer a three-year
wamrantee on materlals and instailation with the exception of any single gate lesf pane! over 48" wide.

We are currently working on a four to five weak lsad-time for fabrication and installation of our fencing. PVC, aluminum, granits, and stained products
Instatiation time frames will vary depending on the delivery time quoted by the Individual vendors. Our lead time Is determined by many factors; supply
end dellvery of wood, time of year (spring and autumn are our peaks), digging and Installation conditions and, of course, the weather.

Torms: a deposit of 1/3 Is required at the time you piace your order, 1/3 additional deposit when the crow arrives to start the work and the
balance due at the time of completion of your fance preject. Shoutd you choose to use Upright Fence Company, Inc. for your proposed fence work,
please retum an initialed copy of the customer job layout (green sheat) along with a check for 1/3 of the total for the work to be completed to: 3801
Lafayette Road, Portsmouth, NH 03801. It is important to noto that a deposit is required before we can place your order on the list for fabrication and
instaliation, Please feel free to call the office if you have any questions with regards to the proposed estimate of work.

We look forward to being-of service to you in the future, And remember...

if it’s not up right, it isn't UPRIGHT!
Comaprts

5

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Phone: 803.422.8787 Fax: 603.431.4436 Emall: sales & uprightience.com www.uprightfence.com



i MK

No. 4‘57

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
10 FRONT STREET
EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03833
1-803-778-0594 EXT. 112

Town of Exeter
Driveway Permit

ate _gléw/ é,/9849 rine 235 PN)

Name of Applicant - L//y)/v\ L3 \(\/‘ G/?/S WolpD '
Address éJ A/GH ST Phone 772’525’?
Desired Starting Time A PRI B /7

Location of Proposed Driveway OF FROM G ARDNER S7”

Location of Proposed Driveway

Upon approval of this permit I agree to build a driveway/road entering

upon a public right-of-way in accordance with the regulations and
specifications set forth by the Town of Exeter. It is the gole responsibility
of the applicant to correct any problems and/or conditions created

by the construction. Highway Supervisor to be notified upon completion
of construction for' final i

Spection.
Applicant Signature M&Mbate Wé /é&?
7 ’

High ST

7 .e 1

00 s Selectman
;@6&” C:a%a/@% ©
Notes/Conditions -

Not valid Unless Signed



Exhibit,Ze

Abutter List .




HELEN P. CROWE, TRUSTEE
HELEN P. CROWE REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST
65 HIGH STREET, TAX MAP 71, LOT 106
ABUTTER LIST

- OWNER/APPLICANT:

71/106 Helen P. Crowe, Trustee
Helen P. Crowe Revocable
Living Trust
65 High Street

ABUTTERS:

71/38 Grace & Roger Smyth
66 High Street
Exeter, NH 03833

71/105 David & Catherine Hudson
7 Gardner Street
Exeter, NH 03833

71/101 Todd Bookman & Shania Gates
8 Gardner Street
Exeter, NH 03833

71/107 Carl & Elizabeth Stevens
c/o PEA
20 Main Street #2369
Exeter, NH 03833

71/100 Kevin Baum & Alyson Eberhardt
69 High Street
Exeter, NH 03833

71/37 Mark Harrison & Ann Marie Bailey
60 High Street
Exeter, NH 03833

71/110 Clarence & Kimberly Cross
8 Marlboro Street
Exeter, NH 03833

ATTORNEY: Sharon Cuddy Somers, Esq.
Donahue, Tucker & Ciandella
PO Box 630
Exeter, NH 03833

S:\CN~-CR\Crowe, Helen\2020 04 06 abutter list.docx



Exhibit 2f

Town of Exeter Tax Card dated November 18, 1977



OWN OF EXETER

PROPERTY ASSESSMENT RECORD

NEW HAMPSHIRE

MAP NO. BLOCK NO. | PARCEL NO. | PROPERTY LOCATION CARD of CARDS SUMMARY
e b oty
a9-10 23 008 I&B 65 High St - m-?‘ Yoo
7r| N0 1\ Eon
RECORD OF TRANSFER . DATE PG |STAMPS PHOTO o | Bwes. —1-9.;,00
Griswold, Bonnie D, i 7-1-72 2151 | 498 |none TotaL 5. )00
2688 418 I'i’l‘lﬂ-ﬂ. m l Sh‘ﬁﬁa
Griswold, James W. 6-23-87 0.00 BLDGS. )0 ‘o0
TOAL_ S(. 366
e /860
~ _BDGS. o g
TOTAL V') doos
" LAND 1Y oo
BIDGS. G ow
TOTAL // 4 208
LAND Gloo
BLDGS. yhoo
TotAL |+ 10
LAND 19 06
R mncs. 945 boo
TotTAL W\ 6 Lg0
2 L S YT .
"INTERIOR INSPECTED: ' ~— [ . -7 T et v wa et o BLDGS. /(¢4
x ]t—-’“r..:,-‘ rs Lc’*—c1 Low wourai’ TOTAL | j&i " a9
DNE: =827 LAND
ACREAGE COMPUTATIONS e
LAND TYPE # OF ACRES PRICE TOTAL DEPR, ASSMT TOTAL
oo B4% | el yACoo—| 760 - _|tBoo LAND
RONTAGE G4 slo * THted Vo oo BLDGS.
FONTAGE A )aees e Lilae? : TOTAL
EAR REMARKS: (% 30 ~ 1, Catdne LAND
ONE O -0 IWhSes .l aaen-Toeld, Jysee | @] mwes.
o e Ce—————ytebe— TOTAL
a LAND
- @ | BoGs.
e e pr————" e
.0 130 I s taND
oraLacees  J-l) () ] Y -5] @ | mpcs.
LOT COMPUTATIONS LAND FACTORS TOTAL
FRONT DEPTH STREET PRICE | DEPTH % | FROWT FT. PRICE TOTAL DEPR. VALUE __'_r.:L ASSESSMENT HHLY NO CITY SEWER LAND
== ) ROUGH NO CITY WATER o | soGs.
oL 5 HIGH GRAVEL RD. TOTAL
LOW DIRT RD. i VI.AID -
SWAMPY NO RD. 2 | mocs.
TOTAL




€ et e b b Y ‘”nUO. - rie Anee 4 ew A ONSbe ® W s NI NN — LAND COSY
o, Wiks fin, Dunt. Anse Dt Ruors . Bere A8 ] soe. cost
o, 0. Bale Bamt Rec. Bacen St SoewBay | +] e (£ YL PurcH.DATEZZ S T T T Tttt
cac. Slah Bomt. Guage _ Ve 3t Shewor Bat. Walls T PURCH: PRICE. . . . . ., e .
wiek Walls Attiz F. & Staies 7 1 Toltet Roem 1] vV Jaoat T RENT -
fons Walls 7 | Fin. Attic Tue Fixt. Batt o i T « .. ¢ e e e e e . @
s INTERIOR FINISH_| tsstery Exin floers zaéy : o
I~ 1]2]3] am L7 =Ent] = 1032 S Rt~ RPN P e e
% % Plaxter /17 | /] mtsrcse. xtna e §LO .. / 3L o
EXTERIOR WALLS |ttty Five Watar Only | Oormer ) 5 Guerenms S T
seble Siliog 7 | rwood e Plambiag Bxxtt Ao, . L I 4 22
Ingle Sidlng Plastorbemd st Ae. e - - / r 70
m “UNG ‘“ e e _ L4 - . . . A . - - -
. B sjrlrfemn Mot 2:20 . A ; B, ol
e Bk On a2 Layent 7 Bath . & Walsa. | Ao ne uent o B /‘7/. @9 20 L1 @ 224
Vemoor int. Coad. > Bath Fl. & Walls o m gsio . . - % . - - . - . .
. Brk. On HEATING Vailot Km. FL. mtic | Q380 . N I T '.__'.2_? .
41 Com. Brk. Het Ny | ram ]| 986
nyl/Alums. Sen +” | Tollet Rm. Fi. & Walk - . . . L T O
oll tas, 1/D | Hot water St Shower K4 ; KO NS @ o
of tas. 7 | N Cond. Tab Acse {7 = § , . N SR P R TR
Floor Fora. 8 J 1% ® v @
ROOFING COMPUTATIONS 5, 60 T AR g e et o -
. Shingle /| Fistloes Furn. 530 sF S8, ... f-q. P4 . . e e .
wod Shingle Mohmt 3., | .o &F | Q.0 259 ?‘"’ Zipd defS-
. Siingle 0id Burner Olv 1Sy, &F | 4Sa\d AXN o Tageyt v -
o o] Bk MU SR YT | b
. [ JoW ik | Aeel Ueb3 OUTBUILDINGS .
*noop':zps Etctric R RS " log — 1[2[3[a]s[e[7]a]s]a 1[2][s]4]5]e[ 7|8} e]1s] MEASURED
» [ FIREPLACES ISA SR | 4510 LS Pler Found. | id ;%i
el Anphcastak )| / 560 Hwo | AN 64D Wall Found, .| 8. Doas _ 5)
FLOORS Fiteplace 21V " Sale. 3¢z fo!l Roofing e
- LIGHTING bbia, Sag, Shicge ot | | T4
o L Wo Elect. T B Prrecre presro =
= K4 00,35% = |Comemon Elactile (-18-722
risood ROOMS y -
wwe Rl T Towm e iySp | vorac L Tl Bk et Fnsh PRICED
e i W28 |24 3+B | Facron + 30 A% 1)
R | REPLACEMENT (198S DY 1dR ab'un
OCCUPANCY CONSTRUCTION BIZE AREA CLASE AGE |REMOD.| COND. REPL. VAL. Phy.Dop. | PHYS. VALUE | Fenct. Dep.| ACTUAL VAL. 4!'QZL_ ABSESSMENT
MG, | F AN 3> A RK St W | nis A | 9,185 (8¢ | Ru%3e (19 |To:949 Fortee
' 25D Ide. | gean®l o [gepe T~
2 1SLAY (%0 | jol, v |§é 5,499 44, bou
3
s
8
-]
7
°
4]

TOTAL




Exhibit 2a

Current Deed recorded in Rockingham County Registry of Deeds Book 4269, Page 2568



2004APR 1S AN = 30

GOUNTY
DEEDS

REGISTRY OF

2

Courtesy of Signature Escrow & Title Services BK4269P6256 8

* ‘STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE: +

THIS IS A CONTRACTUAL TRANSFER, BUT NO CONSIDERATION HAS BEEN PAID, THE TRUST
HAVING BEEN CREATED AND FUNDED FOR ESTATE PLANNING PURPOSES AS A TESTAMENTARY
SUBSTITUTE; REV. 802.10 SUBJECT TO MINIMUM TRANSFER TAX

OQUITCLAIM DEED

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Thomas F. McGovern and
HduP.mee,hmbmdandwife,oféSHighSMM,NemepchﬁcMBB.for
comiduiﬁonplid,mtollelﬂP.CmedﬁeHan.ClumembleUﬂng
Trust, u/d/t dated April 14, 2004, having an address of 65 High Street, Exeter, New Hampshire
03833, with QUITCLAIM COVENANTS, the following described premises:

Two certain pieces or parcels of land, together with the buildings thereon, situated in
Exeter, County of Rockingham, State of New Hampshire, bounded and described as follows:

Parcel Onme: A certain picce or parcel of land, with the buildings thereon, situated on the

Southerly side of High Street, in Exeter, County of Rockingham, State of New Hampshire,
bounded as follows:

Notﬂwdybysaid}ﬁghSMEutﬂlybmesmeqSomﬂybylmdfomlyof
Fannie F. Baker; Westerly by land formerly of Mabel A. McReel.

Parcel Two: Another tract of land, with the buildings thereon, situated on the Westerly

side of Gardner Street, in Excter, County of Rockingham, State of New Hampshire, bounded as
follows:

lg¢ &
b s . ! , I L
Beginning at the Northeast comer of the granted premises st an iron peg drive at a point Al
137 feet South of High Strest and thence running West by land formerly of said Baker and of (‘A
Mabel&McReﬂlﬁMmlmﬂmwfmmmyofﬂaﬂmlPhwmmeSmﬂlbyuid
Philbrook’s land and land now or formerly of Patrick Mitchell 65 feet; thence East by land now

or formerly of Carl Akeley 145 feet to said Gardner Street; thence North by said Gardner Street
69 feet to the bound begun at.




Courtesy of Signature Escrow & Title Services

BKL269P62569

Meaning and intending to describe and convey the same premises conveyed to
Thomas F. McGovem and Helen P. Crowe by deed of Bonnie Day Griswold dated May 31, 2001
and recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book 3591, Page 2118.

Said parcel is conveyed subject to any and all encumbrances of record, as the same may
apply to the premises herein described.

No title search requested.

We, Thomas F. McGovem and Helen P. Crowe, said Grantors, rclcase to said Grantee all
rights of homestcad and any other interests therein.

EXECUTED this 14" day of April, 2004.

L e //( -

Witness Charles F. Tucker Thomas F. McGovern
T T— Mo P Cee

Witness Helen P. Crowe

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, ss

On this 14" day of April, 2004, before me, personally #ppeared Thomas F. McGovern
and Helen P. Crowe, known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the persons whose names are

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same for the
purposes therein contained.

Notary Public/Justiccofthe-Pease
Printed Name:C_havd= (& ~{ ur beat

My Commission expires; 3C- O A7_9ov¥

S:\MeGovern Thomas & Crowe Helew\Estare Planming\Deod wpd




Exhibit 2¢

Recorded Plans recorded in the Rockingham Registry of Deeds Plan C-8926 and Plan #0081



PLAT OF LAND

" "Uhiofficial Document  Unofficial Roctrment  Ur

/ EXETER, N. M
SCALE: I* » 20' AUg, 1960

/ . PARKER SURVEY ASSOC, INC.
EXETER & SEABROOX, M. M.

P e a7
NIF mansoxs ’ o=t e rans

noff

7 SN RECOADING PORPOIES arar
Ggrsorme
M_W
S . DATE _%l_@ -
ent Unoficial Document Unofficial Doc

(982

] 4100 /5



S— ._J._-,:.g-_aﬂ-_u_ — e, o
t 4
— ]
epy
—— ]
;L n
B 4
o o
9
R

’ -l--‘- J;__gag_ﬁ.J - _*il_-:;_ “"f .
ATREE T, W‘a
High Street PRSI iy




BK3591P62 118

| 1) WARRANTY DEED | 1171217
e 1 180 1 N i B’ % W WA Il | BNl I K

Bonnle Day Griswold, a person, of Exeter, Ha re, for
consideration paid, grani(s) to and Hele todaltite-
with rights of survivorship, of 1335 E Market Street, Charlottesville, Albemarie

County, Virginia, 22802, with WARRANTY covenants, the following described premises:

Two certain pleces or parcels of land, together with the buildings thereon,
situated in Exeter, County of Rockingham, State of New Hampshire bounded and
described as follows:

R R A TS ol

Northerly by said High Street; Easterly by Gardner Street; Southerly by land
formerly of Fannie F. Baker; Westerly by land formerly of Mabel A. McReel.

Parcel Two: Another tract of land, with the buildings thereon, situated on the
Waesterly side of Gardner Street, in Exeter, County of Rockingham, State of New
Hampshire, bounded as follows:

0358428

Beginning at the Northeast comer of the granted premises at an iron peg drive at
-pommmm:mhwﬁ%nwmaw.%wwmqm =
Baker and of Mabel A. McReel 145.f68¢ to.land-now & fa .
b Sean e Mt e g U

feot; thence East by land now or formerly of Carl Akeley 145 feel to said Gardner Street:
thence North by said Gardner Street 69 feet to the bound begun at.

Being the same premises conveyed to Bonnie Day Griswold by Quitclaim Deed
of James W. Griswold dated August 20, 1991 recorded in the Rockingham County
Registry of Deeds at Book 2888, Page 0140,

2000 -4 PMI2:09

James W. Griswold, husband of said Granlor, releases to said Grantee all rights
of homestead and other intarests, If any, herein.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

WY
T » :; :.1'{2?,
Atk e

%

i,
R
o

o

%,

mlmuuz
i
¥

e

e s

é
;
J”"fmumum

R
U Tapy PSS

£

RN O(M*’W %T : "LL



b 21 1)) g gy

ot';: A STATUTORY FORM OF #2553 PU140
& ROCKINGHAM oS Quitclaim Deed
JAMES W. GRiSWOLD B
Rockingham County. Sirve of New Hampshire for deration past. grast 1

BONN[E DAY GRISHOLD afk/a BONNIE D. GRISHOLD

- .‘t. ; : ,,m‘ oY
g8 | | 53 RE

‘(L_,
§E R RS

of 85 High Street, Exeter

(Sereen) (Town or Ciry»

Rockingham County, State of New Hampshire . with QUITCLAIM cosenants.

the following described premases:

All my n@mnﬂeadmtmmmmmpimormuotm
bogtthnrvi:hthnmm:mm situated in Exeter, County of Rockingham,
of New Hampshire, bounded and described as follows:

&:.ltherlyude aﬁ'mm Wbﬁh”'.,

Hnrﬂnrlyhyui.quhsuut: Easterly by Gardner Street, Southerly by land
formerly of Fannie F. Baker; Westerly by land formerly of Mabel A. McReel.

Also, another tract of land, with the buildings thereon, situated on the Westerly
side of Gardner Street, in Exeter, County of Rockingham, State of New Hampshire,
bounded as follows:

at the Northeast cornmer of granted premises at an iron peg driven at a
point 1 ﬁmt&und:ofmghs aﬂﬂmtmimmstbylmtmlyolmd
Bd:-: o!llﬂn . McReel 145 feet to lard:ntuﬁmlyofﬂulmd.muhmk:

hruidmlm lmﬂrwarfomlyothtxidtlumnﬁs
| Sexeety m
Being the same premises conveyed in deed of Bonnie Day Griswold a/k/a Bonnie D.
Griswold, to James W. Griswold, creating a joint tenancy with full rights of ownership

vuth:qincbnzvivur,dnudmz.‘i 1987, recorded in Rockingham County Registry
of Deeds, Book 2688, Page 418,

The Grarntor and Grantee are husband and wife.

I, BONNIE DAY GRISWOLD a/k/a BONNIE D. GRISWOLD, being the Grantee named herein,
jmmmmmﬁwﬂnmotmlmaﬂm&nmyof
uﬁzummmmmm conveyed,

B

THIS CONVEYANCE 18| A ¢




— —leeem .o .- ----—-—n——i-.~ .

fnent Bxcélgmgj;ﬂcial D¢

......................................................................

i
)
g
: 2
»
:
°
f
;
i

.............................................................................

~Boekf{adha 1 100 v ahd Bl Momaty)
offickalddaciimwemts = #mifficislBemmment L
: ulqrtht,uuommwtnndnntommhpucuor

parcels of land, together with the buildings thereon, situated in

Exeter, County of Rockingham, Stats of New Hampshire, bounded and

described as follows:

A certain piece or parcel of land, with the buildings thareon,
situated on the Southerly side of wu in Bxeter, County of
Rockingham, State of Wav Hampshire, as follows:

Wortherly by sald High Street; Bastarly by Gardner Street, southerly
by 1:n: tomu:{y of Pannie P. Baker) Westerly by land formerly of
m L] n L3

e AT
whees et ool G ke St
State of New » bounded as follows: : .

Boginning at Bortheast corner of granted premises at an iron peg

»
gg driven at a point 137 feot South of High Street and thence running

¥sst by land formerly of said Baker and of Nabel A. McReol 143 fest to
1and now or formerly of Harlan J. Philbrook; thence South by said
Philbrook’s land land now or formerly of Patrick Mitchell 65 feet)

-]

thenco Bast by 1and now or !otnm of Carl Akeley 145 feet to said

Garndor Street; thencs Worth by 4 Gardner Street 69 foet to the
bound begun at.

Being the same premises conveyed to me by deed of James ¥. Griswold,
dated July 1, 1972, recorded in Rockingham County Registry of Deeds,

officl] DtTithent. .kinaficialacument L

g::. as joint tenants as herein stated and that the survivor shall
se of the whole.

The Grantor and Granteo are vifo and husband.
, 1, JAMES W. GRISWOLD, being the Grantoe named herein, join in this
accepting

conveyance for the purpose of acknowledging and delivery of
this desd and the interest in said prem herein convoyed.




B - ;; P’ ) Book 2151 0438
éﬂ?fﬂ%ﬁ.;ﬁiﬂsﬁamo.oo , (;' é“;h

§ --To. JARBS. W.. GRISWOLD.............., B of Bxator ... "
cial DISSURiBHY * “UMiciartoctm

I of 65 High Street . Bxoter. .
o- aw 1Btrest)

%: ;3 Rockinghan.  County, Suteof New. Barpohire

“+ 3 the following deccribod premiseo:

-z (Description and encumbrances, if any)

w 23 A cortain piece or parcel of land togethor with tho buildings
3 §°= thereon, situated on the Southerly sido of High Street in Exeter,

How Hampshire, and boundod as fol 3 ..
st et e aranntesmofficia

Algo another tract of land with tho buildings thereon situated
on th:l:::tctly 8ide of Gardner Stroot in said Exeter, and dounded
as fo H

Boginning at the Horthoast cornor of grantod premises at an
iron pog driven at a point 137 feet South of High 8treet and
running thonce West by land formorly of said Baker and of Mabol A.
McRaol 145 foot to land now or formerly of Harlan J. Philbrook:
thence South by eaid Philbrook's land and land now or formerly of
Patrick Mitcholl 63 fact; thence Bast by land pow or forporly of
Carl Akoloy 145 faet to said Gardnor Strect; thenco North by said

cial Decumebte. waaficial Document

B. Boorson and Margaret L, Bmorson to Jam W. Griswold and Bonnie
D. Griswold, as joint tonants, dated Octobor 18, 198) and recorded
in Rockingham Recorda, Book 1226, Pago 314.

The Gr and Grantco are husband and wifo.

A

1, Bonnie D. Grigwold, doing the Grantoo named horein join in
this conveyance for the purposca of acknowledging and accopting
delivery of this deed and for tho premises horein conveyed

—nQfficial Rogument  Unofficia

-, 1972

rimsanlA




Book 1226 Page 0314

2 2 Knmw all Men by these Presents

Wl raaTwe, Baward E. Emerson and Mergaret L. Emerson, husband and wife,

of Greenfield, in the County of Fr;lnkltn. and Commonwealth of Kassa-

L Docta ¥ BocEwevian
B =

chusetts,

in consideration of  (ne dollar snd other valusble considerations

te g puid by James W. Griswold and Bonnie D, Oriswold, husband !

and wife, of Exeter, in the “ounty of Rockinghen, and State of New

Hnmpshi}-a, as joint tenants with the right of survivorship and not as

tenants in common,

the repeiph #hecett WD dotikreby acknpylig g6 lavk FIRER, Eracdled. Bargained, soid sl cpmveyed

anddo for OUI'sel V&8 and OQUr - heirs, by these presests, give grant, bargais, sell sml convey

uite the said  Jumes W, Oriswold and Bonnis D, Griswold, as joint tenants
with the Tight of survivorship and not as tenants in cormon, the sur-

vivor of them, their = heirs and swigs, forever. A cartuin place or parcel of
lang together with the buildings thereon situate on the Southerly side.
of High 9trcet in Lxeter, New Hampshire, oné bounded as follows:

wal

Hortherly by sgid High Strect; &aaterly by Uardner Strect; Southerly
. by lené formorly of Fannie #. Baker; Westerly by land formerly of
Habel A. HcReel.

i180 another tract of land with the builddr.zs thersoy situete oj the
Hesterlp-side-of) Purdiner Street in seTe Erh e, dna Bounded dg Falickme & ||

Boginning at the Hortheast corner of granted premises at an iren peg
driven at o point 137 foet South of ¥igh Stroet and running thence west
by land formerly of satd “aker and of XKaobel a. leReel 145, feat to land

‘ now or formerly of Herlan J. Philbrook; thence South by scid Philbrook's
land and’ land now or formeriy of Patrick litchell 65 feet; thence East
by land now or formara:,- of “arl Akeley 145 foet to ssid Usrdner Stroet;
thence lorth by saié Yardner “treet 6§ feot to bouna bepgun at.

meaning and intending to convey horeby the asame premizes conveyed fo us
by Plorence Baker Olark, Zxaecutrix of the will of Mane .. Balmr, by her
deed dated 14 October 1944, and rocorded with Hockingham County Regiztry
of Deeds, Book 1033, Papge 32.

Taxe§ are to befro-dated af™8f.the doge.of thia feed.

|
g

Eﬁ *FN‘ and to hold e ajoremaid ises, with all the privileges and sppurtenances thereto
and Bonnte D. "ria'uo{d, the survivor of them, their
belouging. to the sald grantees James V.’ Griswold/ heirs and asmigms, to their use and behool

the vor of them, their
fogever. And We docevenzmw‘irlﬁwlrgngmn,-f &e}?:nndumim.!hn wo are

Rty izl J4 fretofthaaibri-described phemited; ksl abihictd diah e dumbfolods




Book 1226 Page 0318
that W& have good right to sell and couvey the same to the said grantee 3 in manmer nkd'éﬁ-. 315

and that we and OUTheirs will warrant and defend the same premisves to the said grantees »

their heirn aud ssigus, forever, against the lawful claims ard demands of all perrons  Whomsoever.

AndT, We are husband and wife.

And we, nod esch of ux, hereby release our several rights of Homestead in sald premises, under and

bir virtue of amy law nd this State,

3n Witness Wherra! wo, Edward E. Emerson and asrgeret L. Elner_-abn,

have hereamio set OUT  handand seal this A1GATEENTH day of
COTORER in the year of cur Lord, one thousand nine hundred

and fifty-one.

| Signed., sesled and dolivered

in presence of ps!

“COMOIVEALTE OF MASSACEUER?TS
October 18, 1951 . Then the above named

son a":d ¥argaret L. Emerson
persomally lﬁnanng acknowledged the above

mrrumeplrl.o‘b:._ t."\e.\.!" iree act and devd), belore me—
'L X

Ny cmtﬂluu iwl.ns liovember 22, 1957

-y

FRANKLIN
COUNTY, f . .

I, BEULAH U. CLIFFORD, ChrknflheSupenerCourt.thhiIICm‘ofMordtor&w
County and Commonwealth aforesaid, do hereby certify that Jessie B. Thompson
Esquire, 'whose name is subscribed to the certificate of proof or acknowleds: of the d
instrument, and therein written, was at the time of the taking of such proof or acknowledgment, a

Hotary Public
within and for said County, residing in sald County, duly nuthorized by the Jaws of Massachusetts

to take the and the. proof or acknowledgment of deeds to be recorded thereln; and that I am
iitatad o g of said J’auh B. !hocp:on




FY20 Quarterly Financial Report — January 1, 2020 — March 31* 2020 (Q1)



TOWN OF EXETER
10 FRONT STREET * EXETER, NH - 03833-3792 (603) 778-0591 *FAX 772-4709

www.exeternh.gov

TO: SELECT BOARD AND RUSS DEAN, TOWN MANAGER

FROM: DOREEN CHESTER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: BUDGET VS ACTUAL FINANCIALS (UNAUDITED) & HIGHLIGHTS AS OF 3/31/20 & 3/31/19
DATE: MAY 18, 2020

General Fund Budget vs. Actual Revenues

General Fund Revenues

As of the first quarter ended, March 31, 2020, General Fund (“GF”) actual revenues are $ 1.2M versus
budgeted revenue of 20.3M(including warrant articles). Revenues are currently flat at $1.2M year-over-
year, for the quarters ending March 31, 2020 and 2019.

Uncollected property tax liens are $ $651.6K as of 3/31/20. The balance has decreased by $310K from the
prior year. Uncollected property taxes from 2019 are $658.5K with a total property tax balance
uncollected of $1.3M.

Due to the economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, it is anticipated that overall revenue will drop in
the second quarter and potentially in the third and fourth quarters of FY20. Estimates are unknown at this
time, since the pandemic is unprecedented. More information will be known about property tax and other
revenue after the second quarter report ending June 30, 2020. Meanwhile, the Town Manager and Finance
Department are working with all Town departments to make budget cuts for FY20.

General fund revenue highlights for the first quarter of the current year are:
e Interest on Property Taxes: $13.6K (8 93K decrease from prior year)
e Motor Vehicle Revenues: $ 743.8K ($13.7K decrease from prior year)
e Building & Permit Fees: $ 76K ($47K increase over prior year; so far building projects continue)
e  Other Permits and Fees: $ 17.2K (slight increase of [.2K over prior year)
e State Highway Block Grant: $62.9K (slight increase of $1.5K over prior year)
e  Other State Grants: $10.6K (increase of $8.5K due to MTAG Grant in FY20)
e Income from Departments: $ 240.7K (833K increase over prior year)

o Due to increased refuse fees collected (blue bags, $23.4K increase and security alarm
revenue increase of $7.2K)

e Interest Income $ 45K (increase of $30K over prior year)

o Citizens Bank offered a higher interest rate of 2.35% for funds placed in an investment
account in FY19 through January FY20; Since the Federal government dropped interest
rates due to the pandemic, interest rates on savings have fallen to .20% at Citizens Bank.

Rental Revenues: $14.6K ($4.8K higher than prior year, but may change if refunds are needed for
Town Hall rentals)

Amounts voted from fund balance are $150K for the Sick Leave Trust and Snow/Ice Deficit Fund and do
not effect current year net income.

Page 1 of 10



TOWN OF FXFTER - BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURFS 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

General Fund Budget vs Actual Expenditures

Overall, general fund expenditures are $ 4.2 M or 21% spént through the first quarter of 2020 versus
$4.1M in spending or 21% in the prior year. .

General Government Group (BOS. TM. HR, Legal. TC, EL and MO)

e General government group expenditures are $ 267.7K or 28% spent through the current quarter and
prior year was $265K or 30% spent representing a slight increase of $1.9K year over year.

o Legal expenses are$21.5K or 27% spent and up by $ 11K over the prior year.

o Liability insurance is down $23K year-over-year due to the movement of train station liability
insurance to other structures budget. ’ ‘

o Human Resources is $23K or 15.5% sent or $4K more than last year. The first quarter of
2020 contains part-time wages and payroll taxes approved in the March FY19. The part-time
hire did not begin working for the Town until June 2019.

o Town Clerk expense are $81.6K or 23% spent versus $$75K or 21% spent in the prior year.
The increase of $6K is due to the timing of the software contract payment of $8K paid in the
first quarter of FY20 net of decreases in contract services, health and dental insurance of $2K.

Finance Group (Finance, Tax, Assessing and IT)

o Finance group expenditures are $232K or 24% spent against the current year budget. Actual
expenditures are up by $28K over the prior year. '
o The increase is due to a Vision upgrade increase of $24K in Assessing, Finance increases of
$6K for software maintenance and health insurance of $3.4K offset by other decrease in IT
and Tax Collection of $5K

Planning, Other Boards and Building Inspection Departments

e Planning and Building Inspection expenses are $ 111.9K or 20% spent against the budget for current
year vs 116K in the prior year, which is a decrease of $4.8K.

o Planning expenses are up year over year by $6.5K most of which is due to timing of planning
study expenses of $4K occurring earlier in FY20.

o Building Inspection expenses have decreased by $2.8K from the prior year and is mostly
attributable to a $2.5K drop in health insurance premiums due to plan changes and other
miscellaneous decreases.

o Historic District Commission has decreased by $8.8K due to the timing of grant match
expenses in FY20 vs FY'19.

Page 2 of 10



TOWN OF FEXETER - BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURFES 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

Police Department

o Police department expenditures are $810K or 22 % spent against the current year budget, which is a
decrease of $ 36.5K from the prior year.

o Police Administration expenses are $ 171K or 21% spent and have decreased by $17.5K
from the prior year. There is an $11K drop in wages and a $14K drop in employer NHRS
contributions. Wages are less because of a prior year retirements in Police Administration
with positions filled at lower costs. NHRS changed the rate from 29.43% to $28.43& as of
July 1, 2019. These decreases are offset by a health insurance increase of $4K, uniforms
increase of $2.5K and other miscellaneous increases of $ 1.5K.

o Police Staff expenses are $131.9K or 21% spent. Expenses have decreased by $31.1K from
the prior year. A decrease of $42.5K is due to a change in prosecutorial services moving from
Rockingham County to in-house staff with some supplementation by a contractor. The
decrease is offset by increases in wages, taxes and benefits of $ 10.8K per the police union
contract and other miscellaneous expense increases of $1.1K.

o Police Patrol expenses are $420K or 22% spent against the budget that is a small increase in
$2.8K over the prior year. Wages, benefits and taxes have increased by $5.5K but are offset
with decreases in investigation costs of $2K and other miscellaneous general expense
increases of $.7K.

o Police Communications/Dispatch expenses are $ 85.8K or 21% spent. Current year
expenses have increased by $9.6K over the prior year. Wages are up by $9.6 due to a
retirement of a long-term dispatcher in the first quarter of the year. The wages include
accrued vacation for FY20.

Fire Department

o Fire Department expenses are $833K or 21% spent against budget at the end of the first quarter. The
amount represents a $30.9K increase from the prior year.

o Fire Administration expenses are $ 131K or 22% spent which reflect a $3.1K increase over
the prior year. Most of the increase is part-time wages for an administrative assistant that
began working in the 2™ quarter of FY19.

o Fire Suppression expenses are $671K or 21% spent which reflects an increase of $32K in
the first quarter. Wages, taxes and benefits have increased by $35K per fire union contract
offset by other general expenses of $3K.

o Emergency Management expenses are $4K or 8% spent year-to-date and a decrease of $4K
from the prior year due to timing of shelter equipment purchased. This will most likely
increase over the next three quarters due to the pandemic.

o Health Department expenses are relatively flat year-over-year at $27K.

Page 3 of 10



TOWN OF FXFTER - BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURFS 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

Public Works Department

e The Public works department budget is $907K or 16% spent against the current year budget that
reflects a decrease of $132K from the prior year which had $1M in expenditures.

o Public Works Administration expenses are 77.9K or 19% spent against the current year
budget. The department is 4.5K higher than the prior year. There is a $7K decrease in wages,
taxes and benefits due to the resignation of the engineering technician in January of 2020.
The position was not replaced and is temporarily on hold due to the pandemic. The decrease
is offset by the $12K cost of fuel in the master fuel account. Fuel costs are allocated among
various departments on a monthly basis.

o Highway expenses are $249K or 12% spent versus $236K or 11% spent in the prior year
with a $13K increase year-over-year. The increase is directly related to wages, taxes and
benefits per SEIU union contract.

o Snow removal expenses are $140K or 42% spent against the current year budget. In the prior
year, $270K or 86% of the snow removal budget was expended by the end of the first quarter.
The year-over-year variance of $129.7K is due to decreased storms in the first quarter of
2020.

o Solid waste disposal expenses are $204.6K or 16% spent against and is $36K lower than the
prior year. The decrease is due to timing of payment for Waste Management invoices. There
are only two payments recorded in Q1 of FY20 versus three payments in Q1 of FY19.

o DPW Maintenance expenses are $203.5K or 17% expended. The department has a small
total year-over year variance of $1.7K.

= There is a $9K savings in the maintenance department due to the vacancy left by the
HVAC technician in early January of 2020. The position is still open and might not
be filled due to the pandemic.

= The $9K in savings above are offset by an increase in custodial supplies of $6.5K.
The mechanic garage department has an increase of $5K due to normal wage
increases under the SEIU union contract and a change in health insurance plans.

» Maintenance of Town buildings and other structures has dropped by $3.5K from the
prior year.

Welfare

o The welfare department is $24K or 33% spent through the first quarter. There is a $7K increase over
the prior year due to State programs for the indigent that were eliminated and a general increase in
demand for welfare services. Rent expense for those in need have increased by $10K over the prior
year and is slightly offset with a decrease in electricity of $3K.

Page 4 of 10



TOWN OF FXETER ~ BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURFES 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

Parks & Recreation

¢ Parks & Recreation expenses are $105K or 19% spent to date that is a decrease of $6.1K from the
prior year.

o Recreation has gone up by $6.2K due to budgeted wages, taxes and benefits increases for
four non-union employees.

o Parks has a $12.3K decrease due to less contracted services of $14K and increases of $.5K
for SEIU union wages, taxes and benefits and a § 1.2K increase for equipment and supplies.

Library

o Library expenses are $285K or 28% spent to date with a $48K increase year over year. The
increase is mostly due to the timing of payments to the Library for public services.

General Fund Debt Service (Interest Only 1°' Quarter)

o General fund debt service interest payments have decreased by $12.4K due the retirement of
debt for the Norrisbrook Culvert in FY'19 and declining interest costs for other general fund
bond obligations.

General Fund Net Income

o General Fund Net Deficit is $(2.35)M current year versus $ (2.42)M in the prior year. The
majority of revenue in the general fund is generated from property taxes. First half property
taxes are billed in May and are due in the beginning of July. It is unknown at this time how
the economic impact of the pandemic will affect the Town’s collection of property taxes.
More will be known by the next quarterly report.

Page 5 of 10



TOWN OF FXETFR - BVA REVENUF & FXPENDITURFS 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

Water Fund Budget vs. Actual Revenue and Expenditures
Water Fund Revenues

o Water Fund (“WF”) enterprise revenues are $849.3K or 23%’ collected against the budget as of
the first quarter of FY20. Gross revenues for the prior year are $850.7K or 26%.

o Water consumption is $682.4K and down by $13.7K from the prior year. Water service
charges are $ 151K, which is up by 6.9K over the prior year. New water rate increases
became effective for the October 2019 billing cycle.

o Water Fund receivables are currently $500K as of the end of the current first quarter. The
amount includes $457K in current year billings. It is unknown at this time if the
pandemic will have an impact on water payments by ratepayers.

o Water shut-offs are not permitted for non-payment at this time due to the Governor’s
orders.

Water Fund Expenses

e Total water fund expenses are $915K or 24% at the end of the first quarter ending 3/31/20 and
represents a $106.8K increase over the same period ended 3/31/19.

o Water Administration expenses are $127.3K or 32% spent. These expenses reflect a
$12.8K increase over the prior year and is directly due to wages, taxes and benefits
increases for 50% wages, taxes and benefits of an assistant water and sewer engineer
hired in late 2019. The increase is offset by a $1K decrease in legal/public notices and
other decreases of $.2K.

o Water Billing expenses are $ 41.8K or 23% expended versus $42.9K or a $1.1K
decrease from the prior year. The decrease is directly related to the retirement of the
Deputy Tax Collector/Water & Sewer Clerk. The 25% allocation of wages, taxes and
benefits to the water billing department for this position is lower due to a new hire
starting at the lower end of the pay scale.

o Water Distribution expenses are $136.8K or 16% spent in the current year. Prior year
expenses are $148.9 or $12 lower. The year-over-year decrease is due to the timing of the
water tank maintenance payment of $39K, which occurred in the first quarter of 2019, but
did not yet occur in FY20. The increase is offset by a $12.6K increase in FY20 for
backflow/metering expenditures.

o Water Treatment expenditures are $153.9K or 19% spent versus $138.8K in spending
in the prior year. The $15K expenditure increase is due to additional wages, taxes and
benefits of $3.8K per SEIU union contract, natural gas costs of $5.2K due to timing of
payments, (3 in current year and 2 in prior year) and the timing of payments for the water
scada software maintenance for $7K offset by a $1K decrease in lab testing.

Water Fund Debt Service expenditures expenses have increased by $92K in the current
year due to the first year of debt service interest paid for the surface water treatment plant
in Q1 of FY20.

o Water Fund Net Deficit is $(66) K in the current year compared to a positive $42K in
the prior year and reflects a decrease of $108K. All of the above revenue and expense
factors discussed above are the mechanics for the net deficit or bottom line.

Page 6 of 10



TOWN OF EXFTFER - BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURFS 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

Sewer Fund Budget vs. Actual Revenues and Expenditures

Sewer Fund Revenues

Sewer Fund (“SF”) enterprise revenues through the current quarter are $1.44M or 19% collected.
The prior year reflects revenues of $894K or 32 % collected. The biggest driver of the $550K
increase to revenues is the new sewer rate increase that became effective in October 2019.

»  Uncollected revenue for the sewer fund is $1.2M as of March 31, 2020. Current
receivables reflect a balance of $ 865K. . It is unknown at this time if the
pandemic will have an impact on sewer payments by ratepayers.

Sewer Fund Expenses

Sewer Fund expenses are $619K or 8% spent against budget through the first quarter of 2020
compared to $525K or 19% spent against budget in the prior year. The current year sewer budget
is $7.8M versus $2.8M in the prior year. The large increase is due to the additional personnel and
operating expenses required to run the new wastewater treatment plant.

o Sewer Administration expenses are $151K representing an increase of $13K over prior
year. It is directly due to 50% wages, taxes and benefits of an assistant water and sewer
engineer hired in late 2019.

o Sewer Billing expenses are $41.1K in the current year versus $42.3K in the prior year
representing a $1.3K decrease. Similar to water billing, the decrease is related to the
retirement of the Deputy Tax Collector/Water Sewer Clerk. The 25% allocation of
wages, taxes and benefits to the sewer billing department for this position is lower due to
a new hire starting at the lower end of the pay scale.

o Sewer Collection expenses are $133K or 19% spent versus the prior year of $ 118K or
18% spent. The increase of $14.7K over the prior year are due to pump control
maintenance of $ 7.7K pipe relining of $4K, CSO monitoring of $2.5K and GIS software
of § 2.3K offset by other decreases of $1K.

o Sewer Treatment expenses are $227.4K in the current year versus $ 155.9K in the prior
year reflecting an increase of $71K.

* The new wastewater treatment plant that went online in late 2019 dramatically
affected the sewer treatment budget. This budget went from $865K in FY19to $
1.4M in FY20 to support the new operation costs and debt service of the
wastewater treatment plant.

e Major cost components of the new plant are more wastewater
technicians, electricity for lagoon aerators; laboratory testing, equipment
maintenance, wastewater treatment chemicals, natural gas for heating
buildings and fuel for generators.

= The variance for this quarter is due to increases in wages, taxes and benefits of
36.5K related to additional staff needed to run the plant and SEIU union contract
wage increases, electricity of $12.4K and solids handling $39K. The increases
are offset by timing of payments for lab tests of $16.2K.

Page 7 of 10



TOWN OF FXFTFR — BVA REVENUE & FEXPFNDITURES 3/31/20 VS 3/ 3.1/ 19 (UNAUDITED)

o Sewer Fund Debt Service expense is $64K versus $68K in the prior year. The $4K
decrease is due to the decline of debt service interest for older projects.

= Debt service is budgeted for $ 4.85M in FY20. Overall, sewer fund
debt service has increased by 88% in FY20 due to the
commencement of State Revolving Fund loan payments in
December 2019 for the Wastewater Treatment Plant. As of the first
quarter, no current year payments were due for the wastewater
treatment plant.

Sewer Fund Net Income

o Sewer Fund Net Income is $818.9K in the current quarter. It has increased by $450.5K
over the same period in the prior year. All of the above revenue and expense factors
discussed above are the mechanics of the net deficit or bottom line.

Page 8§ of 10



TOWN OF FXFETER — BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURFS 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITED)

Revolving Funds - Budget vs. Actual Revenues and Expenses
Cable Television Revelving Fund (“CATV?”)

Revenue

Cable franchise fee revenue has not been received as of March 31, 2020. Comcast pays the first
installment of cable franchise fees in the second quarter of the Town’s fiscal year.

Expenses

Wages and benefits are $20.5K or 15% spent against the current year budget versus $25.3K spent
against budget in the prior year. The variance of $4.8K is due to less work available to part-time
employees, because of the pandemic.

General expenses are $54.8K for the current year and $60.5K in the prior year. These expenses
include expenses for channels 13, 22 and 98, contracted and legal services, capital outlay, internet
services, software and equipment maintenance.

Net Deficit

Net Deficit is $ $(54.8K) for the first quarter of the current versus $(60.3K) in the prior year. A
net deficit is typical in the CATV fund for the first quarter, due to the timing of Comcast
revenues.

Recreation Revolving Fund (“RR”)

Revenue

Recreation revolving fund revenues are $ 279.9K in the current year versus $ 320K collected in
the prior year and represents a decrease of $40K from the prior year. This fund relies on revenue
from programs, events, trips, sponsorships and sports. All of the activities have been curtailed due
to Covid-19 and refunds are being issued.

As of the time this report was written, the recreation department had issued the following refunds
through April 30, 2020 as follows: Spring Sports Programs $10.1K, summer camp $9K and
senior trips $3.9K. More refunds are expected, if summer camp and pool activities are unable to
continue as a result of the pandemic. A decision has not been made about summer programming.

Expenses

Temporary wages have dropped from by $2K in the current year and are $4K versus $6K due to
program cancellations.

Overtime wages are $1.2K in the current quarter and have increased by $.7K from the prior year.

Page 9 of 10



TOWN OF FXETER - BVA REVENUE & FXPENDITURES 3/31/20 VS 3/31/19 (UNAUDITFD)

¢ General expenses include categories directly related to recreation programs as well as pool
chemicals, water bills, printing, advertising and pool food expenses. These expenses are $55.8K
for the current year versus $ 38.2K in the prior year. The increase of $17.5K is due to increases of
$8.8K in program expenses, $2.8K in credit card fees and $1.4K in trip expenses. Most of the
expenses related to trips are refundable to the recreation revolving fund.

Net Income

o Netincome is $ 218K in the current year versus 274K has decreased by 356K or 21% from the
prior year.

EMS Revolving Fund

Revenue

o EMS Revolving Fund Revenue is $ 141.7K or 25% collected through the end of the current
quarter versus $ 128.1K or 23% collected in the prior quarter. This reflects a $13.5K increase or
11% year over year.

o Although it appears that revenue is solid at the end of the first quarter, much of the
revenue is due to payments for services rendered in the 4th quarter of 2019.

o EMS call volume for much of January and February was average with between 160-180
calls for an ambulance each month. In March, EMS began to see a drop in calls. The
drop has continued through April and into May.

o January through April runs are down 15%, 717 for the period in 2019 and 611 in 2020.
Expenses

o Wages, taxes and benefits are $§ 10.5K or 26% spent against the current year budget versus
$35.9K or 19% spent against budget through the first quarter of the prior year.

o EMS overtime is $17K vs $21K which is down by $4K due to less call volume toward the end of
in the first quarter of FY20.

o General expenses are $25.3K in the current year versus $ 19.3K in the prior year. The increase of
$6K is due to paramedic training of $10.8K offset by decreases due to the timing of emergency
equipment maintenance of $ 3.6K, emergency medical supplies of $2.4K plus other
miscellaneous expenses of $1.2K.

Net Income
e Current year net income of $75K reflects an increase of $15K over the prior year net income of

$60K. As pointed out earlier, the increased revenues may start to reverse during the second
quarter due to the pandemic. Net income is a factor of the above revenue and expenses.

Page 10 of 10



Town of Exeter

General Fund Revenues (unaudited) DRAFT
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019
General Eund Revenuos . Giirront Yaar 2020 Budgot vs Actusl Prior Year 2019 Budget vs Actual Comparison of Actuzls
Actual ’ Actual
Revenue * - % o Revenue 2020 vs 2019 2020 vs 2019
] Description 2020 Budget  3/31/2020 $ Varlance Collected| 2019 Budget  3/31/2019 $Variance % Collected | $ Varlance % Varlance
|Property Tax Revenue $ 12,965,585 § 3,952 $ 12,861,633 O.O%I $ 13,170,380 § 91,871 $ 13,078,509 0.73&| $ (87.919) -86%
[Motor Vehiclo Permit Fees 3,080,000 743,789 2,338,211 24%' 3,025,000 787,509 2,267,491 25%] $ _ (13,720) 2%
Building Permits & Foos 350,000 76,619 273,381 22%' 200,000 29,023 170977 15%| 8 47,588 164%
Other Permits and Fees 210,000 17,214 192,786 Bﬂ 210,000 15,917 194,083 8%| $ 1,297 8%
State Revenue Sharing 158,880 0% - #DIViol $ . #DIVIC!
Meals & Rooms Tax Revenue 779,375 779,375 0%] - 774137 774,137 0%| $ .
. |
State Highway Block Grant 311,502 62,932 248,570 20%' 304,179 61,353 242,826 20%| § 1,57 3%
|
Other Stato Grants/Reimbursments 25,000 10,608 14301 42%' 25,000 2,125 22,875 %] $ 8,484 399%
Hlncome from Departments 1,075,000 240,724 834,276 22%] 1,000,000 207,633 792.301 21% 33.025 16%
Sale of Town Property 50,000 50,000 0% 500 - 500 0% -
Interest Income 115,000 45,535 69,485 40% _500 15,038 {14,538) 3008% 30497  203%
Other Miscellaneous Rovenues 29,500 14,597 14,903 49'4:1 26,500 9,791 16,709 379_&* 4,808 49%
Revenus Transfers In/Out 455,585 - 455,585 330,161 10,000 320,161 3% {10,000) 100%
Total General Fund Rovenuas 6%|$ 15645 1%
Total Appropriations| 123,774 23%
Grosa Revenues & Appropriations| 139,419 8%

9% §
T




[Town of Exeter
Genoral Fund Expenses (unaudited)
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019

DRAFT

" Current Yenr 2020 Budgot vs Actual ___Prlor Yoar 2019 Budgot vs Actual
Actusl - - ‘ Actual’
Expenses Expenses 2020 vs 2019 2020 vs 2019
DEPARTMENT 2020 Budget 03131120 $Varlance % Spent | 2019 Budget 0313119 $ Variance % Spent $ Variance % Variance
Tota! Genoral Government $ 048110 § 267,726 § _ 680,384 iml $ 888730 § 265739 § 622980 30%_H 1,987 1531
Total Finance 63,748 232,108 731,642 M 203,788 684,137 2% 28318 mgl
Total Planning & Bulding 568,810 111,947 456,863 m}_l 545,501 116,715 428,868 21%| (4,768) -4'&I
Total Economic Development 151,341 31,210 120,131 21%| 144,879 32480 112,399 2% (1.270 i’!_‘;l
Total Police 3,743,027 810,027 2,933,000 ﬁzz%' a,ise:m 846,488 2,920,266 2% (36461) 43}_’
Total Fire 3,886,921 833880 3,152,931 Z‘I%] 3,901,492 803,008 3,088,484 21% 30,882 4%
Total Public Works 5,385,091 807,288 4,677,805 18'/9L 5,377,593 1,040,029 4,337,564 _19%] (132,743) -13%
Total Welfare 73,052 24,138 48,917 3% 68,171 16,376 51,795 24% 7,759 47%
Total Human Services 103,805 6,381 97,424 6% 106,625 - 106,625 oﬁil 6,381 100%_I
Tota! Parks & Recreation 562,802 105,332 457260  1o%| 538,375 m A55 426920 21% {6.123) -&ss§|
Total Other Culture/Recreation 32,000 1,666 30334 5% m 1,699 30,303 5% (33) 2%
Total Library 1,032,683 285,251 747,634 28% 1,024,921 237,239 787,682 23% 48,012 20%
Total Debt Servico & Capital 1,476,299 141,508 1,334,793 10%_'_1,_571 ,943 117,881 1,454,062 7%
Payroll Bonefits & Taxes 377,858 319,214 58,642 M‘él 262306 194,867 67,438 74%
Total General Fund Expenses $ 19,608,837 § 4,077,777 | $ 15,527,760 21%) $ 19,117,296 § 3,987,754‘ $ 15,129,531 21%
Appropriation for Warrant Articles $ 683164 $ 160,000 $ 110,000 24% $ 488451 § 174,000 $ 314451 36%| ' (14,000) ‘ 0‘
Total Expenditures| $ 20,288,701 $ 4,237,777 $ 15,637.;160 21%' $ 19,605,747 $§ 4,161,784 $ 15,443,982 21%| $ 69,832 2%
Net Income/ (Deficit)| § .5 (2358,642) § 2592816 13%] § - $ (2422,048) $ 2422049 12%) 69,787 3%
Amounts Voted from Fund Balance| $§ 160,000 _§ - 8 jg.ooo | 100?_] $ 361818 § 361818 § - 1009;} $ (361,818) -100%
T =I




Town of Exeter

Water Fund Revenues & Expenses (unaudited) DRAFT
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019 . ‘
Current Year - il Prior Year Comparison of Actuals
Actual Actual 2020 vs
. Revenue Revenue % 2020 vs 2019 2019 %
- Description 2020 Budget  '3/31/2020 $Variance . - % Collected | 2019 Budget  3/31/2019 $Varlance  Collected | $ Variance Variance
Water Fund Revenues )
Water Enterprise Revenues| $ 3,552,795 "$ 849,278 $ 2,703,517 24%) $ 3,253,066 $ 850,739 S 2,402,327 26%) $ {1,461) 0%
Approprations for Warrant Articles | $ 200,000 200,000 - » - 100%| - 0%
B A vt os . Ty
Gross Water Revenues| $ 3,752,795 $ 849,278 S 2,903,517 23%| $ 3,253,066 $ 850,739 $ 2,302,327 26%| $ {1,461) 0%,
Water Fund Expenditures Current Year:. i i 2 Prior Year Comparison of Actuals |
: Expenses . - : - Actual Expenses % 2020vs 2019 | 2019 %
DEPARTMENT 2020 Budget . 03/31/20 $ Variance % Spent 2018 Budget 03/31/19 $ Variance Spent $ Variance Variance
Water Administration $ 393,161 $ 127,313 $ - 265848 32%| S 367994 S 114505 $ 253,489 31%] $ 12,808 11%
Water Billing $ 179,553 $ 41,803 $ 137,750 23%]$ 165173 $ 42,923 $ 122,250 26%] $ (1,120) -3%)
Water Distribution $ 836,826 $ 136;874 3 699,952 16%} $ 879,332 $ 148,970 $ 730,362 17%] S {12,096) -8%
Water Treatment $ 813514 $ 153,885 $ 659,629 19%|$ 816579 § 138838 $ 677,741 17%{ $ 15,047 11%
Water Fund Debt Service $ 1,164,650 § 453,712 $ 710,938 _39% $ 885416 § 361,525 $ 524,891 %) $ 92,187 25%
Water Furd Capital Outlay $ 165,091 $ 1,716 $ 163,375 1%] $ 137,572 $ 1,716 $ 135,856 1%{ $ - 0%
Total Water Fund Expensesl :
before Warrant Articles| $ 3,552,795 $ 915303 $ 2,637,492 26%) $ 3,253,066 $ 803477 S 2,444,589 25%)] $ 106,826 13%
Warrant Articles )
Groundwater/Surface Water| B
Review] $ 200,000 $ 200,000 %) $ - 3 - $ - 0%] $ - 0%
Grand Total of Water Fund .
Expenses| $ 3,752,795 $ 915303 S 2,837,492 23%] $ 3,253,066 S 808477 S 2,444,589 25%] $§ 106,826 13%
Net Income/(Deficit)| $ - § (e6,025) 66,025 100%] $ . - 42,262 {42,262) 100%| (108,287) -256%




Town of Exeter i
Sewer Fund Revenues & Expenses (unaudited)
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019
- Brior Year
Actual . : 2020 vs
Revenue . % Actual Revenue |. % 2020 vs 2019 2019 %
Description 2020 Budget  3/31/2020 $ Variance .Callected | 2019 Budget 373112019 $Varlance  Collected | $ Variance Varlance
Sewer Fund Revenues
State Grant R $ 877854 § - |$ 845012 0%} S 25,520 §$ - 18 25,520
Sewer Enterprise Revenues $ 70686605 § 1,438945|$ 6214818 19%] $ 2,817,868 § 894,384 | $  1,923482
|Approprations for Warrant Articles 150,000 (150,000) -
Sower Fund Rovenuos & Appropriations $ 1!838!605 $ 1!438!945 $ - 6,064,818 18%] $ 2.811Ql§6 $ 894,384 | § 1223,482
Sower Fund Expenditures © Curront Yea “Prior Year
Actual _ Actual 2020 vs
Expenses . Expenses 2020 vs 2019 2019 %
DEPARTMENT 2020 Budget __ 03/31/20 $Varlance __ % Spent | 2018 Budget 03/31/19 $Varlance __ % Spent | $Varlance Varlance
Sewer Administration Expense 417,513 151,938 | . 265575 36%] 42q,983 138,708 282,275 335i| [ 13,230 10%]
Sewer Billing Expense 176,328 077 135251 % 162,398 42,343 120,085 26%| 8 (1,266) 3%
Sewer Collaction Expense 708,202 133,014 575,128 19'# 665456 118,390 847,066 18%] $ 14,684 12.4%
| Sower Troatment Exponse 1,415,475 227,403 1,188,072 16% 865,334 155,961 709,373 18%| $ 71,442 45.8%|
Sewer Fund Debt Service Expense 4,848,895 84,738 4,784,257 1%) 576,124 68,748 507,376 12%] $ {4,010)
Sewer Fund Capital Outlay Expense 120,092 1,718 118,376 1% 127,571 1,718 125,855 1%| $ -
Total Sewer Fund Expenses 7,686,805 619,948 7,066,659 8% 2,817,866 525,868 2,292,000 19%| $ 94,080
Sower Fund Warrant Articles 150,000 150,000 . 0%] $ .
Total Sewer Expenses and Warrant Articles| $ 7,836,605 § 619946|$ 7,216,659 8%]S 2.817,866 $ 525866 | $ 2,282,000 19%1 S 94,080 18%)
Net Incomel/(Deficit)| $ -__§ 818999]$ 13281477 100%] S -__$ 368,518 | § __ (368,518) 100%| $ 450,481 122%
|




- (TERNTTYON T

4

Town of Exeter o
CATV Revolving Fund- Revenue & Expenses (unaudlted) DRAFT
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019 -
- Current Year Prior Year Compariscn of Actuals
: 2020 vs 2020 vs
. " Actual $ % | 201 Actual % 2019 $ | 2019 %
|Description 2020 Budget  03/31/20 Variance  Variance | Budget ~ 03/31/19 $ Variance Variance | Variance | Variance
Cable Franchise Fees '150,000 150,000 - 100% ﬁ3,%0 153,050 100% -
Tech/AV Service Fees ‘ 100% | , 160 (160)  100% (160) 100%|
Total CATV Revenue 150,600 - 150,000 100% 153,050 160 152,850 100% (160) 100%
CATV Expenses
Wages, Taxes & Benefits $ 132183 § 20480 $ 111,703 15%|S 24,689 $ 25262 § 99,427 20%l$  (a,782) -19%
General Expenses $ 78921 § 34,373 $ M,548 43%]S 64,691 $§ 35236 S 29,455 54% {863) -2%
Total CATV Expenses| $ 211,104 § ° 54,853 $. 156,251 | 26%]$ 189,380 $ 60,498 $ 128,882 32% (5,645) -9%
Net Income/(Deflcit)| $° (61,104):'$ "(54,853) $ (6,251) 80%| $ (36,330) $ (60,338) $ 24,008 166%] $ 5,485 -9%|




Town of Exeter

Recreation Revolving Fund Revenues & Expenses{unaudited) DRAFT
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019
Current Year Prior Year Comparison of Actuals
2020 Actuzl Expenses| . 2019 Actual Expenses 2020 vs 2019 | 2020 vs 2019
Description Budget as of 3/31/20 $Varigm:e % Variance Budgnt asof3/31/19 | $Variance 9% Variance | $ Variance % Variance
Total Revenue] § 656,500 279,957 | $ (376,543)] 43% 641,002 | $ 320,118 } $ 320,884 s0%]$  (40,061)]  -13%
Wages, Taxes & Benefits| $ 240,625 | $ 5763 |$ 234,861 2% 241,100 | $° 7,069 | $ 234,031 3%] $ (1,305)] -18%
General Expenses] $ 328,010 | $ 55,800 | $ 272,210 17% 398,350 | $ 38,292 |$ 350,058 10%] $ 17,508 46%
Total Rec Revolving Expenses|$ 568,635 |$ . 61564]$ s07071| 11% 6394508  4s3s1|s 594,089 7%|$ 16,203 36%
Netincome/(Deflcit)] $ 87,865 |$ 218393 |$ 130,528 ) 248% 15521$ 274957 |s 273,208 17703%] $  (56,364) -21%
I .




As of March 31, 2020 and 2019

|EMS- Ambulance Transport Revenue

Wages, Taxes & Benefits
General Expenses|
Total Expenses|

Net Income/(Deflcit)

Ambulance Revolving Fund - Revenues & Expenses (unaudited)

DRAFT
Current Year Prior Year Comparison of Actuals
2020 Actual % Actual '
Budget 03/31/20 $ Variance  Variance | 2019 Budget  03/31/19 $ Variance %Variance | $Variance %Variance
$ 556000 $ 141,705 $ (914,205) 25% s’ 556000.§ 128132 $ {427,868) 23%|$ 13,573 11%
|$ 191436 § 41034 $ 150,462 21% |$ 186188 $ ) 48,607 $ 137,581 26%1$ (7,573) -16%
I ) _ —
IS 164363 §$ 35283 $ 139,085 15% |$ 167,904 $ 19,226 $ 148,678 11%] $ 6,057 32%
$ 355,864 $ 66,317 $ 289,547 19% $ 354092 $ 67,833 § 286,259 19%]$  (1,516) -2%
$ 200136 $ 75,388 S (124,748) 38% |$ 201,808 $ 60,299 $ (141,609) 30%]$ 15,089 25%




Town of Exeter
Analysis of Property Tax/Lieos Receivable : DRAFT
As of 3/31/20 and 3/31/19 .

Balance Balance
Outstanding  Outstanding

“as of asof 3 %
Type Bill Year 03/31/20 03/31/19 Change Change
Lien 2009 376 376 Poo- 0%
Lien 2010 839 2,334 ' (1,495)  (64)%
Lien 2011 6,189 - - 17,700 (1,511)  (20)%
Lien 2012 5,604 6,999 (1,395) (20)%
Lien 2013 11,961 15,181 (3,220) (@21)%
Lien 2014 20,335 25,547 O (5212)  (200%
Lien 2015 29,153 33,618 (4,465) (13)%
Lien 2016 110,703 160,725 {50,022) (31)%
Lien 2017 "175,599 241,594 (65,995) (2%
Lien 2018 250,822 467,651 (176,829)  (38)%
Subtotal $§ 651,581 § 961,725 § (310,144)  (32)%
Tax 2019 658,480 658,480
Subtotal $ 658,480 § - 3 658,480

Grand Total § 1,310,061 § 961,725 § 348,336 36%

Property tax liens receivable decreased by 3310K or 36% from the prior quarter 3/31/19.
Uncollected taxes have typically run 2%-5% over the prior years. It is unknown what

the impact will be on tax collections due to the Covid-19 pandemic.



Town of Exeter DRAFT

Analysis of Accounts Receivable Aging - Water & Sewer
March 31, 2020 vs March 31, 2019

Currrent 31-60 Days 61-90 Days Over 90 Days Total
As of 03/31/20 $ 1,261,261 $ 153,701 $ 234,865 $ 1,649,827
Percent Outstanding 76% 9% 0% 14% 100%
As of 03/31/19 $ 810,603 $ 95,708 $ 27,169 $ 14585 $ 948,065
Percent Outstanding 86% 10% 3% 2% 100%
Increase/(Decrease) $ 450,658 $ 57,993 $ {27,169) $ 220,280 $ 701,762
% Increase/(Decrease) 56% 0% 0% 94% 74%

Accounts receivable over 90 days have increased by $220K or 94% from the prior year. The increase
is partially due to the inability for the Town to do shut-offs, because of the Governor's orders coupled
with the inability for some ratepayers to pay their bills due to high unemployment.

l Current Year |

|Breakdown of Water/Sewer Acconts Recelvable Cutstanding by Year: As of March 31, 2019
Year Water Sewer Total Percent of Total
2008 226 226 0.01%
2009 4 140 1443 0.01%
2010 (270) 173 {97) -0.01%
2011 1,046 1,046 0.06%
2012 206 206 0.01%
2013 210 210 0.01%
2014 217 217 0.01%
2015 231 231 0.01%
2016 232 232 0.01%
2017 40 427 467 0.03%
2018 35 33,051 33,086 2.01%
2019 43,317 247,428 290,745 17.62%

*2020 457,301 865,813 1,323,114 80.20%

Total 500,427 1,149,400 1,649,827 100%

* Includes current cycle billing



.FY20 Budget Updates



TOWN OF EXETER

MEMORANDUM

TO: Select Board

FROM: Town Manager

RE: FY20 Budget Deferrals
DATE: May 18, 2020

As you know, the FY20 budget was approved on March 10%. Just eight days later on
March 18", the Town Offices closed for public access and began to virtualize operations
in many ways. As the pandemic has unfolded, town departments have been considering
changes to their budgets in order to adjust to the possibility of revenues not materializing
as forecast. Although this is still an open question, we are attempting to make
adjustments to prepare for a worst case scenario. As the economy begins to reopen again,
it is unclear how this will impact certain revenue streams of the town, which are already
limited. Some revenue categories will likely be more stable than others. For example,
blue bag sales have increased. We expect more water to be used with people at home,
and therefore this could actually increase water/sewer revenues. However, it is important
to note the economic impact of the shutdown may not be felt until later this year, when
the second half tax billing goes out. The first half bill will be mailed soon with a due date
of July 1%,

The federal government may play a key role in filling the gaps on municipal
revenues as time goes on in the fiscal year. Various proposals have been made and if
these come to fruition it would greatly assist the town by confirming $938,000 in
combined meals and rooms tax distribution and general revenue sharing from the state of
NH. Without this federal involvement, it is unclear whether these revenues will arrive as
they have in the past. The general consensus is the state will be hard pressed to produce
these revenues, however localities are lobbying hard to work with the state to allocate
relief funds to municipalities that are tied to the impact of COVID, in addition to be a
“direct COVID expense.”

In local revenues, the town took a $55,000 hit compared to April 2019 with Town
Clerk’s office revenues. This was due to primarily people maintaining their vehicles, not
buying new vehicles, and not doing the brisk spring business we normally see with boat
registrations, etc.. As the Finance Director points out in her report, we are also now
likely to take a hit in interest income due to rates dropping as a result of the pandemic.
For all of these reasons, including the uncertainty ahead, we have compiled the list
attached to this memo. It should be noted that this is a draft, however many of the items
that represent a “freezing” such as certain new positions, reductions in
conference/travel/training, are already in place. These deferrals should assist us as we
navigate the uncharted waters ahead. The Town’s fiscal year ends on December 31*,
2020. It should also be noted that the expenses on the list were all vetted through the
budget process for FY20. Since the budget was already approved in March, these



expenses would simply not matenahze as actuals against current year appropriations,
which will help balance out revenue losses that may be part of the FY20 landscape.
There are seven months left in the fiscal year. Thank you.



STATE
3120

3185

3186

3187

3188

3220

3230

3351

3352

3353

3501

3502

3640

3912
3912
3912
3912
3916

ORG
01312000

01318500

01318600

01318700

01318800

01322000

01323000

01335100

01335200

01335300

01350100

01350200

01364000

01391200
01391200
01391200
01391200
01391600

OBIECT
43120

43121

43186

43187

43188

44000

44001

44306

44024

44025

44147

44209

44144

45009
45011
45017
45030
45015

Town of Exeter

Preliminary Revenue FY19 and Estimated Revenue FY20

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
Current Use Tax Revenue

Yield Tax Revenue

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Excavation Tax Revenue
Jeopardy Tax Revenue
Interest & Penalties

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees
Building Permits/Fees

Town Clerk & Other Feees
State Revenue Sharing
Meals/Rooms Tax

State Highway Block Grant
Wastewater Grant
Miscellaneous State Grant Revenues
Income from Departments
Sale of Town Property Other

Interest Income-Fund 01

Town Rental/Misc Income

NH Charitable Foundation

Transfer In-Swasey Pkwy Funds
Transfer In EMS Rev Fund-30
Transfers in from Great Dam
Transfers In- Court St Bridge
Transfer In TTTF

Transfers In/Excess Bond Proceeds

Use of Fund Batance
Total Revenue

MS-434 R Preliminary Actual
Revised YTD Revenue Estimated FY20
Estimated 12/31/19 Revenue Variance
7,500 7,500 7,500 -
5,400 5,396 5,400 -
41,304 43,435 43,435 {2,131)
500 452 500 -
1,500 1,841 1,500 -
155,000 181,007 180,000 {25,000)
3,025,000 3,080,092 3,080,000 {55,000)
425,000 448,561 350,000 ol
210,000 183,130 210,000 - -
158,990 158,980 .. = 158,980 -
779,375 779,375 779,375 -
311,502 311,037 311,502
16,421 16,421 16,421 {16,421)
24,306 46,273 25,000 {694)
1,000,000 1,076,701 1,075,000 {75,000)
132,250 132,250 50,000 -
100,000 114,470 115,000 {15,000}
25,397 32,017 27,500 {118)
1,985 1,982 2,000 . (2,000)
- 23,967 : :
239,121 220,857 204,669 e :
145,226 145,226 /18835
116,050 - Ll .82,081°
50,000 150,000 - . 150,000
550,437 540,051 . 455,585 -
700,000
$ 6955446 S 7,144,560 :§ 7,594,708 §




Potential FY20 Budget Deferrals

DRAFT

GENERAL FUND
Department Description Budget Impact
Town Manager Contract Services, Conferences/Training, Travel, PT Wages 8,150
Information Technology Expenses - deferments 26,020
Town Clerk Record Retention o 5,000
Economic Development Consulting, Education/Training, Interns 4,200
Planning/Building PT wages (hours reductions), supplies, travel reimbursement 31,246
Building Department Position vacancy (electrical inspector retirement) . 26,745
Conservation Commission FY20 seasonal interns 2,520
Police Department Defer hire officer position, PT admin position elimination, conferences, capital outlay 173,200
Fire/EMS FC retirement, Defer hire Asst Chief, conf/room/meals reduction, EOC upgrade 174,579
DPW - Administration Defer hire Engineering Tech, Conf/Room/Meals Reduction 60,000
DPW - Highway Road Paving, Sidewalks/Curbing, Tamarind Lane culvert 238,000
DPW - Highway Hampton Road Beacon 7,000
DPW - Snow/Ice Budget General Reduction (will need to rely on snow/ice deficit fund) 9,700
DPW - Solid Waste Eliminate Fall Collection - Leaves 7,868
DPW - Stormwater Contract Services 6,000
DPW - Maintenance Defer hire of HVAC Plumber Tech 65,000
DPW - Garage Defer hire of Mechanic 67,000
DPW - Maintenance Reduction in Projects Budget 50,000
Parks/Recreation Fireworks/Summer Concerts 17,000
Parks/Recreation Senior Services (senior programming reduction due to pandemic), equipment/mower, landscaping 9,650
Library T8D 988,878
Warrant Articles
DPW General Fund Sedan Replacement - Warrant Article 24,000
Parks/Recreation General Mini Loader 58,000
DPW General Fund Sidewalks CRF Appropriation 60,000
Public Safety Public Safety Radio System Upgrade 78,792
DPW General Fund Pickpocket Dam 110,000
330,792
Totals 1,319,670
DPW Water Fund General Expenses/Capital Outlay 200,000
DPW Sewer Fund General Expenses/Capital Outlay 200,000

Positions include benefits reductions




4/20/2020 Town of Exeter, MH Main - 202 Covid-19 Budget projection

Russ Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov>

2020 Covid-19 Budget projection

1 message

Greg Bisson <gbisson@exeternh.gov> Mon, Apr 20, 2020 at 11:29 AM
To: Russell Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov>

Hi Russ,

Having gone through all of the anticipated revenue we would lose if summer and spring are cancelled, We are looking at
a 74% reduction in total revenue and a 70% reduction in total expenses in the entire year. This is a prime example
losing our summer would drastically hamper the departments revolving. Not only is it our largest season for revenue but
also carries the largest expenses. The numbers for spring were drastically lower than the past spring due the pandemic
hitting weeks before our deadline in which we get a majority of our registrations. We did purchase enough uniforms and
equipment for spring in case the season can be salvaged. If the season is cancelled, We will use this equipment next
year. The silver lining is without the proegrams, there isn't much expenses. Some of the expenses we will still need to pay
will be water, etc.

Income: $511,882.73-Projected prior to the Pandemic ($241,958.76 in camp registration fees already collected,
$264,622.18 total revenue that would need to be refunded).

Spring Sports

Summer Camps

Pool Operations

Trips

Expenses:$454,976.57-Projected privr to Pandemic.
Staff/Contractors

Equipment supplies

Pool Supplies

Smaller Projects

Greg Bisson
Director
Exeter Parks and Recreation

Follow us!

BE

h:!ps:h'mail.gocgle.com/maiI,‘qu‘?ik=d.:ec2536f3&':iew=pt&se.-:-;rch=a|I&perm:hidﬂhre-ad—f%'3A1664505964993920940&simpl=msg—f%3A16645059649... 171



Gilman Park Dogs Discussion



EXETER POLICE DEPARTMENT

Memorandum May 15, 2020

To:  Town Manager, Russ Dean
From: Chief Stephan Poulin

Ref:  Chapter 9 Animal Control (Gilman Park)

[ have met with our Animal Control Officer, Julia Doane, in reference to Chapter 9 of our
Town Ordinances (T.0.): Animal Control. I have also communicated with Exeter Parks
and Rec Director, Greg Bisson. Specifically, we have been researching the 910
prohibition of dogs in parks and commons with regards to section 910-c.: Gilman Park.
Furthermore, we have also reviewed the Conservation Easement Deed for the Park.

We believe that there is room for some modification of the Town Ordinances to dispel the
false notion that Exeter is not “dog friendly”. We could support that Gilman Park be
removed from T.0. 910. Dogs would therefore be allowed (still leashed under T.O. 902
and excrement removed under T.0. 908) to walk the Park and enter into the trails.

Proper signage and waste baskets should be erected.

However, with this comes a further discussion into the meaning of the confines of the
Park. Other Towns have Ordinances which prohibit dogs from playing fields, baseball
fields, and playground areas. With the expansion of the Park to accommodate a Gazebo
and playing areas for children etc. and to prevent future issues, we would suggest creating
aT.0 910.1. The wording of this new T.O. prohibiting dogs from ballfields,
playgrounds, or picnic areas can be worked out with further discussions as needed.

In addition, we would like to also note that we are aware that there are owners who are
looking for a place in Exeter to let their dogs run off leash. For this, ACO Doane has
been advising dog owners that if they are looking for a space to do that sort of activity, as
long as their dog is "under control" according to NH state law, than they can take their
dog to the WMA at Conner Farm- (but they must follow posted rules, which right now
requires leashes as it is nesting season). This seems to have been getting received well.



MEMORANDUM
DATE: Thursday, April 30, 2020
TO: Chief Poulin
FROM: ACO Doane

SUBJECT: Town Ordinance 910, Gilman Park Dog Restriction

The current town ordinance states that dogs are prohibited in parks and commons and lists several of
those parks/commons, one of which is Gilman Park. During a discussion on this issue with the Natural
Resource planner, it was brought to my attention that the Trustees had intentions of allowing dog
walking at Gilman Park when they conveyed the property to the Town and the easement to SELT.

It is my concern that the town has few easily accessible, mild terrain trails for dog walkers of all ages and
abilities to utilize that is off of the pavement and central to town. Safety is still of utmost importance
and leash laws should continue to be enforced. It is in my opinion that giving up a park for dogs to be
allowed may guide dog walkers to use that space whereas families with children or residents who are
concerned for dogs are able to utilize the other numerous parks in town where dogs are not allowed.

Currently, the property does not have signage educating residents or visitors on the current prohibition
of dogs. If it can be made clear to residents/visitors that dogs are prohibited from the playing fields then
it is my belief that we can find a happy middle ground for dog walkers seeking to utilize Gilman Park.



5/15/2020 Dogs in Gilman Park - rdean@exeternh.gov - Town of Exeter, NH Mail

Jennifer Perry
1o Jay, Stephan, me, Matt

FY1, we took the pet waste station down last week at the request of PD; having it there was inconsistent with the ordinance.

My personal opinion is it depends cn how responsible pet owners are picking up after their pets. [f they clean up, it shouldn't be a problem. If they don't, it could be a problem for either the
well or the surface water intake across the river

There are two protective areas around the well:

1. Sanitary Protective Area - provides a protective area in the immediate vicinity of the well within which there must be minimal risk of groundwater contamination. The SPA for
Gilman Well is a 400 foot radius. This is the area lhat requires most attention and vigitance and the area under consideration for the purposes of this discussion. It covers all
of the parking area and most of the park area.

2. Wellhead Protection Area - this is a wider area which generally includes the zone of influence. For Gilman well this is 4,000 foot radius. Not under discussion here.

For some background and general info on these areas see the NHDES links below:
hitos:/iwww.des. nh.goviorganization/commissioneripin/publicationsfwd/documentsiwellhead_Ssteps.pdt
hites:/Awww.des.nh, goviorganization/commissioner/pinfactsheats/dwgb/documents/dwgb-12-10.pdf

lennifer Royce Perry, P.E., Director

Exeter Public Works

13 Newfields Road

Exeter, NH 03833

{603) 773-6157

Enhancing, Preserving C ity & Envir

Like us on Facebook!

https://mall.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rmQ#search/jperry%40exeternh.gov/Qgrc) HsNISQdSvJDVzPktRBremCixgWRFh N



5/1/2020 Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Request to consider amending the town ordinance chapter 910¢ Prohibition in Parks and Commons/Gilman Park

Town g
of
- Exeter

Russ Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov>

Request to consider amending the town ordinance chapter 910c Prohibition in Parks

and Commons/Gilman Park
4 messages

dawn jelley <dawnjelley@msn.com> _ Thu, Apr 30, 2020 at 5:34 PM

To: "rdean@exeternh.gov" <rdean@exeternh.gov>

To the members of the Select Committee,

We write to ask that you consider amending the town ordinance chapter 910c
Prohibition in Parks and Commons/Gilman Park, to restrict but allow dogs in certain
areas of Gilman Park.

128 yeas ago Daniel and Minnie Gilman gifted the park and their wish for the park be
kept forever “for the enjoyment of the people of Exeter”, was recorded in the original
deeds.The easement reads:

"The Grantor shall not designate the Property or any portion of the Property primarily
for the benefit of, enjoyment by, and use by dogs".

In support of the easement we are not proposing that the park be primarily for dogs,
but they be allowed leashed and restricted to the trails, on the access road and boat
ramp. In all other areas dogs would continue to be prohibited.

We understand the concern about some residents failing to pick up their dog waste, but

by restricting dogs to the trails and having dog waste stations we believe that we can
limit this impact significantly whilst in support of the original gift being for the
enjoyment of the people of Exeter.

Thank you for your consideration

Dawn Jelley and Eric Downer
4 Nelson Drive

Exeter, NH 03833

603 608 5691

Russ Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov> Thu, Apr 30, 2020 at 5:43 PM

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=dcec2506{9&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1665434851249048852&simpl=msg-1%3A16654348512...

1/2



5/1/2020 Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Request to consider amending the town ordinance chapter 910¢ Prohibition in Parks and Commons/Gilman Park

To: Molly Cowan <mcowan@exeternh.gov>, Niko Papakonstantis <npapakonstantis@exeternh.gov>

FYl

We are already reviewing based on all the social media buzz on this. Police Animal Control and Parks Rec all involved.

Russ
[Quoted text hidden]

Russ Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov> Fri, May 1, 2020 at 7:03 AM

To: dawn jelley <dawnjelley@msn.com>
Good morning Dawn,
| will make sure this is in the Board's packet for their Monday night meeting.

The process will be to have some initial discussion around the issue, get some feedback/direction, then we will go from
there.

Thank you,

Russ
[Quoted text hidden]

dawn Jelley <dawnjelley@msn.com> Fri, May 1, 2020 at 7:35 AM

To: Russ Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov>

Thank you Russ.
I look forward to hearing how the discussion goes.
Kindness

Dawn

From: Russ Dean <rdean@exeternh.gov>

Sent: Friday, May 1, 2020 7:09 AM

To: dawn jelley <dawnjelley@msn.com>

Subject: Re: Request to consider amending the town ordinance chapter 910c Prohibition in Parks and
Commons/Gilman Park

[Quoted text hidden)

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=dcec2506f9&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1665434851249048852&simpl=msg-f%3A16654348512...

2/2



Ms. Reichlin also thanked the UNH Cooperative Extension Service for their compilation and
analysis of the survey. She noted a Harris Poll was also included in the packet, to be used for
comparison. One of the most requested items of youth was a skateboard park, noting no area in
town for skating to take place. The Youth Coalition will be discussing these results further with
participants at their dinner Wednesday evening, November 20th, with approximately 55 people
attending, many of whom participated in the "Profile’ program during 1989-90. Mr. Scafidi
thanked both for attending, and for the information.

6. i Park i end Ordinance "Prohibition in Parks and
Commons" | ‘

Mr. Scafidi read a letter from Joanna Pellerin, Trustee, noting a quorum of Trustees recently
voted to recommend an amendment to the Dog Ordinance, striking "Gilman Park - off Bell Ave-
nue". The Trustees feel residents of Exeter should be free to walk their dogs in the Park and on
its trails, so long as they uphold article 908 of the ordinance which requires they clean up after
their dogs.

Douglas Dicey, also a Trustee, noted he was absent from that meeting (budget meeting), so the
vote was not unanimous from Trustees. He noted if this is changed, requests to remove all parks
from the list will be received. Gilman Park has basketball courts and baseball fields and he does
not recommend the removal of the Park from the list.

No action by the Board.

7. Amendments to Personnel] Plan.

Ms. Stanley Jones, Chairman of the Personnel Committee, asked if the Board had any comments
regarding the amendments proposed at the last meeting. Barbara Blenk noted one addition to 7.7
"Appointments", adding the word 'final' to the second sentence prior 'verification'.

Mr. Williams moved to approve the amendments, as presented, to sections 4.3 through 12.5;
second by Mr. Binette. VOTE: Unanimous.

Ms. Stanley Jones proceeded to read the proposed amendments to sections 13.1(d) through 17.3(c)
(attached). Second and final reading will be next week.

8. Request to proclaim the third Monday in January "Martin Luther King Jr.. Day" in Exeter.

Discussion on this item is postponed at the request of the sponsor, to a later date.

0. Wheelwright [anding Condominium Association - request to have roadway plowed.

Jeff Rondeau, President of the Association, presented a lay-out of the cul-de-sac, located at the
end of Downing Court. He noted the Town plows, when reaching the end of Downing Court and
unable to turn around, lift their blades and continue through the cul-de-sac. The Association



Conrected — 12/02/96

8. Changes to Elderly Tax Exemption statutes.

John DeVittori, Town Assessor, reported on a new State law replacing the existing four local
choices of Elderly Tax Exemptions (standard, expanded, adjusted and optional adjusted) with one
unified Elderly Exemption law. Every municipality must readopt an Elderly Exemption provision
before January 1, 1998 or the base minimum values set by the State will take effect (incomes of
$13,400 for singles; $20,000 for married couples and a $35,000 asset limitation).

He noted the main change is that all income will be treated equally, noting Social Security income
will no longer be excluded. His recommendation would be for the Town to adopt an income level
(higher than that proposed by the State) by adding the Social Security level to Exeter’s current
levels of income, with the asset level remaining at $50,000. This would allow Exeter to keep the
exemptions as close as possible to the status quo and complying with the new law without impact-
ing the total valuation of the Town. If these changes are agreed to, the Board of Selectmen would
have Town Counsel review wording for the Town Meeting warrant. If approved at the Town
Meeting, it would become effective with the November, 1997 tax bill.

Mr. Rowe suggested postponing a decision in order to study and further discuss the matter. He
suggested revisiting it at a January meeting.

9. " Request from Gilman Park Trustees to amend Ord. 910 "Prohibition in Parks & Commons:

Joanna Pellerin noted a November 1st meeting of Gilman Park Trustees, with them receiving
letters from dog owners requesting the Park be eliminated from the list of parks banning dogs.
She noted Gilman Park is a natural pass for trails along the River. With 3 of 5 Trustees present,
all three voted for the change and requested same from the Board. They met again last week and
four of five present voted in the affirmative to support this request. She noted there is always
trouble with residents and loose dogs and not cleaning up after same. This is a request to allow
leashed dogs in the Park, with responsible owners 'scooping. Those that don't - won't.

Mr. Williams asked if the Trustees had considered this in other Parks. Ms. Pellerin noted they
were Trustees for Gilman Park only; asking only for Gilman Park and a trial basis. Mr. Rowe
felt a 'can of worms' would be opened, with residents visiting all parks requesting the same. Ms.
Stanley Jones was impressed with the residents requesting the change and the Trustees asking per-
mission from the Board. Ms. Pellerin suggested that if Gilman Park is handled the same as other
Parks, then why have Trustees? Ms. Stanley Jones noted the Town has Trustees and they have
made a recommendation - why not listen?

Douglas Dicey stated if it is allowed in one park, you should allow in all parks. Gilman Park has
Trustees but the Parks & Recreation Department runs it.

Ms. Pellerin asked the Board to listen to the majority of the Trustees and to eliminate the refer-
ence to Gilman Park in the ordinance.



Conrected ~ 12/02/96

Martha Pennell, a new Trustee, noted that a lack of a second negates the powers of the Trustees
and questioned why the Town would have them. If the Park is not run by the Board of Trustees -
why should they meet? Mr. Scafidi noted this point will be visited. Ms. Pennell stated the

Trustees are called for in the will.

10.

a.

b.

c.

d
second Wilhams. V E: U

1.  To er's Ite ’

a. The Town's offices are closed on Thursday and Friday this week for observance of
Thanksgiving Day. He reminded residents that car registrations for November should be
completed by Wednesday, as December 1st is a Sunday and the offices are closed Friday.

b. Plodzik & Sanderson have sent their engagement letter for handling the Town's audit. Mr.
Rowe noted they had reported a savings would be seen with the acquisition of a Finance
Dlrector L@ B @ med the Tom; Mg;m p_egg_u_ﬂ with the finm for a lower price

ased on i nd b iams. pANIMOUS.

c. There will be a public hearing on December 2 beginning at 6:30PM for the purpose of dis-
cussing the Exeter Development Commission's petition for a proposed conditional layout of
a Class V highway for a portion of Garrison Lane to intersect with Epping Road per NH
RSA 231:28. The meeting will be in the Nowak Room.

d. COAST will hold a public hearing on fare increases on December 3 at 6:30PM in the

Nowak Room.



MICHAEL J. DONAHUE
CHARLES F. TUCKER
ROBERT D. CIANDELLA
LIZABETH M. MacDONALD
JOHN J. RATIGAN

ROBERT M. DEROSIER
SCOTT E. WOODMAN

January 14,

Board of Selectmen LT =
Town of Exeter ’
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

Re: Gilman Park

DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
WATER STREET PROFESSIONAL BUILDING TowN VANASERS |11
TER STREET 0 orrs \
225 WA =
NECEIVEL
P.0. BOX 630
EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03833-0630
TELEPHONE
JAN L1 4997 6037780686
FAX
e a0 603-772-4454
TOLL FREE
800-566-0506
['7‘é2ZZ:—-ﬂazLZZézdkziaﬁsZiﬁi¥ﬂéf//
l

L

Pl et e o

A

Dear Board Members:

The Trustees of Gilman Park have engaged me to look into the
situation of who actually has control over activities within
Gilman Park, the issue being raised by the controversy over the
presence of dogs in the Park.

I have looked at the original Deed, the Minutes of the
Trustees, as they exist, and have caused to be examined the
Minutes of the Town Meetings of the Town of Exeter since 1891,
before the Park was deéded to the Trustees.

The first mention of this Park is in the 1891 Town Meeting
wherein, in March 1891, the Town voted “to accept with gratitude
the gift of Daniel Gilman upon conditions named by him”. More
than one year later, on July 12, 1892, Daniel Gilman deeded the
Park to five private individuals “and their successors in the
Trust hereinafter mentioned”. The Trust provides that the land
“shall always be used exclusively as a public park”. Although
the original intention may have been to deed it to the Town, as
reflected in the Town Meeting vote, that was not done. It was
deeded instead to five individuals as Trustees and those
Trustees, by provision in the Deed, are self-perpetuating.
Neither the Board of Selectmen nor the Town Meeting have any
control over who those Trustees are (unlike the Swasey Parkway
Trustees, for example).



Board of Selectmen 2 January 14, 1997
Town of Exeter

The Trustees, as you know, have a very small trust fund, the
income of which is used toward maintenance of the Park. Early
on, improvements to the Park were funded by the Trustees, by
private subscription, and by the Town. In recent years the care
and maintenance of the Park has been largely paid for and
provided by the Town Parks & Recreation Department, and in turn,
the Town Parks & Recreation Department has used the Park for
organized activities, particularly baseball.

I find no vote of the Trustees turning the Park over to the
Town of Exeter, nor do I find any vote of the Town of Exeter
taking over the Park. Any recent confusion about who has
Jjurisdiction cover the Park has happened gradually and without
benefit of official minutes.

The Trustees of the Park have instructed me to inform you
that there is no problem with the current arrangement insofar as
the Trustees permitting the Town Parks- & Recreation Department to
utilize the Park in return for the Town Parks & Recreation
Department’s maintenance of the facilities it has created and
uses.

~ The Park is not, however, subject to the Town ordinance
regarding dogs in public parks because this is a private Trust
held for the benefit of the public and is not at all unusual in/
this status. The Trustees are not elected by Town Meeting nor
appointed by the Selectmen, they are self-perpetuating. /

Qur conclusion is, therefore, that the Park is private
property, open to the public, and that the Trustees have sole
control over whether dogs are permitted or not in the Park and.
under what conditions. | This is not an item that is subject to
control by the Board of Selectmen. On the other hand, the
Trustees of the Park wish to be completely reasonably about all/
of this and suggest, as a compromise, that the Trustees will, in;
turn, forbid dogs on the baseball field, the basketball court, ;
and in the playground equipment area, while allowing leashed dogs
in other areas of the Park which are not subject to intensive use/
by the public.

In a spirit of cooperation, the Trustees would like to work
out a Memorandum of Understanding with the Selectmen and the
Department of Parks & Recreation to outline who shall bear
responsibility for what within the Park.



Board of Selectmen 3 January 14, 1997
Town of Exeter

The Trustees would be pleased to appear before the Board of
Selectmen at any time to discuss this further.

Very truly yours,

DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA

C:?”2~— f?:”vi—*t—”’

Charles F. Tucker

CFT:blo

cc: Douglas Dicey, Trustee and Dept. of Parks & Recreation
George Olson, Town Manager
Joanna Pellerin, Chairman, Trustees of Gilman Park
Harry Thayer, III, Trustee of Gilman Park
Peter Smith, Treasurer, Trustees of Gilman Park
Martha Pennell, Trustee of Gilman Park



Mr. Williams asked if a vote was taken would it be to authorize the signing of a $156,000
contract, even though there is only $61,000 in the budget to do the work? Answer: Yes.

Mrs. Jones asked if the reason for signing a $156,000 contract was because of the need to submit
a grant application to the State for the full amount of the work? Answer: Yes in large part.

Mr. Binette questioned authorizing the signing of the agreement prior to approval of the budget.
Answer: Need to do flow monitoring in April, the month with the greatest rainfall. If the budget
fails there will be a recommendation that the money be taken from sewer reserves.

Mr. Williams asked why the authorization could not wait until after the vote on April 87 Answer:
Too much of April will be lost for monitoring purposes. The full month of April is the standard
period used in such studies.

Moved by Mrs. Jones, second by Mr. Binette, to authorize the Town Manager to enter into a
contract with Camp, Dresser and McKee, in the amount of $156,000 to undertake the preparation
of a Sewer Facilities Study, with the understanding the work will be done in phases, the first to
cost $61,000, and that no subsequent phases would be undertaken until the required funds are

budgeted.

Mr. Binette asked why the first phase of the project could not be funded out of reserves? Mr.
Noyes responded that was an option.

Chairman Scafidi noted that while there is money in the Sewer reserve, an attempt is being made
to build the reserves so that future improvements can be made without effecting rates. So while
there is money in the reserves to do the work, spending the money now will have an impact in
the long run.

Mr. Jones noted that a portion of the $156,000 was to come from other than the sewer utility
budget. How much of the total amount? Mr. Noyes responded with a ballpark fi gure of between
$30,000 and $50,000.

Chairman Scafidi called for a vote. Mr. Rowe asked that the motion be read once again. SO
VOTED.

5. Memorandum of Understanding with Gilman Park I'nﬁgg

Chairman Scafidi introduced the topic noting the importance of the facility as a recreation site and
the need to come to some agreement with the Gilman Park Trustees to insure the continued public
use of the Park.

Mr. Rowe stated that he thought that Attorney Tucker's letter associated with the matter was well
written and could be used as the basis for working out an agreement.



Mr. Williams expressed concern over the public use of private property, and the Town spending
money to maintain the property.

Chairman Scafidi asked Jody Pellerin of the Gilman Park Trustees to come forward and explain
the issue from the Trustee's perspective. Ms. Pellerin stated that the Park was not private
property, rather it is land held in a charitable trust for the use of the public. She noted that at the
1891 Town Meeting the Town voted to accept the use of the land, not the land itself, Over the
past 100 plus years the Trustees have used the income from the trust to make repairs and
improvement to the Park. The Town has also maintained and improved the park. The need at this
time is for the Town and the Trustees to work out a memorandum of understanding describing
their respective responsibilities.

Mr. Williams asked if he bought a building for the use of the elderly and tumed it into a
charitable trust would it be legal for the Town to maintain it? Ms. Pellerin answered that it would
if Town Meeting approved it. Mr. Williams asked that Mr. Olson consult with counsel on this
matter.

Mrs. Jones thanked Ms. Pellerin and the members of the Trustees for coming forward and
explaining the situation and clarifying the issue.

Mr. Binette noted that this was a matter that could not be handled in 5 minutes. He suggested that
the Board and the Trustees sit down and see if an agreement can be worked out.

Chairman Scafidi asked if the Board wished to take this matter up as a whole or to create a
committee to look into the matter. The Board members agreed that they would all like to
participate in the discussion at a future work session with the Trustees. Mr. Williams suggested
that Town counsel be present at the work session. Ms. Jones did not agree and felt that spending
$125/hr to have counsel present to sit and listen to the discussion was not appropriate.

Chairman Scafidi asked the Gilman Trustees if such a meeting could be arranged. All agreed that
it was a good idea. A meeting date will be set after the April elections. It was noted that Park
and Recreation Director Dicey will be invited to the meeting.

6. Meeting with Swasey Parkway Trustees - Maintenance of Parkway

Chairman Scafidi outline the issue noting a memorandum from Town Manager Olson on the
matter. He suggested that the same process used above to get the Board and the Gilman Trustees
together be used in this instance to work out responsibilities. All agreed that this was a good idea
and that a work session date will be set.

7. Explanation of $100,000 cut from budget at February 10th meeting.

Chairman Scafidi noted that Mr. Rowe had asked that this matter be placed on the agenda and
turned to Mr. Rowe.



BOARD OF SELECTVEN WORK SESSION &/3/2‘7 .JUNEé 1997

[0v/N CLERK'S OFFICE
Chairman Scafidi convened the Board in a work session on the above date at 6:30PM.
PRESENT: Paul Scafidi, Wendy Stanley Jones, Amy Bailey, Paul Binette and Robert Rowe.
Also present: George Olson, Town Manager, Jody Pellerin, Peter Smith, Harry Thayer III and
Douglas Dicey, all from the Gilman Park Trustees.

Mr. Scafidi went on to explain the purpose of the meeting was to begin the process toward an
agreement between the Town and Trustees pertaining to who does what and who 1s responsible
for what at the Park.

Ms. Pellerin included copies of a draft Memorandum of Understanding, the original deed, copy
of their By-laws and conveyance.

Mr. Thayer asked the Board who has control over the Park. Mr. Scafidi noted that's why every-
one was present. It appears the Park is wholly subsidiary of itself, based on results of the 1891
Town Meeting, and not the Town, thereby the Trustees are in charge. Jody noted that, as a
Charitable Trust, it is run by a Board of Trustees. All concurred.

Mr. Smith stated the Trustees manage the Park for the Town; Mr. Scafidi corrected him by
stating it's not the Town's Park: they manage the Park for the Trust for use by the townspeople.
Mr. Smith asked about liability, noting two attorneys have stated the Town could provide; one
other stated he was "not sure”". Two individuals have resigned due to lack of clarity and did not
wish to be held personally liable.

Ms. Pellerin noted Town equipment has been installed in the Park and expressed concern over
Town equipment being in a private park. Mr. Rowe thought this was to be run by Town
Counsel. Mr. Olson noted Attorney Tucker's letter had been shared and Town Counsel
concurred. He will send the draft memo of understanding and check on the insurance liability
issue.

Mr. Dicey stated the Town has put over $175,000 in the Park over the years, with ballfields,
boat ramp, volleyball court, basketball courts and maintaining the road. Mr. Smith clarified that
the Trust has provided funds for maintaining the road, as well as given funds to Friends of
Recreation.

Mr. Scafidi proceeded to review the Memorandum of Understanding (copy attached):
1. Add pump house and boat ramp. Mr. Olson suggested some "legal language” be added

to cover the ballfields, so future Boards couldn't sub-divide the land (town fencing sur-
rounding private land);

12

Currently the department only drafts and pumps engines. Mr. Scafidi asked whether this
would including erecting a building and burning it down. Mr. Thayer noted it has not.

J

This clarifies who does what and informs all about the existence of the easement.



4. Mr. Thayer suggested eliminating "sports" in order to include any type of activity. Mr.
Binette suggested adding "Town" before "Department of Parks and Recreation”. It was
noted the Department has been doing this function for years and is not a new duty.

5. Mr. Binette asked for copies of minutes be forwarded to the Board also, thereby all will
know what is being planned. ~Add to line: "...as a courtesy, copies of minutes of meet-
ings be provided to the Board of Selectmen." Ms. Bailey noted a copy should also be
sent to the Recreation Department, as they track activities, they should be aware of the

Park's 'goings-on".

Clarification of "activity" was explained. It does not mean a few people getting together for
pick-up basketball and a picnic. It means large groups (i.e. church groups, organizations,
businesses) announcing an event and conducting it at the Park. Scheduling helps avoid two
groups attempting to use facilities at the same time.

6. Mr. Smith noted they may only spend the interest on the principle - currently at just
under $20,000.

The Town will:

1. Okay as written.

2 It was noted this has not always been done and the Trustees have been surprised at some
projects that have appeared (i.e. volleyball court was to be a parking lot).

3 This provides the Trustees with an outlook for the year. It allows long-range planning,
Change 'it's" to "the Town's" and add "for the coming year" to the end of the sentence.

4. Change "it's" to "the Town's". Ms. Pellerin stated Mr. Dicey currently provides these

statistics.

Mr. Olson will research this issue.

This 1s being done and will continue.

o i

Signature lines will be added to the final copy for all involved to sign.

Mr. Dicey stated he still is opposed to allowing dogs in the park, noting an increasing problem
with maintaining the facilities. The Trustees are continuing to address this. Mr. Dicey noted if
they are allowed to continue in the park, his department may not maintain it.

Mr. Olson will inform the Board of the results of discussions with Town Counsel re the memo
and with NHMA Property-Liability Trust concerning the liability issue.

M. Jones moved to adjourn the work session; second by Mr. Binette. VOTE: Unanimous.
Time: 7:08PM.

Respectfully submitted,

/:
Barbara A. Blenk

Admin. Asst/H. R. Dir.

/



DRAFT
5/27/97

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
Between the
TRUSTEES OF GILMAN PARK
and the
BOARD OF SELECTMEN, EXETER, NH

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Trustees
of Gilman Park, a charitable trust created by Daniel and Minnie
Gilman in July of 1892, and the Selectmen of the Town of Exeter
representing the citizens of Exeter for whose enjoyment the
park and the trust were created.

Recognizing the need to join together in the interest of
administering Gilman Park according to the wishes of the Gilmans,
and to clarify the roles of Trustees and Town officials, we

the Trustees of Gilman Park and the Board of Selectmen enter
into this MOU concerning the operation of the park.

It is understood that the Trustees of Gilman Park will:

1. recognize that all existing athletic installations named
below are town property.
a. two ball fields Wew touse
b. one basketball court Boar 2ame
c. one volley ball court
d. miscellaneous playground equipment

2. accept the use of the park by the Exeter Fire Department
for certain practice activities.

3. recognize and record for future trustees the town's
water main easement.
TOWN S
4. recognize that the,Department of Parks and Recreation
is the coordinator for organized spexts activities in
the park.

5. prepare a report annually for inclusion in the Town
Report, s as A cowetesy, (fonde copy % Minvtes e% Mc—efmqs 1 Boant %Seled{ym,

6. oversee their trust fund and make disbursements as they
see fit.



It is understood that the Town will:

1. recognize that Gilman Park is held in charitable trust
by its trustees for the pleasure of the public in
accordance with the wishes of Daniel and Minnie Gilman
as stated in their deed to the original trustees on
July 8, 1892 and further that the trustees have the final
decision in all matters concerning the park.

2. maintain its facilities and equipment in the park in
consultation with the trustees.
+HheTown's
3. through its Director of Parks and Recreation, at the
beginning of each year, provide the trustees a written
proposal for its use of the park,fortie camirg yesr.
Jho un's
4, through i¥s Director of Parks and Recreation, at the
end of each year, provide the trustees a written report
of its use of the park including a tabulation of numbers
and categories of use.

5. carry adequate liability insurance specifically naming
Gilman park and the trustees.

6. through its Police Department, periodically patrol the
park for security purposes.

Sigrahwe. s [dale



Mr. Olson reported the Town is notified when those upstream are opening their dams but is not
aware of policies of when they do this and for how long it is done. He noted Rockingham
County received word of a flood warning Sunday afternoon.

Ms. Bailey stated this last rain was heavy and questioned whether it was heavier than normal and
into the 150 year flood plan? Mr. Olson reported 5-8" which was less than half of what received
in October, 1996, though the Governor declared disaster areas throughout the seacoast. He
equated this to probably a 100 year storm.  One issue involved was how low the river can go in
order to continue pumping from the Gilman Park pump.

Arthur Baillargeon noted, back when the Mill was in operation, when the river was high those at
the Mill opened the gate. They viewed the measure gauge at the gate site. Mr. Olson noted the
Town has raised at the 'warning' level; policy change following this weekend now calls for
raising at the 'watch' level.

0. te on treet Commons - J. Reichlin.

Joanne Reichlin, Ad Hoc member, reported a meeting of the Court Street Commons to be held on
Wednesday, July 8 beginning at 7:00PM at the Court Street building. She noted the phrase
"Community Center" has come up and many have expressed an interest. The meeting is open to
the public. The Committee requested a representative of the Exeter Selectmen be present. Ms.
Bailey will attend.

10.  Gilman Park Trustees - Lease Agreement. |

A proposed Lease Agreement to the Town has been received from the Gilman Park Trustees'
attorney. Mr. Olson suggests it being passed on to Town Counsel for review and comment.

Jody Pellerin noted the Lease stems from the Memorandum of Understanding brought before the
Board last year. The lease details responsibilities of all involved and nothing new has been
added.

Mr. Scafidi questioned Item 6 A & B regarding removal of fireplaces. Were these constructed
by the Town? Ms. Pellerin assumed so. Mr. Dicey (present in the audience) noted they were
there when he was hired 27 years ago. Ms. Pellerin noted the Trustees do not want the respon-
sibility of them now.

Ms. Bailey asked if the Trustees own the land and what type of Trust Funds are available? Ms.
Pellerin noted yes and the fund provides enough for very small projects.

Mr. Binette asked how soon the Agreement must be enacted, noting his wish to hear Mr. Rowe's
concerns and he was not present this evening.

V. Bailey moved to pass the Agreement along to Town Counsel and to retum comments and
recommendations to the Town Manager; second by Mr. Binette. VOTE: Unanimous.



Town Manager's Office
Frank Addario

3 Gory Lane A 42020
Exeter, NH 03833 Received

To:

Niko Papakonstantis
Daryl Browne

Molly Cowan

Julie D. Gilman

Lovey Roundtree Oliff

Dear Select Board:

I am writing to you today regarding the recent announcements prohibiting dogs at Gilman Park.
My wife and I have owned our home on Gary Lane for 47 years. Raised 2 daughters and have
enjoyed all that Exeter offers.

My wife works in mental health and uses an American Certified Therapy Dog in her practice.
The dog, with proper exercise and training, provides comfort, stress relief, and a variety of
positive behavioral examples for her young clients. A lifetime ago I taught High School in
Amesbury and then entered into business.

I have been in contact with Russ Dean, Julia Doane, and Chief Poulin regarding the no dog
ordinance in place for Gilman Park. We have discussed the easement that is in place that states
the park cannot be used “primarily” for the benefit of dogs. We have all agreed that a
“secondary” use could be dogs, other sports, picnic area, etc. We have also agreed that if the
ordinance could be changed to allow dogs, perhaps a portion of the park could house a fenced
“dog park” where dogs could run and play unleashed. A park similar to PEA’s dog park across
from their football stadium would be ideal. Unfortunately, that dog park doesn’t allow town
residents.

It is my understanding that for an ordinance change to be successful we would need, a majority
of the Select Board to be in favor with 3 readings, and public input.

I hope this matter can find it’s way to your agenda. I have attached an ariel view of the park
indicating a suggested area for a dog park.

I hope this matter can find it’s way to your agenda so that we can change to park ordinance.

Thank you for your consideration.

Frank Addario



Hictory

Imagery Date: 5/4/2018  42°58723.35° N 70°56:37.31° W elev  26ift

ere to search a8 W7 E ‘_ d "ril X1 W @ H @ Q c} A o de Q) E




Frank Addario
5 Gary Lane
Exeter, NH 03833

Exeter Select Board

10 Front Street

Exeter, NH 03833

DEEEE - TR EE

4 vk~ F o i .
Ly rey gt et s A A T "'»%_;".;,
SOEETOEE P8 OOl E e
i
ek p
. e b R
Pt i 4 R

ll'll'illlllll"l'll!l,,'ll]l’l!"l"l'l"'l!!'lii"l}ll'll'll]ll




~ COVID 19 Updates




EXETER PARKS & RECREATION &FE

E BECHEATHIN:

32 COURT STREET * EXETER, NH « 03833 ¢ (603) 773-6151 *www.exeternh. gov

TOWN OF EXETER
MEMORANDUM

TO: Russ Dean, Town Manager

CC: Eric Wilking, Fire Chief
James Murry, Health Officer
Melissa Roy, Assistant Director
David Tovey, Recreation Coordinator

FROM: Greg Bisson, Director of Parks and Recreation
RE: Reopening proposal parks, programs and facilities
DATE: 05/15/2020

REOPENING PROPOSAL
PARKS, PROGRAMS & FACILITIES

*This is a living document and is subject to change as more information becomes available and
restrictions change*

There are many unknowns at this time and the data on COVID-19 is changing daily. Currently, guidance
from the Governor of NH, the CDC, and the American Camping Assaciation regarding summer camps
and other recreational programming have not been updated to reflect the current COVID-19

-environment. In order to draft this proposal the Exeter Parks & Recreation staff reviewed draft
guidelines released from the CDC regarding summer camps, obtained other states updated guidelines,
as well as read the current childcare guidelines from the CDC for centers providing emergency care. In
addition the staff has been actively participating in national, regional and local webinars, conference
calls, individual calls and activity specific education updates from experts in the field to gather the most
relevant and accurate information. We expect direction from the State of NH, NRPA, the CDC and the
American Camping Association soon.

While we are not able to anticipate all the variables impacting the reopening of parks, programs and
facilities, it is important to have a comprehensive plan to guide the Department through upcoming
months and year. As this is a living document, the following are recommendations which could change
at any time if new guidelines are released by the State of New Hampshire or local Town officials. Dates

DRAFT 5/14/2020 1



provided below are approximations and may be modified to follow any guidance from local health and
Town officials. Availability of necessary equipment and supplies such as hand sanitizer, hand soap and
other PPE requirements will need to be considered before finalizing any decision.

Proposed Three Step Opening
Stage One - Parks, Tennis Courts, Green Spaces and Trails - Reopen early to mid - May 2020

Trails and Green Spaces .

While some parks and trails are already open, the Town needs to ensure that proper signage and
equipment is available at each location for the safety of all users. With a staggered approach, parks can
be opened based on their specific amenities and when park users have the ability to maintain
social/physical distancing.

Parks
Gilman Park, Brickyard Park, Townhouse Park, Recreation Park would remain open for passive

recreation.

Tennis/ Pickleball €
The courts could be opened with proper signage and strict rules. No doubles allowed and only 2 people
per court. Players must bring their own, marked balls and equipment.

Stage TWO - Athletic Fields and Recreation Building - Reopen mid June - Early July 2020

Athletic Fields

Athletic field usage needs to adhere to the Governor's executive orders regarding group sizes, capacity
issues and access to enough space to ensure proper physical distancing. These locations often include
high touch areas such as bleachers or dugouts and typically see people congregating after games. Fields
present challenges such as limited staff on site during use, lack of enforcement of social distancing and
the cost of daily sanitizing of high touch areas.

The stay at home order issued by the Governor effectively closed athletic fields to events and programs
until mid to late June at which time the Town will need to review the most current executive orders and
decide if it is safe to allow usage. Any usage would be reserved for local organizations only and not
include seasonal sports leagues that could attract individuals from out of state.

R ion Buildi
The Recreation building should remain closed to the general public and discontinue renting to outside
organizations groups to protect the staff. Staff would return on a rotating basis to limit the number of
people in the office at one time. Each staff member should stay as far away from each other as
applicable. Staff not in the office would work remotely. Full time Recreational staff would be allocated to
run boutique programs making it difficult to offer any rentals at this time.

Indoor spaces need to adhere to the Governor’s orders regarding groups size, capacity issues and
proper physical distancing. Limit use of the building to Recreation Staff and Recreation programming

DRAFT 5/14/2020 2



only. Clean immediately after any program or when necessary close down the space until it has been
cleaned.

Baske u

Basketball Courts at the Recreation Park should be opened for summer camp with oversight from
Summer Camp Staff ensuring appropriate social distancing. For public use of the courts after summer
camp the Town needs to post signage and rules restricting one person/family on each court. Participants
must bring their own equipment. No basketball games allowed shooting practice only.

Stage Three- Playgrounds and Senior Center - Reopen Dates To Be Determined

Playground
All Town playgrounds should remain closed until the CDC, State and Local officials feel it is safe. The

Town does not have the capacity to sanitize these elements daily. The federal guidelines issued
playgrounds closed until Phase 4 of the reopening America plan.

Senior Center
Continue to limit use of the Senior Center to Meals on Wheels only no facility rentals. Re-evaluate in
August 2020.

Special Programs & Events
Summer Concert Series

Under the current State guidelines, the Summer Concert Series would be difficult/impossible to offer
this summer. Most bands themselves would exceed the allowable group size of 10 people. If limits on
group sizes are increased, the concerts could continue if social distancing could be maintained. A grid
system could be painted in front of the band stand to ensure proper distancing. Another option to
consider is holding the concerts offsite to create drive experience for the concerts in which patrons
would stay in their cars per drive in regulations and listen to the music via the FM radio in their car. (see
drive in movies for further details)

Recommendation: Reformat/Reduce reducing the number of concerts down to 4.

Drive-l .
Drive-ins movies have made a resurgence as a new trend in the age of Covid-19 . These events can be
conducted using strict social distancing guidelines issued by the State of New Hampshire. The Parks and
Recreation Department has scouted several locations that could meet the regulations. Registration
would be required prior to the event ensuring enough capacity. Patrons would be required to stay in
their cars with 10’ between each car. Parks and Recreation staff would be on site wearing masks and
direct traffic as well as answering patron’s questions. Any food on site would be required to be brought
back to the cars for consumption. A limited amount of porta potties would be supplied. Reducing the
number of summer concerts would allow Recreation the ability to fund a drive-in movies series. We
could offer a double feature with our concerts or a stand alone movie series.

DRAFT 5/14/2020 3



Recommendation: Create
Eireworks:

Under the current State guidelines, the Fireworks would be impossible to hold this summer. We
recommend postponing the fireworks until September 2020 in hopes that social distancing is reduced,
and the crowd size allowed is larger. We could consider moving the fireworks to a location large enough
in which we could do a drive-in fireworks display. Unfortunately, this poses more problems than
solutions with limited parking, heavy traffic and lack of bathroom facilities.

Recommendation: Postpone/Cancel

Dan Healy Out (o]

The proposed CDC guidelines for pools create significant challenges. causing a massive financial loss
without opening the doors. Our swim lessons would be canceled this summer which are a major
contributor in revenue generation for the pool. Proposed guidelines require temperature checks of
patrons, limiting pool capacity, 6’ social distancing in and out of the water, masks to be worn while not
in the water and other restrictive measures. Meeting these guidelines would create unfavorable
conditions to open for both the patrons and staff. The pool program is subsidized each summer by
revenue produced from the summer camp, season passes, daily admissions, swim lessons and
concessions. Without some of these fees the pool program would stand to lose over $40,000 or more.
We did consider opening the pool for summer camp use only with an added fee to our camp parents but
the cost was too high when reviewed by parents.

Recommendation: Close for summer 2020.

Summer Camps

Summer Adventure Camp
Summer Adventure Camp should be considered if it meets regulations put forth by the Governor and

local officials, is financially viable for the Department and the State of New Hampshire has entered
Phase 2 according to the federal government's reopening plan. The proposed COVD-19 regulations make
it impossible to adhere to the original camp budget projected by staff in early 2020. The Department has
designed a new format for camp that is still affordable and safe for participants and staff. Summer
Camp of the past will be no longer for 2020.

In order to meet the proposed guidelines for COVID-19, Exeter Parks and Recreation would need to
reduce the number of campers from 350+ down to a min of 50 and max of 110. The reduction in camp
size is due to inadequate indoor space. Our survey results showed that having a rain or shine camp was
very important to parents. In order to provide enough space for the campers on rain days we will need
to split the kids up between the Recreation Building and the Town Hall. Under our proposed plan, we
would need to utilize the Exeter Town Hall and Exeter Parks and Recreation offices as sites for inclement
weather, both housing 50 and 60 campers respectively. These two locations would allow the
campers/staff to visit various parks such as Gilman Park, TownHouse Common, and Swasey Parkway, all
of which are large enough for us to practice social distancing. We could take more campers if we had

DRAFT 5/14/2020 4



access to the Tuck Learning Center, however, that is unavailable for us at this time. Access to schools
was one of the recommendations given to the task force by the New Hampshire Parks and Recreation
Association.

A camp of 50-110 campers would require the Town to hire 8-20 camp staff at a 10:1 ratio depending
upon final enrollment. The program needs a minimum of 50 campers to be financially solvent. Once we
have 50 campers then a waitlist will be kept until we have groups of 10 at which time we will take all 10
off the waitlist to create the next group. In order to bring enroliment down to 50-110 from 336 campers
we will first offer the revised program to all families that responded, “yes” to our survey stating they
still wanted to send their children to camp even with the restrictions and new fee(37 families). Then we
will hold a lottery for the families that responded “maybe” to fill any available spaces. If there is still
space available we will then open registration to any registered for camp.

We are recommending many new policies and procedures for summer 2020, which meet the current
guidelines set by the CDC for child care programs. These policies and procedures could change after the
Governor’s task force for reopening NH recommends regulations approved by DHHS to the Governor.

At this time the following policies and procedures would be instituted:

1

Camp staff would be required to get a covid-19 test 2 weeks prior to camp starting. Staff will
undergo their normal training (virtual or in-person) with additional training on our COVID-19
policies and procedures, as well as, camper mental health and behavioral management.

Camp will be open to students entering grades 1 through 7, Teen camp and aftercare will be
cancelled for this year.

Staggered drop off and pick up times for campers will limit exposure of staff and campers to the
individual families . Each group would be assigned a drop off/pick up time. Parents will arrive
and stay in their vehicle as a staff member greets them and assists their child(s) with a
screening process.

Screening for Staff and Campers: Everyone arriving at camp will have their temperature taken
and answer symptom screening questions. Parents will stay in their car and can not leave until
their camper(s) have gone through the screening process. Staff or campers will be sent home if
registering a temperature of 100.4 degree fahrenheit or higher. If symptoms are visible, staff or
camper(s) will be sent home.

Suspected/confirmed COVID-19: Exeter Parks & Recreation will follow guidelines set by the CDC
in regards to isolating someone who exhibits symptoms of COVID-19 (fever, difficulty breathing,
lack of smell, chills, cough). If there is a suspected case, we will natify parents, staff, and local
health officials, while maintaining confidentiality as required by the Americans with Disabilities
Act. If a camper or staff member is placed in our isolation area, caregivers will be contacted to
pick them up. Once they are picked up, that area and any area or surface that they may have
touched will be disinfected. In the event that a positive case occurs at camp, we will have to
shut down camp for 2 weeks or more, with all campers and staff returning only after providing a
doctor’s note verifying a negative test for Covid-19. Anyone exposed to a person with COVID-19
should stay home and self-monitor for symptoms, and follow CDC guidance if symptoms
develop. Parents should keep campers home if they are experiencing or exhibit any symptoms.

DRAFT 5/14/2020 5



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Staff will be asked to do the same. If a camper or staff member is sick, they should stay home
and not return until they have met the CDC requirements to discontinue home isolation.

Refund Policy: If a family decides to withdraw from camp on their own free will, we will not issue
a refund. If a camper tests positive for COVID-19 before or after the start of camp, we will issue
a full refund. Partial or full refunds for campers who need to quarantine in the event another
camper in their group shows signs or tests positive for COVID-19.

All staff will wear masks at all times. The CDC recommends children wear masks but the

America Academy of Pediatrics contradicts this and indicated this would be problematic. We
suggest campers wear masks during drop off/pick up times and/or when social distancing is
challenging.

Campers will be placed into groups of 10 with 1-2 counselors per group. The campers in these
groups would be in the same group for the entire summer. Additional staff will be hired to
anticipate sick leave. ’

Groups will maintain an appropriate distance from other groups at all times. Campers, within
their own groups, would continue to practice social distancing. Games and activities would be
tailored to meet these social distancing guidelines. However, there is some inherent risk within
the individual groups of 10. ,

Hand washing will be the preferred method for sanitation, however, hand sanitizer will be
available for staff and campers. Proper hand washing will be taught and required when
instructed to by staff (upon arrival, before lunch, before and after using equipment/crafts, after
sneezing/coughing, after using the restroom, or coming in contact with someone who displays
flu like symptoms), fun camp songs that are 20 seconds long are encouraged.

Separate activities bags will be issued for each group. These individual bags will include
everything from athletic equipment to arts and crafts. These items will be sanitized after each
use. There will be no sharing of equipment or arts and crafts between groups.

Each group will have a tent to store their belongings, get some shade and eat lunch or snack.
The concession stand will be closed as CDC regulations state all campers should bring their own
lunch and snack.

Bathroom breaks will be staggered. EPRD and Summer Adventure Camp staff will disinfect high
touch surfaces in the bathroom after each group use and on a set schedule. Any child that needs
to go to the bathroom off schedule will be allowed. Each night our professional cleaning service
will clean and sanitize the bathrooms.

The Recreation Park will be closed to the public while camp is in session. This may be hard to
enforce since it is a public park. The playground and pool will be closed to the public, We could
limit the use of the tennis courts and basketball courts. The CDC recommends that all camps be
closed to the public but they are not taking into account municipal camps that are conducted in
public spaces.

No field trips. There is no safe way to conduct field trips under the current guidelines. Nature
based field trips were considered as an alternative but ultimately were eliminated to avoid
highly popular attractions.

Our camp has always been an affordable summer option for residents. Unfortunately, with the
current guidelines and added safety requirements, we can not run camp at our original price of
$705. The new fee of $283 would cover additional staff for smaller groups, additional sanitizing
supplies, PPE for staff, professional cleaning service, signage, additional tents for shade,

DRAFT 5/14/2020 6



additional sports equipment, arts and craft supplies, hand washing stations and a contingency
line.

18. The staff that will be working at summer camp this summer will be the oldest and most
seasoned counselor on our staff. We feel strongly that we need staff we can depend upon to
follow the guidelines and help the kids understand and accept the changes this summer by being
great role models.

Recommendation:
1. Open camp June 29th instead of June 15th
Reduce program length from 9 weeks to 7 weeks
Add an additional $283 per camper fee to cover new requirements and guidelines.
Close concession stand
Close Planet Playground
Close Recreation Park to the Public while camp is in session
Cancel Teen program and aftercare
Get permission to use Town Hall as a back up rain space.

0NN AWN

Potential Issues with Opening Camp:

e |f there is an outbreak or suspected case of COVID-19 at camp we would need to potentially
send campers home to quarantine for the necessary number of days. If families ask for a refund
during this time we will not have the revenue to supply them with a refund while still running
camp. All staff are to be paid even while on quarantine. Most of the expenses to run camp are
spent before the start of camp which makes refunds difficult. The Town will need to create a
COVID-19 refund policy that protects the program from ending up in a financial deficit.

e The Town needs to set a deadline for making the decision on summer camp to allow the
Recreation Staff enough time to get set up and create the necessary changes provided.

e The Recreation park is the community's most popular park. The town is currently unable to
monitor the property 24/7. As the park opens more people will be using the facility which could
increase exposure.

Alternative Programming

Exeter Parks and Recreation employs a talented group of full time recreation professionals that can offer
a variety of boutique summer options. These programs would be capped at 8-9 participants to allow for
social distancing. In some cases participants would be required to bring their own supplies and
equipment that they would only be able to use. Some of the options include: basketball skills and drills,
lacrosse skills and drills, woodworking, lego workshops, Esports leagues, outdoor yoga, zumba, weekly
drop in sports games, tennis camp, flag football camp, golf camp, karate, kids crafts, senior one on one
wellness checks, weekly arts and crafts, outdoor walking group, senior shopping service, and many
more.

DRAFT 5/14/2020 7



DRAFT 5/14/2020



FY2020 EY2020
PROJECTIONS PROJECTIONS °
COVID-19 COVID-19 |
(10:1) (10:1)

1 Director 1 Director

3 Coordinators 3 Coordinators

Y —— ¥ ¥ T ] - -~ ]

>
0

c|52
2|5

EXPENSES FY'2020 Summer Camp

8452010 {51210 Sal/WagesTemporary Help S - 7 7 P : o
Intern ; 3 $0. 00 $0.00°

w/training |  With no guldelines : SAC Counselors $115,073.08 $150,993. 76 $54,000.00 $27,900.00

| FICA/MED $4,131.00 $2,134.00
8452010 55240 :Rec Programs I ; :

Background Checks n/a | $375. 00 . $175.00

$0. oo

L.sue00
$12,467.04

$360. oo
~$2,115. 31‘

Recreation Park security Camera $0.00{

T T N Banners o $0.00
L puses ! 50.00

|Bus Passes - State Parks $0.00
Camp Seminars/Training/Job Fair $0.00

Estimated using cotton screen print P ;
tee shirt $7, $20) | Camp Staff Uniforms $0.00 $2,321.00: | $4,461.00

Camp Yoga lnstructor $0.00 $1,502.20 ’ S0.00z

Driver Check Relmbursement $0.00 $0.00§ $105. 00 $70. 00
: - e ‘
Easy Clocking | 150,00 $0.00; $1,090. 15 $500.00 $400.00

$35 per person First Aid/CPR Class Reimb. $0.00 $0.00 $299. 50% $350.00 $140.00 i
Ipads/screen protect $0.00 $0.00§ $2, 165. 91§ $0.00 $0.00

Kinderlime $0.00 5000 $1,512. ooi $0.00 $0.00

Lollipop Festival $0.00 ' $510.00 $1,179.66 B $0.00 $0.00

|Magicshow | soo0f $000. | $400.00; . s000 ~ $000
Moe's $408.25' $0.00 $0.00
Online Training 1 s000 $0.00 537500 $390.00 $390.00




EXPENSES FY'2020 Summer Camp

FYi7

_ ACTUAL

FY19
~ ACTUAL

2020

BUDGET
OJECTIONS

COVID-19

{7 weeks) 110 Kids .

{10:1)
1 Director
3 Coordinators -

ar_o

EY2020°

BUDGET :

PROJECTIONS :

COVID-19 '

(7 weeks) 50 Kids '

(10:1):

1 Director f
Coordmatog

Polj;e De’t‘ariAI

Program Expenses

5000

$29,746.04

Entertainment Options

SAC Activities

$34,521.59

$165.00
"§o.ooi

5000,
$0.00

_Vso oo
$0.00'

$0.00

SAC TRips

$32,275.32:

* $0.00

$0.00'

_ $0.00

$0. 005

$0.00;

“lcovip-19
| Expenses

StorageShed | $0.00 $0.00 27900, $0.00 | $0.00

1 | IsAC supplies | ~ $0.00 §p.oo_ v$8,v3v707.573§ ” $3,00000 | $800 oo
I N T-Shirts for Campers' o $3,984.00 $7 293. 50 ; %4 050.80';’ [ §9”99_’MMM i o _%0 00
o Tmecerss | 1 000 $000 - so3me9 | $95.00 . $95.00

Van Rentals $0.00 $000. . $10,843.25: $2,000.00 $2,000.00

{Van Windshield $0.00 s000  $a9a97, - $0.00 $0.00
- :« o Van Cleaning | B Eu _‘mw§_1u5000§ ‘‘‘‘ $000 | W_Wm_ﬁS‘(“)‘(_)_O
_|Teen-Activities | $6,608.00 $1447249. | $000 _$0.00

o (Teenbuses | $0.00 s000 | s119939 | _._S000,

|Teen-camp sttt uniforms 300 so00 sao00 | $000 | . $0.00

- Teen-T-Shirts for campers $513.85 $000“ $612.75¢ | 00 $0.0l2)§i
....................................................................... TeenTrips | | $000 000 $6,09053 ..$0.00
] First id Supplies » $200.00

PPE—masks _

_|PPE-gloves

nfap 1

n/a

$320.00
$400.00

$100.00
$157.00




EY2020 FY2020 '
PROJECTIONS PROJECTIONS :
COVID-19 COVID-19

(10:1) (10:1)°

1 Director 1 Director '

3 Coordinators 3 Coordinators

=
~
=
00

FY19'

S Sy ]

EXPENSES FY'2020 Summer Camp ACTUAL| ACTUAL AcruaL  2%eo . .
! Thermomaters nfa nfai | n/af. $200.00 : $100.00 .
Extra S.A.C Counselors n/a n/a ‘f n/a. $15,750.00 $7,200.00 :

$1,205.00 555100,

i Extra Staff l‘_J‘nifO(ms o 7 $70.00 $28.00 ‘
ExtraTents | I T nfa nfa $660.00 $0.00°
Cleaning Company n/a na . n/a,  $3,600.00

e B e vt et st ottt b e e et e SR

e cleaningSupplies n/a na n/a. $1,000.00 $600.00

| Extra Supply Bags/tubs n/a n/a n/a $60.00 $40.00
Extra Athletic Equipment na | nfa | e $500.00 - $200.00 -
Extra Art Supplies n/a ry/”aﬂ;” ’ nfal ) $750.00 m§39000
HndSamitzer |\ nal | A nfa | $1,00000 | 20000
Hand Washing Stations I nfa. n/a, { %0000 . %000
|FacttyRentals | | wa . wa | %000 | $000
Signage for new changes n/a n/a .Ma i 8000 | $0.00

Extra'SandBagsE $80.00 I 5000

R TR .
H

FICA[MED i

i

FrstAdsupplies | e S2000 510000,
Contingency | $4,00000 |  $2,00000
Subtotal of COVID Expenses | i 1 i

!

R S ~ TOTALEXPENSES

B T e ST EIERTT? PPN PPNV




EXPENSES FY'2020 Summer Camp

>
3

EFY2020
BUDGET
PROJECTIONS
COVID-19
{7 weeks) 110 Kids |
(10:1)
1 Director
3 Coordinators -

arn )

FY2020
PROJECTIONS :
ViD-19 |

(10:1)

1 Director |

3 Coordinators :

.~ [}

Teen Camp

8340100 (44124 SummerAdventurngarqp‘_‘ ‘ - i - i -
Activities (Field Trips) $49,21693 | $53,20135 $0.00
Moe's | ) $612.00.  $612.00. $0.00
Pickleball o ] S0
o Registrations | 5
- _ sutotalSAC.| .
|

835090

S.A.C.

sponsorships | 1

i [FieldTrps | | $709800  sasmoo0 $0.00 $0.00
i |egistrationRefund . | i ees500 $0.00 $0.00

] 2 |Registrations i o | $29,617.50  $28,103.25 |

Subtotal TeenCamp & | iigaga

[ :$282465.68 ]

$92,077.34




ZamTrax:  NEWS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
May 7, 2020

Amtrak Requires Facial Coverings as
Added Measure of Protection

WASHINGTON - As part of Amtrak’s ongoing commitment to protect customers and front-line
employees in response to the coronavirus pandemic, beginning on May 11 Amtrak is requiring

that all customers in stations, on trains and thruway buses wear facial coverings.

“The safety of Amtrak’s customers and employees is our top priority and requiring a facial
covering is one more way we can protect everyone,” Amtrak President and CEO Bill Flynn said.
“Amtrak continues to operate as an essential service for those who must travel during this public

health crisis. Our services will be even more critical as our nation recovers.”

This new policy will require customers wear a facial covering over their nose and mouth while in
stations, on trains and thruway buses. Facial coverings can be removed when customers are

eating in designated areas, in their private rooms, or seated alone or with a travel companion in
their own pair of seats. Small children who are not able to maintain a facial covering are exempt

from this requirement.

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) recommends the use of simple cloth
facial coverings or masks to slow the spread of the virus and prevent transmission. Customers
must supply their own facial covering. Customers can go to CDC.gov for detailed instructions on

how to make their own facial covering.

Amtrak continues to take extra steps to sanitize stations and trains. Additional measures include

the following:

e Limiting bookings: To help maintain CDC recommendations for physical distancing
onboard trains, we have temporarily reduced Coach and Business class sales to 50%
capacity.

e Going cashless: As an added measure to ensure the health and safety of our customers
and employees, we are temporarily accepting only cashless payments in stations and on
trains.

e Promoting physical distancing: Signage has been displayed at several of our busiest
staffed stations to indicate safe distances in high customer traffic areas such as waiting

Pfaticmi-ﬁaifmad Passenger Corporation '+ MediaRelations@Amtrak.com « Media Amtrak com




rooms, in front ticket offices, at the base/top of escalators, lounge entrances, etc. In

addition, clear protective barriers have been retrofitted at staffed stations where there
are no current glass barriers. ,

e Updating food and beverage service: We are temporarily offenng Flexible Dlmng service
in the dining or lounge car on all long distance routes (except Auto Trarn) and
encouraging all Sleeping Car customers to select optional room service for their
meals. In addition, we are limiting seating in dining and café areas.

Amtrak continues to evaluate current pracfices and pilot new opportunities to support personal
safety. ‘

Visit Amtrak.com for more information about how Amtrak is maintaining a safe environment.

About Amtrak®

With our state and commuter partners, Amtrak moves people and the nation forward. We are committed to operating
a safe, environmentally efficient and fiscally responsible business. Book essential travel, check train status, access
your eTicket and more through the Amtrak app. Learn more at Amtrak.com.

it
CONTACT:
Amtrak Media Relations
202 906.3860
mediarelations@Amtrak.com
ATK-20-021

Nationa! Rallrosd Passenger Corporation » MediaRelations@Amitrak.com « Media.Amtrak.com o



NHMA
L)

New Hampshire Municipal Association

COVID-19 Municipal Relief Fund (MRF)
$32 Million Authorized by the Governor on May 4, 2020

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
: May 13, 2020

General Questions:

What is the $32 million Covid-19 Municipal Relief Funding the Governor authorized
on May 4, 2020? Under the CARES Act, New Hampshire was allocated $1.25 billion from
the US Treasury for a Coronavirus Relief Fund, sometimes referred to as “Flex Funds”. This
money may be expended at the discretion of the Governor and spent in accordance with US
Treasury Guidance.. On May 4, the Governor allocated $32 million of New Hampshire’s
$1.25 billion for municipal relief. We are calling this the COVID-19 Municipal Relief Fund
or MRF.

How much money will each municipality receive and how was this amount
determined? A Town-By-Town allocation of the $32 million was determined based upon
the 2018 population estimates prepared by the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives. The amount
shown on the allocadon list is the maximum amount a municipality may receive as
reimbursement for eligible COVID-19 expenses incurred.

How and when will municipalities receive payment from the MRF? The MRF is a
reimbursement program, again with a cap on the amount of reimbursement allocated to each
municipality. Reimbursement requests will be submitted to the Governor’s Office for
Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR) by the following deadlines for expenses incutred
during the following time periods:

o By June 1, 2020, for eligible expenses incurred from March 1, 2020, to April 30,
2020,

o By July 15, 2020, for cligible expenses incurred from May 1, 2020, to June 30, 2020;
and

o By September 15, 2020, for eligible expenses incurred from July 1, 2020, to August
31, 2020.




Ifa mumc1pahty fails to submit 2 rcqpcst by the applicable deadline, a reimbursement payment
for expenses incurred duting the applicable time period will not be made. GOFERR will make
every effort to issue all checks \vnhln 30 days after recelpt of. the 1cqucst

Will COVID-19 expenses that occur after August 31 2020 be relmbnrsed:‘ By September
15, 2020, on a report created by GOFERR, local governments will be required.to estimate the

additional COVID-19-related expenses they will incur through December 30. Municipalities
will also include any COVID-19-related expenses that "ase,” or. ‘may, . ‘be _eligible - for

reimbursement from any othier’ gvailable federal or Gther. public!funding source for COVID-

19 relicf, including, butnot: limited to, :FEMA, ‘for -which they have' not yet received
reimbursement. GOFERR will- use this mformanon in conmdermg whether further relief
rmght be needed after August 31

What happens if our eligible COVID-19 expense§ are not as much as our allocated
amount, or if our expenses exceed our allocated amount? Any amount allocated to a
municipality that exceeds its eligible expenses from March 1 to August 31 submitted for
reimbursement, will, after August 31, lapsc back to the state for other disbursement.
Municipalities will only be reimburséd - up to their allocated amount of the MRF. If a
municipality’s expenses exceed the amount allocated, that amount can be reported in the
estimate of additional COVID-19-related expemes they will incur through December 30,

2020.

Grant Agreement Questions:

What documents need to be filed in order to receive reimbursement from the MRF?
Municipalities must complete and submit the GOFERR Grant Agreement and the GOFERR
Reimbursement Request Form, both of which are available on the GOFERR Municipal &
County Payment webpage. =~ The Grant Agreement may be emailed to
municipalides@gofert.ohgov . as soon as possible or submitted with the initial
Reimbursement Request Form by June 1, 2020. The Reimbursement Request Form is an excel
spreadsheet with two tabs - onc for the reimbursement request and onc for the required
documents supporting the requested reimbursement.

Page 1 of the Grant Agreement asks for a “State Vendor Number” and “Completion
Date”. What should be entered? The State Vendor Number is the municipality’s NH First
Vendor Number which may be obtained from the NH Department of Administrative Services
Yendor Resource Center. The completion date is August 31, 2020.

In section 1.11B of the Grant Agreement, does the “Designated Signing Authority”

have to actually sign the agreement? Ycs, the designated signing authority should both
sign and print their name on the agreement.

The GOFERR Grant Agreement Exhibit J requires a DUNS number. What is this and
where do I get that number? A Data Universal Nutnber System (DUNS) number is a unique

2




nine-character number used to identify your organization. The federal government uses the
DUNS number to track how federal money is allocated. Municipalities that have received
federal grants in the past may already have a DUNS number. To obtain a DUNS number, go

to the Applicant Registration page on Grants.Gov.

The GOFERR Grant Agreement Exhibit A, #6 also requires registration in SAM.
What is SAM and how do I register? Thc System for Award Management (SAM) is an
official website of the U.S. government. You must have an active registration in SAM to do
business with the Federal Government. To register in SAM, at a2 minimum, you will need the
DUNS number described above, your taxpayer identification number, and bank account
information. To register, go to the homepage on the SAM website.

How do municipalities accept the MRF money? This moncy may be accepted in
accordance with the NHMA Guidance on Acceptance and Expenditure of CARES Act
Assistance by Local Governments, posted on the NHMA COVID-19 Resources page.
Additionally, the Grant Agreement asks that municipalities attach evidence that they have
complied with RSA 31:95-b or RSA 21-P:43 concerning acceptance of unanticipated revenue.
For acceptance under RSA 31:95-b or RSA 21-P:43, the minutes of the public meeting or
hearing would be sufficient. If acceptance under RSA 21-P:43 is by the “executive officer”,
such as the city manager, then 2 signed document indicting acceptance of the funds by the
executive officer should be sufficient.

Eligible Expense Questions:

In general, what type of expenses are eligible for reimbursement under the MRF? The
MREF is intended to reimburse municipalities for COVID-19-related expenses that are not
eligible for Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) reimbursements or covered by
other federal programs. Eligible reimbursements include, but are not limited to:

o0 Increased welfare costs for food, shelter, and utilities;

o Interest on Tax Anticipation Notes (TANSs) or other short-term borrowing due to higher
than usual property tax delinquencies;

o New telework costs for remote municipal operations such as computers, software, and
networking costs; '

o Increased election costs (if not covered by other federal funding);

0 Wages and benefits required by the Families First Coronavirus Response Act for non-
First Responders; '

o Childcare costs for First Responders and essential employees due to school closures;

o Increased unemployment costs for municipalities that self-fund and are not otherwise
covered.

o Legal fees associated with new federal requirements and State of Emergency orders;

o Municipal building modifications including more frequent cleaning/disinfecting and
installations necessary for social distancing and public safety;

o Facility signage such as park/beach closures;




o Credit card fees where the municipality waives the fees paid by cardholders since “in-

petson” payments are not an option.
o All eligible expenses must be related to COVID-19

In general, what type of expenses are not eligible for reimbursement under the MRF?
"The MRF cannot be used for: - ‘ "

o Costs accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020;
Compensanng for revenue shortfalls;

FEMA-cligible expenses;

The 25% local match required for FEMA-ehglble expenses,

Expenses covered by other federal programs such as community development block
grants;

Workforce bonuses other than hazard pay or overr.lme,

o Severance pay or legal settlements.

o 0 0 O

o

What does “costs accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27,
2020” mean? The US Treasury Guidance explains that the CARES Act requires payments
be used only to cover costs that wete not accounted for in the budget most recently approved
as of March 27, 2020. A cost meets this requirement if either (a) the cost cannot lawfully be
funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within that budget or (b) the cost is for a
substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, allotment, or
allocation.

For example, if municipal welfare costs are budgeted for $1,000 per month, and suddenly
increase to $2,500 in May due to COVID-19-related increases in unemployment or furloughs,
then the increase of $1,500 would be eligible for reimbursement from the MRF. If a
municipality budgeted $5,000 for interest on a Tax Anticipation Note (TAN) expected to be
outstanding for 6 weeks from mid-May to early July, but incurs interest costs of $15,000 since
the TAN is outstanding through August 31, the additional $10,000 of interest expense would
be reimbursable by the MRF.

Is there a “match” requirement (like FEMA’s 25% local match) or will the MRF pay
100% of eligible costs? The MRF will reimburse 100% of the costs for COVID-19-related
expenses that are not reimbursable by other federal programs or grants.

Will the MRF reimburse municipalities for the local 25% match for FEMA eligible
costs? No, the MRF will not reimburse municipalities for the 25% match requited on FEMA
funding. However, we understand that there is a request for 100% reimbursement of FEMA
eligible costs (i.e. no 25% local match required on FEMA eligible costs). As far as we know
that request has not been approved at the federal level.

The minimum level for FEMA reimbursement is $3,300. If my municipality does not
meet this minimum FEMA threshold, will those otherwise FEMA eligible costs be




reimbursed from the MRF? Yes, if your costs do not meet the minimum FEMA eligibility
level of $3,300, those costs may be reimbursed by the MRF, up to your allocated amount.

If an expense is rejected by FEMA, can we subsequently submit it for reimbursement
from the MRF even if the expense is outside the time period for which we are
requesting reimbursement? For example, can an April expense rejected by FEMA be
submitted in our September 15" MRF Reimbursement Request? Yes, as long as the
denial was received by August 31st.

What if we receive reimbursement from the MRF for an expense we later determine is
eligible for reimbursement from FEMA or a grant through another federal program?
The reimbursement requests will be reviewed before being authorized so claiming items that
are known to be reimbursable from FEMA or another program may result in disallowance
until the alternate funding source is sought. If the municipality in good faith determined that
an item was not allowable under the alternate funding source and obtained reimbursement
from MRF, the municipality cannot also seek reimbursement from the alternate source but
will not have to pay back the MRF.

Will the MRF reimburse municipalities for the payroll taxes associated with payment
of the First Responder Stipend? Yes, municipalities can choose to use the MRF for
employer paid payroll taxes associated with the First Responder Stipends.

Since the First Responder Stipend will be included in the overtime rate calculation,
will the increase in overtime costs due to this stipend be eligible for reimbursement
from the MRF? Yes, municipalities may request reimbursement from the MRF to offset
the difference in overtime costs due to the First Responder Stipend being included in the
overtime rate calculation.

Can a municipality’s allocation from the MRF be used to provide hazardous duty pay
for non-First Responders who interact with the public and have increased COVID-19
exposure similar to First Responders, such as Public Works employees and Tax
Collector’s office staff? ”. ‘The US Treasury FAQ states that hazard pay means additional
pay for performing hazardous duty or work involving physical hardship, in each case that is
related to COVID-19. If there are public employees that are being required to work and
whose work increases their risk of exposure to COVID-19 because it requires interaction with
the public, there is a reasonable argument that they are performing “hazardous duty... related
to COVID-19” and therefore a hazard payment could be an allowable expense, even if they
are not “substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to COVID-19”. However, hazard
pay simply for being a municipal employee would not be an eligible expense if, for example,
the municipal employee is teleworking from home during the State of Emergency.

In response to the public health emergency associated with COVID-19, we
discontinued recycling and are now experiencing an increase in hauling costs at our




transfer station. Are these'increased hauling costs eligible for MRF reimbursement?
Yes, the increase in hauling costs are an.eligible expense under the MRF to the extent that
those costs are:
o directly related to local government action in response to the public health
emergency associated with COVID-19,
o notaccounted for in the budget most recently approved as of Match 27, 2020, and
o were costs incurred during the period that began March 1, 2020.

Regarding childcare costs for First Responders and essential employees due to school
closure - who is deemed an “essential” employee? Is it all municipal employees
because we are exempt from the Executive Order to stay athome? No, not all municipal
employees are “essential” just because government is exempt from the stay at home order.
To be reimbursed from the MRF; the need for childcare would have to be traceable to
COVID-19. '

Would eligible childcare costs have to be paid by the municipality before requesting
reimbursement from the MRF? Yes, the municipality will need to incur the eligible
childcare cost prior to seeking reimbursement from the MRF.

Are the reimbursements only for daycare arrangements that had to be made on or after
March 1in response to the State of Emergency, or does it also include existing daycare
arrangements that were in place before? The MRF would not cover pre-existing day care
costs that have not changed due to the State of Emergency. If the cost has increased due to
the State of Emergency, the MRF will reimburse the difference between the “normal”
childcare rate and the State of Emetgency rate. The MRF will only cover costs incurred after
March 1.

Unanticipated interest costs on Tax Anticipation Notes (TAN) is a reimbursable
expense from the MRF through August 31. However, TAN interest may occur after
August 31, possibly even after the December property tax bills are issued. Will TAN
interest costs incurred after August 31 be reimbursed? As explained in a previous answer,
in September, local governments will be required to estimate the additional COVID-19-related
expenses they will incur through December 30. GOFERR will use this information in
considering whether further relief might be needed after August 31.

May MRF payments be used to assist impacted property owners with the payment of
their property taxes? MRF payments may not be used for revenue replacement, including
property tax revenue shortfalls.

The Governor’s Program Ovetview and Guidance describes an allowable cost as

“economic support for losses due to business interruptions”. What does this mean?
According to the US Treasury FAQ, a grant program to benefit small businesses that close
voluntarily to promote social distancing measures or that are affected by decreased customer
demand as a result of the COVID-19 public health emergency constitutes an allowable
expense. Pursuant to this guidance, the GOFERR Legislative Advisory Board and Stakeholder




Advisory Board are charged with recommending to the Governor how the remainder of the
$1.25 billion in Coronavirus Relief Funds should be used to assist businesses, non-profit
organizations, healthcare facilities, educational institutions, individuals with unemployment
relief and other sectors of the economy. Information about the work of these Boards is
available on the GOFERR website.

Additional questions and answers are available in the US Treasury Coronavirus Relief Fund
Frequently Asked Questions.




New Hampshire Municipal Association
Reopening Task Force Testimony
May 14, 2020

All 234 towns and cities are members of the New Hampshire Municipal Association (NHMA).
NHMA serves our members through legal advice, training, and advocacy. As I’'m sure you are aware,
like businesses, towns and cities have been severely impacted by COVID-19—with decreases in
revenues, increases in expenses, and working to change the way they operate so that they can
continue to serve their public while keeping residents and municipal officials as safe as possible. As a
result, NHMA has had no shortage of issues and questions to help our members untangle, and we
have been grateful to work alongside state officials on many of these matters. Collaboration is key
right now, and NHMA has been working hard to facilitate that collaboration.

NHMA has received many questions and concerns from our members throughout the reopening
process, particularly about why towns and cities have not had a voice in the reopening process when
they are so integral in the implementation of the reopening of businesses. I have also been listening
to most task force meetings, including yesterday’s meeting, so I am aware of the feedback and
concerns some of the task force members are hearing about issues happening at the local level.

My goal here today is to provide you the municipal perspective and explain the issues towns and
cities are facing in the reopening process; advocate for the task force to take municipal input in the
process going forward; and answer any questions from the task that I can.

It is no secret that we have been advocating for the task force to include a municipal representative.
You may wonder why the Task Force would need a municipal member when local government is
not an industry or sector that requires the reopening by the governor. As you are aware, local
government was expressly exempt from both stay at home orders, which allows them to make local
decisions about closing their own facilities, working remotely, and suspending or cancelling
programs and activities.

But the reopening process is happening in our towns and cities, all of which have local ordinances
and regulations that exist for health, safety, and welfare purposes. For that reason, it is crucial that
the reopening guidance include input from towns and cities. Not only are towns and cities directly
impacted by every step towards reopening, they are also on the frontlines of enforcing the rules and
dealing with the effects of businesses reopening. Town and city officials are also the ones who
receive complaints from residents about reopening too fast, and complaints from businesses that
that they are making it too slow. It is their police officers, health officers, and other officials who
respond and attempt to enforce the restrictions the task force has recommended for safe reopening,
and they are, of course, very concetrned about new spread of COVID-19 in their communities, as
well as potential exposure of their first responders and other municipal officials.

Here are some examples of the efforts and issues happening at the local level with the reopening
process.

Like in many municipalities, the expansion of a restaurant in Bristol would normally require site plan
approval. Not wanting to put restaurants through that, they created a simple form asking for basic

1



information, like seating arrangement, number of séats per table, spacing between tables, etc. There
is no fee and they guarantee a turn-around within 48 hours of receipt so that all necessary permits
can be issued much more quickly than normal. But they received pushback from some businesses
that they are expressly exempt from local reqmrements and do not need to comply. Similar issues
have been reported from other municipalities, particularly with restaurants and with campgrounds.

In the Town of Hanover, municipal ofﬁaals have reported success workmg with business owners,
but there are still steps they have had to take, working to quickly free up pubhc sidewalks and
parking spaces for restaurant use, tent installation, and certifying occupancies. They have authorized
the use of town property without charging a permit fee and are issuing licenses to operate without
the normal fee. Some of the additional costs of their efforts may be reimbursable, but they are
nonetheless incurring the expenses to help get their local economy running.

Manchester is allowing restaurants to use private parking lots or sidewalks for outdoor dining where
possible. Manchester is even considering a request to close Elm Street, and Concord is looking at
how it might close down sections of Main Street for outdoor dining to use space that is usually for
patking or sidewalks.

There seems to be a perception that towns and cities are inappropriately stalling the process, but,
instead, they are trying to navigate through policies and rules at the local level to allow reopening to
happen in a safe and legal way. A thriving main street is good for local government: businesses drive
revenue into towns and cities, they pay taxes, they employ people. But while businesses and industry
representatives have been able to give input on how much time they would need to prepare to
reopen safely, and what they would necd to do to comply with requirements or guidelines, towns
and cities did not have the chance to prepare themselves or to explain to the task force what they
would need to do to give businesses the approval necessary to move forward.

As the governor has made very clear, local ordinances and regulations still apply to the businesses
that are reopening. Towns and cities don’t have the ability to ignore their own regulations or
ordinances, and many of them are moving as quickly as they can to implement processes for
waivets, quick approvals, or other relief that would not normally be granted. If municipal input were
provided along the way, some of the conflict or confusion that you may be hearing about as
businesses work to reopen could have been resolved ahead of time. There was also conversation at
the task force meeting yesterday about the need to monitor the reopening and consider the impacts
of the guidance, including what is not working. I hope that municipal input will be received in
conducting that review.

Enforcement is also an issue and has been a significant source of confusion. And although the
method of enforcement is not part of the task force’s charge, it is an important part of the pictute at
the local level. There has been confusion not only about what can be enforced at the local level, but
also which local officials have the authority—police, health officers, code enforcement, the state, etc.
For example, in municipalities like Nashua, their health officers normally enforce all restaurant
regulations. But as municipalities are being directed that it is local law enforcement that has the
authority to enforce the emergency orders and reopening requirements, police officers are now
being asked to step in and deal with these issues. As a result, NHMA has been communicating with



the Attorney General’s Office and are working to create guidance on the enforceability of Stay at
Home Otder 2.0 (EO #40) and the reopening guidance documents.

As a final point, although towns and cities were exempt from the Stay at Home Otrder, there are still
programs, activities, and facilities they could use guidance on reopening safely or whether to hold
them at all. Many of them have been forced to make decisions to cancel summer programs and
events, while others are holding out as long as possible before making that decision, but time is
running out. Here is 2 nonexhaustive list of some of the more pressing items municipalities are
seeking guidance or assistance with:

Special events

Pools

Parks and playgrounds

Summer camps and recreational leagues
Traveling carnivals

Gaming industry

Additional guidance for retail operations

In conclusion, we respectfully advocate for the following steps to be taken to improve the reopening
process going forward:

o Actively include the municipal voice in the reopening process in order to consider their
concetns, anticipate issues, and clarify confusion before it occurs.

e Even if the task force is not the appropriate entity to make decisions or recommendations
about enforcement of reopening standards and guidance, ensure there is clear guidance on
enforcement before more reopening orders are issued.

e Clarify the appropriate individuals at the state level for towns and cities to contact with
questions or issues on various topics.

e Use NHMA as a resource moving forward.



May 11, 2020

His Excellency Christopher T. Sununu
Governor of New Hampshire

107 North Main Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Governor Sununu,

Thank you for the work that you are doing on behalf of the state of New Hampshire during this
trying time. As members of the Legislative Advisory Board of the Governor’s Office for
Emergency Relief and Recovery, we write today to share our Funding Allocation Proposal
requested by your office for the $1.25 billion grant received from the State-Local Coronavirus
Relief Fund in the federal CARES Act.

Since the Legislative Advisory Board was established, we have solicited testimony from state
agencies, stakeholder and advocacy groups, nonprofits, businesses, municipalities, and more.
While it is clear to us that the need and demand for the State-Local Coronavirus Relief Fund far
exceeds the available resources, our proposal compliments additional federal funding sources to
provide the most relief possible. Nearly twenty hours of public testimony informs the proposal
before you; we thank you in advance for your thoughtful review and consideration of these
recommendations.

In some areas, our proposal expands the groundwork of the Executive Branch, for instance,
$100,000,000 in hospital relief funds, $40,000,000 in funds for other health care providers, and
$20,000,000 in relief funds for nursing home and long-term care facilities - all of which should
be disbursed immediately as grants to address the financial impact those organizations are facing
because of COVID-19.

As we begin reopening our economy, the biggest impediment to getting people back to work is
access to safe, reliable, and affordable childcare. We propose an allocation of $25,000,000 for
childcare, including daycare and after school care. These funds should be administered by an
outside organization like the CDFA or Community Loan Fund to enable expedient delivery to
shore up childcare, which is the underpinning of the rest of New Hampshire’s economy.

Our proposal also expands on the specialized funding streams established by the federal
government to fill in gaps, including an allocation of $100,000,000 for business relief funding to
be disbursed through the Business Finance Authority to help small and medium sized New
Hampshire businesses surmount the impact to their businesses and employees through grants,
and loan guarantees. These funds would prioritize assistance to smaller businesses that did not



receive or did not qualify for PPP funding and help cover the costs incurred to reopen safely. An
allocation of $5,000,000 is also recommended for agriculture relief to be distributed immediately
to provide assistance to farmers and fishers suffering COVID-19 related losses.

Our proposal sets aside $30,000,000 in funding to support New Hampshire’s rionproﬁt sector,
including a $5,000,000 grant specifically for the New Hampshire Food Bank to restock depleted
shelves due to increased demand and declme in donations and to soften the blow of increased
food prices. These grants will help nonproﬁts that are providing critical services during the
pandemic while also expenencmg dlfﬁculty fundraising. In an effort to more expediently
disburse funds, we suggested these funds be disbursedthrough the CDFA and the Charitable
Foundation to supplement the funds they have already established to assist non-profits.

We know New Hampshire’s higher education infrastructure has been deeply impacted by the
pandemic and the necessary transition to remote learning. The GOFERR Legislative Advisory
Board recommends the following allocations to address the financial impact of this transition:
$10,000,000 to the University System of New Hampshire; $5,000,000 to the Community College
System of New Hampshire; and $5,000,000 to private colleges and universities.

The GOFERR Legislative Advisory Board also suggests expanding the pool of eligible workers
included in the Frontline Worker Stipend Program to include child protection workers who are
conducting face-to-face meetings with clients.

Perhaps most important, our spending proposal also stabilizes the state budget by covering all
allocations and expenditures made to date by the Executive Branch related to COVID-19 in the
amount of $255,024,274 and carves out $649,975,726 in reserve funds that can be distributed in
the future as additional needs, and potentially additional federal funds, become available. This
will allow us to review the efficacy of the recovery and relief funds spent immediately and make
additional allocations as needed.

Moving forward, the GOFERR Legislative Advisory Board will be paying particular attention to
the hospital and health care relief funds, business and nonprofit relief funds, and higher
education support as sectors in particular that may need additional infusions of support.
Additionally, we will be soliciting testimony about the potential need for support relative to
housing and homelessness, expanded testing capacity, and mental health support for frontline
workers. The Advisory Board will keep your office apprised of additional recommendations we
have for the best use of these federal CARES Act funds.

In every sector, people are doing the best they can under unimaginable circumstances, but the
need for financial assistance has been made loud and clear. Fortunately, thanks to the leadership
of our congressional delegation and yourself, New Hampshire has received critical funding to



help our state combat COVID-19 and recover from the health and economic impacts of this
pandemic. The recommendations of the GOFERR Legislative Advisory Board are bipartisan and
unanimous; our proposal is based on public input and focused on real relief for Granite Staters--
for families, communities, schools, businesses, nonprofits, farmers and fishers.

Attached to this letter, please find a spreadsheet detailing steps for implementing our
recommendation. We are happy to provide you with clarification on the proposal and answer any
questions you or any of the members of your staff may have regarding its contents. While this is
our first proposal, we are committed to continuing to meet to evaluate the efficacy of relief funds
and consider additional allocations as needed, as well as any further federal funds that may be
allocated.

We appreciate your consideration and once again thank you for your work and dedication to the
Granite State.

Sincerely,

Donna Soucy /s/
Senate President

Stephen Shurtleff /s/
Speaker of the House

Chuck Morse /s/
Senate Minority Leader
GOFERR Legislative Advisory Board Chair

Dick Hinch /s/
House Minority Leader

Lou D’Allesandro /s/
Senate Finance Chair

Mary J ané Wallner /s/
House Finance Chair

John Reagan /s/
Senate Finance Committee Member

Erin Hennessey /s/
House Finance Committee Member



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

OFFICE OF SENATOR JON MORGAN

State House Room 107, 107 N Main §t., Concord, NH 03303

Town Manager Russell Dean May 15%, 2020
Town of Exeter

10 Front Street

Exeter, NH 03833

Dear Town Manager Dean,

In this time of crisis, it has been incredibly encouraging to see how the residents, businesses,
public officials, and Exeter’s employees have stepped up to support one another. As your state
senator I know you’ve taken on additional costs related to education, public safety, emergency
services, and public services. Exeter’s acts of humanity should not spark additional costs to
property taxpayers or leave you unable to provide necessary services.

Fortunately, on May 4", after weeks of advocacy from the State Senate, the state of New
Hampshire announced that $40 million of federal CARES Act funds would be used for
municipal and county grants to defray the costs of COVID-19, amounting to $32 million to
municipalities and $8 million to counties.

I'm pleased to share that Exeter has been allocated $362,525. In addition, Rockingham County
has been allocated $7,286,670 in coronavirus relief fund payments to local governments. All
allocations can be viewed here (link).

These federal funds can cover eligible COVID-19-related expenses incurred between March 1
and August 31%, 2020. Full guidance of eligible costs can be found here. These include, but are
not limited to, increased welfare costs, interest on tax anticipation notes or other short-term
borrowing, new telework costs for remote municipal operations, and municipal building
modifications and cleaning.

I want to highlight that while these relief funds have been allocated to Exeter, action must be
taken to receive the funds. Each local government must submit a signed grant agreement to the
Governor’s Office for Emergency Relief & Recovery (GOFERR) to be eligible. Furthermore,
local governments must submit reimbursement requests to GOFERR by email. You can find
these forms and additional guidance on the GOFERR website (www.goferr.nh.gov). If you have
any questions, please email municipalities@goferr.nh.gov or reach out to our office at
monica.cooper(@leg.state.nh.us.




While this round of municipal and county aid represents critical relief for local governments as
they grapple with the impacts of COVID-19, I know additional support will likely be needed. I
am committed to continuing to advocate for the needs of Exeter and Rockingham County, please
don’t hesitate to reach out to my office if you have any additional concerns.

New Hampshire cities, towns, and counties are providing crucial services to Granite Staters right
now who have been impacted by the coronavirus pandemic. Thank you for all you are doing.

Gratefully,

Jon

Senator Jon Morgan
Senate District 23

Office: 603-271-8631
Email: Jon.Morgan@leg.state.nh.us



GOFFER Agreement



GOFERR CORONAYVIRUS RELIEF FUND GRANT AGREEMENT
(Municipalities and Counties)

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby mutually agree as follows:
1. GENERAL PROVISIONS: IDENTIFICATION.
1.1. State Agency Name: Governor’s Office For Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR)
1.2. State Agency Address: 1 Eagle Square, Concord, NH 03301
1.3. Grantee Name:
1.4, Grantee Address:

1.5 Grantee Telephone Number:

1.6. State Vendor Number:

1.7. Completion Date:

1.8. Grant Amount not to exceed $

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency:_ John Frasier
1.10. State Agency Telephone Number:__ 603-271-7964

1.11. Grantee Signature: Choose the appropriate one of the signature options below:
A. Majority of Selectmen

Date:
Selectmen Signor 1

Date:
Selectmen Signor 2

Date:
Selectmen Signor 3

B. Designated Signing Authority
Date:

Print Name: Title:
Municipalities must attach evidence that they have complied with RSA 31:95-b or RSA 21-P:43 concerning
acceptance of unanticipated revenue. Municipalities using the designated signing authority option must also
attach evidence demonstrating the authority to sign.

1.12.  State of New Hampshire Signature:

Date:

Print Name: Title:



2. SCOPE OF ALLOWABLE USE OF FUNDS: In exchange for grant funds from the Coronavirus Relief
Fund established by H.R. 748, Section 5001 provided by the United States government to the State of New
Hampshire, the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency identified in Paragraph 1.1 (hereinafter
referred to as “the State™), the Grantee identified in Paragraph 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee”),
agrees and covenants that the funds will be used solely for an allowable purpose as defined in H.R. 748, Section
5001, for which Grantee has not received payment or reimbursement from any other source, defined as:

1. Necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus

Disease 2019 (COVID-19);

2. Expenditures that were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020

(the date of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and

3. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and for purposes of this Agreement,

ends on August 30, 2020.

The allowable purposes and use of funds are more specifically described in EXHIBIT A.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF GRANT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on the date of approval of
this Agreement by the State in paragraph 1.12 (“the effective date”).

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Grant, including all reports required by this Agreement,
shall be completed in their entirety prior to September 30, 2020.

4. GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.
The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B, attached hereto.
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.

In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration of the satisfactory performance
of the Grant, as determined by the State, the State shall pay the Grantee up to the Grant Amount.

The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete payment to the Grantee for all
expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the Grantee and claimed as allowable expenses under this Agreement.
To the extent that the Grant amount does not cover all of the Grantee’s allowable expenses, nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed to limit the Grantee’s ability to pursue other COVID-19 relief that may be
available. However, under this Agreement, the State shall have no liabilities to the Grantee other than the Grant
Amount.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set
forth in Paragraph 1.8 of these general provisions.

5. COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In connection with the performance
of the Grant, the Grantee shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including the acquisition of
any and all necessary permits.

6. RECORDS AND ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion Date the Grantee shall keep
detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the Grant, including, but not limited to, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.

Initials

Date
Page 2 of 5



Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion Date, at any time during the
Grantee’s normal business hours, and as often as the State, the U.S. Department of Treasury or OMB shall
demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State, the U.S. Department of Treasury or OMB all records
pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall permit the State, the U.S. Department of
Treasury or OMB to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data, and other information relating to all matters covered by this
Agreement. As used in this paragraph, “Grantee” includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with,
controlled by, or under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in Paragraph 1.3 of these
provisions

7. PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform the Grant. The Grantee
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Grant shall be qualified to perform such Grant, and shall be properly
licensed and authorized to perform such Grant under all applicable laws. Grantee shall comply with all state and
federal personnel and labor laws applicable to its employees.

The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event of any dispute hereunder, the
interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.

8. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation, the continuance of payments
hereunder, are contingent upon the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated funds. In the event of a
reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

9. EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(hereinafter referred to as “Events of Default”):

Failure to perform the Grant satisfactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or

Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more, or all, of the following
actions:

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event
of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the Grantee
notice of termination; and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending all payments to be made
under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the

Initials
Date
Page 3 of 5



Grantee during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the Grantee
has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and

Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and

Recoup from the Grantee, including by withholding any other payment of funds that becomes due to Grantee
from the State, any payments under this Agreement that have been used in a manner contrary to the terms of
this Agreement or the Coronavirus Relief Fund, H.R. 748, Section 5001; and

Treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.
10. TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the Grant,
the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a
report (hereinafer referred to as the “Termination Report”) describing in detail all Grant expenses reimbursed,
and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraph 9 of these general provisions, the approval of such a Termination
Report by the State shall entitle the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

The approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve the Grantee from any and all
liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee’s breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or, except where notice default has
been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30)
days written notice.

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member or employee of the Grantee, and no representative, officer
or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Grant is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of the
undertaking or carrying out of such Grant, shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which
affects his or her personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or
she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or
indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

12. GRANTEE’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this Agreement the Grantee, its
employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and
are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers, employees, agents,
members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the
benefits, workmen’s compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any interest
in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the State.

14. INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all
claims, liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf of any
person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts
Initials

Date
Page 4 of 5



or omissions of the Grantee or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the
State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

15. INSURANCE AND BOND.
The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance:

Statutory workmen’s compensation and employees liability insurance for all employees engaged in the
performance of the Grant, and

Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property damage, in
amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death in any one
incident, and $500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies shall be the standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of
Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express
waiver of any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the provisions hereof upon any
further or other default on the part of the Grantee.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or
given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, by United States Mail, addressed to the parties at
the addresses first above given.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing
signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance
with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and
their respective successors and assignees. The captions are used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to
be considered a part of this Agreement or to be used in determining the intent of the parties hereto.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall
not be construed to confer any such benefit.

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties, and
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings relating hereto.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C hereto are incorporated as
part of this Agreement.

Initials
Date
Page 5 of 5



GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT A
Scope of Allowable Uses of Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant

1. Grantee agrees that all expenditures for costs that it submits for reimbursement
under this agreement shall meet the following criteria:

a.) are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to

the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19);

b.) were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020

(the date of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and

c.) were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and for purposes of this

Agreement, ends on August 30,.2020. .

2. As used herein the criteria above shall have the following meaning:

a.) Necessary expenditures due to the public health emergency means expenditures must
be used for actions taken to respond to the public health emergency. These may include
expenditures incurred to allow local government to respond directly to the COVID-19
emergency, such as by addressing medical or public health needs. Funds may not be used to fill
shortfalls in government revenue to cover expenditures that would not otherwise qualify under
the statute.

b.) Costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020
means:

(i) the cost cannot lawfully be funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within the

Grantee’s budget meeting the above definition, but excluding subsequent supplemental

appropriations, including from a rainy day or reserve fund or other budgetary adjustments

taken to respond to COVID-19; or

(ii) the cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a

line item, allotment, or allocation.

¢.) A cost is “incurred” when the responsible unit of government has expended funds to
cover the cost during the period March 1, 2020 to December 30, 2020.

3. The U.S. Treasury guidance on allowable uses of Coronavirus Relief Funds
(Exhibit A.1) and U.S. Treasury Answers to Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ’s) regarding
allowable uses of Coronavirus Relief Funds (Exhibit A.2) are incorporated herein and made part
of this Agreement as if set forth in full.

4. Grantee is required to exhaust other available sources of COVID-19 relief funds
first. Grantee will not submit allowable expenditures for reimbursement under this Agreement
that are, or may, also be eligible for reimbursement from any other available federal or other
public funding source for COVID-19 relief that is now, or that becomes available during the term
of this Agreement, including, but not limited to the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), Health and Human Services including
Medicaid and Medicare, Treasury or the Small Business Administration until application has
been made for such other funding and been disallowed or paid only in part. If an allowable
expenditure is denied or covered only in part by such alternate relief funding source, the
expenditure or remainder will be allowed under this Agreement during the period of

Tnitials
Date
Page | of 2



reimbursement in which the denial or partial payment decision is received, subject to the statutes,
rules and guidance for the alternate funding source. For example, at this time, FEMA
reimbursement is for 75% of allowable costs, but the 25% State or local match cannot be made
up from other federal funds.

5. Except as specifically waived by OMB or Treasury for recipients of Coronavirus
Relief Funds, the provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200 shall apply to this Grant, including but not limited
to, if Grantee has received more than $750,000 in federal funds from all sources, the federal
single audit requirements of §200.501.

6. Unique entity identifier and System for Award Management (SAM)—Required.
Grantees must normally (i) Be registered in SAM before submitting an application; (ii) provide a
valid unique entity identifier in its application; and (iii) continue to maintain an active SAM
registration with current information at all times during which it has an active Federal award or
an application or plan under consideration by a Federal awarding agency. This requirement has
been relaxed by OMB for grants related to Coronavirus Relief Funds so that Grantees must only
submit proof of SAMs registration and the unique entity identifier prior to their first receipt of
funds. EXHIBIT I and J should be returned completed with the executed Grant Agreement, and
must be received completed before any disbursement can be made.

7. The U.S. Treasury may issue subsequent or further guidance on allowable uses of
Coronavirus Relief Funds. Therefore GOFERR may periodically issue Subgrantee Guidance
(SG) and Subgrantee Notices (SN) or other clarifications as necessary. All such changes shall be
considered as incorporated into this Agreement. The Grantee agrees to abide by any SG, SN or
other instructions issued by GOFERR.

Tnitials
Date
Page 2 of 2



Coronavirus Relief Fund
Guidance for State, Territorial, Local, and Tribal Governments
April 22, 2020

The purpose of this document is to provide guidance to recipients of the funding available under section
601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (“CARES Act”). The CARES Act established the Coronavirus Relief Fund (the “Fund”)
and appropriated $150 billion to the Fund. Under the CARES Act, the Fund is to be used to make
payments for specified uses to States and certain local governments; the District of Columbia and U.S.
Territories (consisting of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands, Guam,
American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands); and Tribal governments.

The CARES Act provides that payments from the Fund may only be used to cover costs that—

1. are necessary expenditures iricurred due to the public health emergency with respect to
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19);

2. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the
date of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and

3. were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30,
2020.!

The guidance that follows sets forth the Department of the Treasury’s interpretation of these limitations
on the permissible use of Fund payments.

Necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency

The requirement that expenditures be incurred “due to” the public health emergency means that
expenditures must be used for actions taken to respond to the public health emergency. These may
include expenditures incurred to allow the State, territorial, local, or Tribal government to respond
directly to the emergency, such as by addressing medical or public health needs, as well as expenditures
incurred to respond to second-order effects of the emergency, such as by providing economic support to
those suffering from employment or business interruptions due to COVID-19-related business closures.

Funds may not be used to fill shortfalls in government revenue to cover expenditures that would not
otherwise qualify under the statute. Although a broad range of uses is allowed, revenue replacement is
not a permissible use of Fund payments.

The statute also specifies that expenditures using Fund payments must be “necessary.” The Department
of the Treasury understands this term broadly to mean that the expenditure is reasonably necessary for its
intended use in the reasonable judgment of the government officials responsible for spending Fund

payments.

Costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020

The CARES Act also requires that payments be used only to cover costs that were not accounted for in
the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020. A cost meets this requirement if either (a) the
cost cannot lawfully be funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within that budget or (b) the cost

1 See Section 601(d) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the CARES Act.

1



is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, allotment, or
allocation.

The “most recently approved” budget refers to the enacted budget for the relevant fiscal period for the
particular government, without taking into account subsequent supplemental appropriations enacted or
other budgetary adjustments made by that government in response to the COVID-19 public health
emergency. A cost is not considered to have been accounted for in a budget merely because it could be
met using a budgetary stabilization fund, rainy day fund, or similar reserve account.

Costs incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020

A cost is “incurred” when the responsible unit of government has expended funds to cover the cost.

Nonexclusive examples of eligible expenditures

Eligible expenditures include, but are not limited to, payment for:
1. Medical expenses such as:
e COVID-19-related expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities.

o Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to increase
COVID-19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs.

¢ Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing.
¢ Emergency medical response expenses, including emergency medical transportation, related
to COVID-19.

¢ Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COVID-19-
related treatment.

2. Public health expenses such as:

e Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and Tribal
governments of public health orders related to COVID-19.

e Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including
sanitizing products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police officers,
social workers, child protection services, and child welfare officers, direct service providers
for older adults and individuals with disabilities in community settings, and other public
health or safety workers in connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency.

e Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in response
to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

e Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of
COVID-19-related threats to public health and safety.

e Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19.

e Expenses for quarantining individuals.

3. Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar
employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-
19 public health emergency.



4. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures, such
as:

e Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and other
vulnerable populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.

* Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in connection
with school closings to enable compliance with COVID-19 precautions.

o Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with
COVID-19 public health precautions.

o Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to
enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.

e COVID-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates
to sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable compliance with
COVID-19 public health precautions.

¢ Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and
enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.

5. Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19
public health emergency, such as:

o Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of
business interruption caused by required closures.

o Expenditures related to a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government payroll support
program.
e Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 public health emergency if such

costs will not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or
otherwise.

6. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that
satisfy the Fund’s eligibility criteria.

Nonexclusive examples of ineligible expenditures®

The following is a list of examples of costs that would not be eligible expenditures of payments from the
Fund.

1. Expenses for the State share of Medicaid.?
2. Damages covered by insurance.

3. Payroll or benefits expenses for employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated to
mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

2 In addition, pursuant to section 5001(b) of the CARES Act, payments from the Fund may not be expended for an
elective abortion or on research in which a human embryo is destroyed, discarded, or knowingly subjected to risk of
injury or death. The prohibition on payment for abortions does not apply to an abortion if the pregnancy is the result
of an act of rape or incest; or in the case where a woman suffers from a physical disorder, physical injury, or
physical illness, including a life-endangering physical condition caused by or arising from the pregnancy itself, that
would, as certified by a physician, place the woman in danger of death unless an abortion is performed.
Furthermore, no government which receives payments from the Fund may discriminate against a health care entity
on the basis that the entity does not provide, pay for, provide coverage of, or refer for abortions.

3 See 42 C.F.R. § 433.51 and 45 CF.R. § 75.306.



el

Expenses that have been or will be reimbursed under any federal program, such as the
reimbursement by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act of contributions by States
to State unemployment funds.

Reimbursement to donors for donated items or services.
Workforce bonuses other than hazard pay or overtime.
Severance pay.

Legal settlements.



A2

Coronavirus Relief Fund
Frequently Asked Questions
Updated as of May 4, 2020

The following answers to frequently asked questions supplement Treasury’s Coronavirus Relief Fund
(“Fund”) Guidance for State, Territorial, Local, and Tribal Governments, dated April 22, 2020,
(“Guidance”).! Amounts paid from the Fund are subject to the restrictions outlined in the Guidance and
set forth in section 601(d) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”).

Eligible Expenditures

Are governments required to submit proposed expenditures to Treasury for approval?

No. Governments are responsible for making determinations as to what expenditures are necessary due to
the public health emergency with respect to COVID-19 and do not need to submit any proposed
expenditures to Treasury.

The Guidance says that funding can be used to meet payroll expenses for public safety, public health,
health care, human services, and similar employees whose services are substantially dedicated to
mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency. How does a government
determine whether payroll expenses for a given employee satisfy the “substantially dedicated”
condition?

The Fund is designed to provide ready funding to address unforeseen financial needs and risks created by
the COVID-19 public health emergency. For this reason, and as a matter of administrative convenience
in light of the emergency nature of this program, a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government may
presume that payroll costs for public health and public safety employees are payments for services
substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency, unless the
chief executive (or equivalent) of the relevant government determines that specific circumstances indicate
otherwise.

The Guidance says that a cost was not accounted for in the most recently approved budget if the cost is
for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, allotment, or
allocation. What would qualify as a “substantially different use” for purposes of the Fund eligibility?

Costs incurred for a “substantially different use” include, but are not necessarily limited to, costs of
personnel and services that were budgeted for in the most recently approved budget but which, due
entirely to the COVID-19 public health emergency, have been diverted to substantially different
functions. This would include, for example, the costs of redeploying corrections facility staff to enable
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions through work such as enhanced sanitation or
enforcing social distancing measures; the costs of redeploying police to support management and
enforcement of stay-at-home orders; or the costs of diverting educational support staff or faculty to
develop online learning capabilities, such as through providing information technology support that is not
part of the staff or faculty’s ordinary responsibilities.

Note that a public function does not become a “substantially different use” merely because it is provided
from a different location or through a different manner. For example, although developing online

! The Guidance is available at https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/1 36/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-
State-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pdf.




instruction capabilities may be a substantially different use of funds, online instruction itself is not a
substantially different use of public funds than classroom instruction.

May a State receiving a payment transfer funds to a local government?

Yes, provided that the transfer qualifies as a necessary expenditure incurred due to the public health
emergency and meets the other criteria of section 601(d) of the Social Security Act. Such funds would be
subject to recoupment by the Treasury Department if they have not been used in a manner consistent with
section 601(d) of the Social Security Act.

May a unit of local government receiving a Fund payment transfer funds to another unit of
government?

Yes. For example, a county may transfer funds to a city, town, or school district within the county and a
county or city may transfer funds to its State, provided that the transfer qualifies as a necessary
expenditure incurred due to the public health emergency and meets the other criteria of section 601(d) of
the Social Security Act outlined in the Guidance. For example, a transfer from a county to a constituent
city would not be permissible if the funds were intended to be used simply to fill shortfalls in government
revenue to cover expenditures that would not otherwise qualify as an eligible expenditure.

Is a Fund payment recipient required to transfer funds to a smaller, constituent unit of government
within its borders?

No. For example, a county recipient is not required to transfer funds to smaller cities within the county’s
borders.

Are recipients required to use other federal funds or seek reimbursement under other federal programs
before using Fund payments to satisfy eligible expenses?

No. Recipients may use Fund payments for any expenses eligible under section 601(d) of the Social
Security Act outlined in the Guidance. Fund payments are not required to be used as the source of
funding of last resort. However, as noted below, recipients may not use payments from the Fund to cover
expenditures for which they will receive reimbursement.

Are there prohibitions on combining a transaction supported with Fund payments with other CARES
Act funding or COVID-19 relief Federal funding?

Recipients will need to consider the applicable restrictions and limitations of such other sources of
funding. In addition, expenses that have been or will be reimbursed under any federal program, such as
the reimbursement by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act of contributions by States to
State unemployment funds, are not eligible uses of Fund payments.

Are States permitted to use Fund payments to support state unemployment insurance funds generally?

To the extent that the costs incurred by a state unemployment insurance fund are incurred due to the
COVID-19 public health emergency, a State may use Fund payments to make payments to its respective
state unemployment insurance fund, separate and apart from such State’s obligation to the unemployment
insurance fund as an employer. This will permit States to use Fund payments to prevent expenses related
to the public health emergency from causing their state unemployment insurance funds to become
insolvent.



Are recipients permitted to use Fund payments to pay for unemployment insurance costs incurred by
the recipient as an employer?

Yes, Fund payments may be used for unemployment insurance costs incurred by the recipient as an
employer (for example, as a reimbursing employer) related to the COVID-19 public health emergency if
such costs will not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or otherwise.

The Guidance states that the Fund may support a “broad range of uses” including payroll expenses for
several classes of employees whose services are “substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to
the COVID-19 public health emergency.” What are some examples of types of covered employees?

The Guidance provides examples of broad classes of employees whose payroll expenses would be eligible
expenses under the Fund. These classes of employees include public safety, public health, health care,
human services, and similar employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or
responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency. Payroll and benefit costs associated with public
employees who could have been furloughed or otherwise laid off but who were instead repurposed to
perform previously unbudgeted functions substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the
COVID-19 public health emergency are also covered. Other eligible expenditures include payroll and
benefit costs of educational support staff or faculty responsible for developing online learning capabilities
necessary to continue educational instruction in response to COVID-19-related school closures. Please
see the Guidance for a discussion of what is meant by an expense that was not accounted for in the budget
most recently approved as of March 27, 2020.

In some cases, first responders and critical health care workers that contract COVID-19 are eligible
Jor workers’ compensation coverage. Is the cost of this expanded workers compensation coverage
eligible?

Increased workers compensation cost to the government due to the COVID-19 public health emergency
incurred during the period beginning March 1, 2020, and ending December 30, 2020, is an eligible
expense.

If a recipient would have decommissioned equipment or not renewed a lease on particular office space
or equipment but decides to continue to use the equipment or to renew the lease in order to respond to
the public health emergency, are the costs associated with continuing to operate the equipment or the
ongoing lease payments eligible expenses?

Yes. To the extent the expenses were previously unbudgeted and are otherwise consistent with section
601(d) of the Social Security Act outlined in the Guidance, such expenses would be eligible.

May recipients provide stipends to employees for eligible expenses (for example, a stipend to employees
to improve telework capabilities) rather than require employees to incur the eligible cost and submit for
reimbursement? - :

Expenditures paid for with payments from the Fund must be limited to those that are necessary due to the
public health emergency. As such, unless the government were to determine that providing assistance in
the form of a stipend is an administrative necessity, the government should provide such assistance on a
reimbursement basis to ensure as much as possible that funds are used to cover only eligible expenses.



May Fund payments be used for COVID-19 public health emergency recovery planning?

Yes. Expenses associated with conducting a recovery planning project or operating a recovery
coordination office would be eligible, if the expenses otherwise meet the criteria set forth in section
601(d) of the Social Security Act outlined in the Guidance.

Are expenses associated with contact tracing eligible?
Yes, expenses associated with contract tracing are eligible.
To what extent may a government use Fund payments to support the operations of private hospitals?

Governments may use Fund payments to support public or private hospitals to the extent that the costs are
necessary expenditires incurred due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, but the form such
assistance would take may differ. In particular, financial assistance to private hospitals could take the
form of a grant or a short-term loan.

May payments from the Fund be used to assist individuals with enrolling in a government benefit
program for those who have been laid off due to COVID-19 and thereby lost health insurance?

Yes. To the extent that the relevant government official determines that these expenses are necessary and
they meet the other requirements set forth in section 601(d) of the Social Security Act outlined in the
Guidance, these expenses are eligible.

May recipients use Fund payments to facilitate livestock depopulation incurred by producers due to
supply chain disruptions?

Yes, to the extent thesé efforts are deemed necessary for public health reasons or as a form of economic
support as a result of the COVID-19 health emergency.

Would providing a consumer grant program to prevent eviction and assist in preventing homelessness
be considered an eligible expense?

Yes, assuming that the recipient considers the grants to be a necessary expense incurred due to the
COVID-19 public health emergency and the grants meet the other requirements for the use of Fund
payments under section 601(d) of the Social Security Act outlined in the Guidance. As a general matter,
providing assistance to recipients to enable them to meet property tax requirements would not be an
eligible use of funds, but exceptions may be made in the case of assistance designed to prevent
foreclosures.

May recipients create a “payroll support program” for public employees?

Use of payments from the Fund to cover payroll or benefits expenses of public employees are limited to
those employees whose work duties are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the
COVID-19 public health emergency.

May recipients use Fund payments to cover employment and training programs for employees that
have been furloughed due to the public health emergency?

Yes, this would bc: an eligible expense if the government determined that the costs of such employment
and training programs would be necessary due to the public health emergency.

4



May recipients use Fund payments to provide emergency financial assistance to individuals and
Jamilies directly impacted by a loss of income due to the COVID-19 public health emergency?

Yes, if a government determines such assistance to be a necessary expenditure. Such assistance could
include, for example, a program to assist individuals with payment of overdue rent or mortgage payments
to avoid eviction or foreclosure or unforeseen financial costs for funerals and other emergency individual
needs. Such assistance should be structured in a manner to ensure as much as possible, within the realm
of what is administratively feasible, that such assistance is necessary.,

The Guidance provides that eligible expenditures may include expenditures related to the provision of
grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of business interruption caused by required closures.
What is meant by a “small business,” and is the Guidance intended to refer only to expenditures to
cover administrative expenses of such a grant program?

Governments have discretion to determine what payments are necessary. A program that is aimed at
assisting small businesses with the costs of business interruption caused by required closures should be
tailored to assist those businesses in need of such assistance. The amount of a grant to a small business to
reimburse the costs of business interruption caused by required closures would also be an eligible
expenditure under section 601(d) of the Social Security Act, as outlined in the Guidance.

The Guidance provides that expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection
with the public health emergency, such as expenditures related to the provision of grants to small
businesses to reimburse the costs of business interruption caused by required closures, would
constitute eligible expenditures of Fund payments. Would such expenditures be eligible in the absence
of a stay-at-home order?

Fund payments may be used for economic support in the absence of a stay-at-home order if such
expenditures are determined by the government to be necessary. This may include, for example, a grant
program to benefit small businesses that close voluntarily to promote social distancing measures or that
are affected by decreased customer demand as a result of the COVID-19 public health emergency.

May Fund payments be used to assist impacted property owners with the payment of their property
taxes?

Fund payments may not be used for government revenue replacement, including the provision of
assistance to meet tax obligations.

May Fund payments be used to replace foregone utility fees? If not, can Fund payments be used as a
direct subsidy payment to all utility account holders?

Fund payments may not be used for government revenue replacement, including the replacement of
unpaid utility fees. Fund payments may be used for subsidy payments to electricity account holders to the
extent that the subsidy payments are deemed by the recipient to be necessary expenditures incurred due to
the COVID-19 public health emergency and meet the other criteria of section 601(d) of the Social
Security Act outlined in the Guidance. For example, if determined to be a necessary expenditure, a
government could provide grants to individuals facing economic hardship to allow them to pay their
utility fees and thereby continue to receive essential services.

Could Fund payments be used for capital improvement projects that broadly provide potential
economic development in a community?



In general, no. If capital improvement projects are not necessary expenditures incurred due to the
COVID-19 public health emergency, then Fund payments may not be used for such projects.

However, Fund payments may be used for the expenses of, for example, establishing temporary public
medical facilities and other measures to increase COVID-19 treatment capacity or improve mitigation
measures, including related construction costs.

The Guidance includes workforce bonuses as an example of ineligible expenses but provides that
hazard pay would be eligible if otherwise determined to be a necessary expense. Is there a specific
definition of “hazard pay”?

Hazard pay means additional pay for performing hazardous duty or work involving physical hardship, in
each case that is related to COVID-19.

The Guidance provides that ineligible expenditures include “[p]ayroll or benefits expenses for
employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the
COVID-19 public health emergency.” Is this intended to relate only to public employees?

Yes. This particular nonexclusive example of an ineligible expenditure relates to public employees. A
recipient would not be permitted to pay for payroll or benefit expenses of private employees and any
financial assistance (such as grants or short-term loans) to private employers are not subject to the
restriction that the private employers’ employees must be substantially dedicated to mitigating or
responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

May counties pre-pay with CARES Act funds for expenses such as a one or two-year facility lease,
such as to house staff hired in response to COVID-19?

A government should not make prepayments on contracts using payments from the Fund to the extent that
doing so would not be consistent with its ordinary course policies and procedures.

Questions Related to Administration of Fund Payments
Do governments have to return unspent funds to Treasury?

Yes. Section 601(f)(2) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001(a) of the CARES Act,
provides for recoupment by the Department of the Treasury of amounts received from the Fund that have
not been used in a manner consistent with section 601(d) of the Social Security Act. If a government has
not used funds it has received to cover costs that were incurred by December 30, 2020, as required by the
statute, those funds must be returned to the Department of the Treasury.

What records must be kept by governments receiving paymé_n,t?__
A government should keep records sufficient to demonstrate that the amount of Fund payments to the
government has been used in accordance with section 601(d) of the Social Security Act

May recipients deposit Fund payments into interest bearing accounts?

Yes, provided that if recipients separately invest amounts received from the Fund, they must use the
interest earned or other proceeds of these investments only to cover expenditures incurred in accordance
with section 601(d) of the Social Security Act and the Guidance on eligible expenses. If a government
deposits Fund paymentq in a government’s general account, it may use those funds to meet immediate
cash management needs provided that the full amount of the payment is used to cover necessary

6



expenditures. Fund payments are not subject to the Cash Management Improvement Act of 1990, as
amended. ’

May governments retain assets purchased with payments from the Fund?

Yes, if the purchase of the asset was consistent with the limitations on the eligible use of funds provided
by section 601(d) of the Social Security Act.

What rules apply to the proceeds of disposition or sale of assets acquired using payments from the
Fund? . : :

If such assets are disposed of prior to December 30, 2020, the proceeds would be subject to the
restrictions on the eligible use of payments from the Fund provided by section 601(d) of the Social
Security Act.



GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT B
Methods and Conditions of Payment
In consideration of the satisfactory demonstration of allowable costs as provided in EXHIBIT A,

the State agrees to pay the Grantee, in total, a sum not to exceed
$ (the Grant Amount)

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Grantee only after written
documentation supporting allowable costs is submitted to GOFERR. Adequate written
documentation shall include but not be limited to invoices for purchased goods or services;
records of additional costs such as payroll records, or other similar documentation evidencing
allowable costs incurred. A brief explanation of the relationship of the cost to COVID-19 shall
accompany all payment requests. Failure to submit adequate documentation may delay or
preclude the disbursement. EXHIBITS I and J must be received completed before any
disbursement can be made.

Disbursement of the Grant Amount shall be made in accordance with the procedures established
by the State. Grantee shall submit a payment request on the form provided by GOFERR by e-
mail with its executed Grant Agreement no later than June 1, 2020 for all allowable costs
incurred from March 1, 2020 to April 30, 2020. Thereafter, GOFERR will accept reimbursement
requests in July, and September, as follows:

By July 15, for expenses incurred from May 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020.

By September 15, for expenses incurred from July 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020.

GOFERR will make every effort to issue all checks within 30 days after receipt of the request.

Any amount allocated that exceeds the expenses submitted for reimbursement by a local
government from March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020, will, after August 31, 2020, lapse back to
the GOFERR Coronavirus Relief Fund to be available to the State for other disbursement.

All obligations of the State, ‘including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Initials
Date
Page 1 of |



GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT C
Special Provisions

. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), are considered legally binding and enforceable
documents under this contract. GOFERR reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its
disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs or withholding of funds.

. To the extent required to comply with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, Grantee
shall complete an audit at the end of the Grantee’s fiscal year ending after August 30, 2020.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a
response to the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management
letters written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to
GOFERR within one month of the time of receipt by the Grantee accompanied by an action
plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E ~ Cast Principies.

. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Grantee for
3 (three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report as stated in 2 CFR
200.333 — Retention Requirements for Records.

. The following paragraphs shall be addéd to the general provisions:

“23. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between
the parties that no portion of the “Grant” funds may be used for the purpose of
obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if
authorized under that law.”

“24. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed:
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding
Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance;
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance
Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.”

“25.. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair using funds under this grant shall include a provision for
compliance with Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented in
Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). ‘This Act provides that each
Grantee, subcontractor or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means,

. : , Initials
Date :
Page 1 of 2



“26.

“27.

any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give
up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The Grantee should
report all suspected violations to GOFERR.” :

PROCUREMENT. Grantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D —
Post Federal Award Requirements — Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on
financial procurement ( 2 CFR 200 Subpart F — Audit Requirements) and property
management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D— Post Federal Award Requirements — Property
Standards)” . o : ) :

CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. By September: 15, 2020 Grantee shall submit a report
containing an estimate of projected allowable costs through December 30, 2020. The
Grantee shall also-include in such report allowable costs for which they have not
received reimbursement in this allocation to date, as well as losses or revenue, expenses
and costs related to COVID-19 that were not allowable.”

Initials
Date
Page 2 of 2



GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT D
Drug-Free Workplace

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et
seq.), and further agrees to have the Grantee’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations
were amended and published as Part IT of the May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and
require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-Grantees), prior to award, that they
will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by
inference, sub-grantees and sub-Grantees) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department
in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed
when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment.
Grantees using this form should send it to:

Executive Director, Governor’s Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery,

- 1 Eagle Square, Concord, NH 03301

(A)  The Grantee certifies that it will or will céﬁiinue to prbvide a drug-free workplace by:

(a)  Publishing é statement notifying empldyéeé that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b)  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1)  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2)  The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) - Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4)  The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

(c)  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) ’ Notifying the employeé in the statement required by paragfaph (a) that, as a condition of
‘employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1 Ablde by the terms of the statement and
(2)  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(¢)  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Initials Date




has desighate& a centeal point for the reéeipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numbe.r(s) of each affected grant;

® Takmg one of the followmg ac uons w1thm 30 calcndar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph @Q), with respect to any employec who is so convicted—

(1)  Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2)  Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

" rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement or other appropriate agency;

(8) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b) (©), (d), (©, and ®.

(B)  The Grantee may insert in the space prowded below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the spec1ﬁc grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

T K
Ry XN )

Check [] if there are ;wbrkplaéés on file that are not identified here.

Grantee Name . ) : ’ Period Covered by this Certification

Name and Title of Authorized Grantee Representative

Grantee Representative Signature Date

Initials Date




GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT E
Lobbying
The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C.
1352, and further agrees to have the Grantee’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the
General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION RF(. ARDING LOBBYING

Programs (indicate appllcable program covered): Coronav1rus Relief Fund

Contract Period:  * *'March'l; 2020 August 30, 2020

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(I)  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatlve agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
Grantee).

(2)  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congtess, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
‘Grantee), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3)  The undersigned shall réduire that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31,-U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure. . :

Grantee Representative Signature Grantee’s Representative Title

Grantee Name -~ . . ‘ _— "~ Date

Initials Date




GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT F
' " Debarment

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the Gercral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Grantee’s representative, as
identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions.execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

P Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submlttrng thrs Grant Agreement the Grantee is provrdmg the certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the Grantee shall submit an explanation of why it
cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the
GOFERR determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the Grantee to furnish a
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
GOFERR determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the Grantee knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government,
GOFERR may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The Grantee shall provide immediate written notice to GOFERR to whom this Grant is submitted if at any
time the Grantee learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by
‘reason of changed circumstances. _

(5) The terms “covered transactron,” “debarred ” “suspended ” “mehgrble ? “lower tier covered transaction,”

“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The Grantee agrees by-submitting this Grant that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it
shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized
by GOFERR.

(7) The Grantee further agrees by submitting thlS Grant that it wrll include the clause titled “Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered -
Transactions,” provrdcd by GOFERR, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A Grantee in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of Grantee in a lower tier covered
transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A Grantee may decide the method and
frequency by which it determmes the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required
to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establlshmenl ofa system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
Grantee-is-not required to exceed that which.is-normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business.dealings. . . .

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these mstructrons if a Grantee in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal govemmcnt GOFERR may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Initials Date




(1)

@

A AR

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY ’\/IATTERS PRIMARY COVERE’D TRAN SAC-'I'ION S, cont’d

(.ertiﬁcanon Regara'mg Debarment, Suspension, and Other -
Responsibility Matters - Primary T overed Transactions

The Grantee certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(a)

(b) :

@

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

have not:within-a three-year périod i)receding this Grant been convicted of or hada civil

_ -, judgment rendered against:them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
- with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
-+ or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
- commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
o .makmg false statements or receiving stolen property:

©

are not presently mdlcted for otherwise crlmmally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and. S

have not, within a three-ygar period preceding this Grant, had one or mere public transactions

: (Federal State or lncal) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify.to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospgctive participant shall attach. -gn.explanaticn to this Grant.

Grantee Representative Signature - - ¢ . Grantee’s Representative Title

Grantee Name - Lt . o Date

Initials Date -




GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Grantee’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: '

By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Grantee agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Grantee Representative Signature E Grantee’s Representative Title

Grantee Name ' Date

Initials Date




" GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
.. -Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994,
requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library
services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or
through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up
to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act.

The Grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any subawards
which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Grantee Representative Signature Grantee’s Representative Title

Grantee Name Date

Initials Date




- GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT 1

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE | NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY
ASSISTED PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Discloskre Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of informatior is estimated to average 15 minutes per
response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send
comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including
suggestions for reducing this burden, to Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans,
and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-
0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400),
Washington, DC 20503.

(hereinafter called the "Grantee") HEREBY AGREES to
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-
135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284). In accordance with the above laws
and regulations issued pursuant thereto, .the Grantee agrees to assure that no person in the United States
shall, on the ground of race, color, national on%m sex, age, or dmamhty, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to dlscrlmmatlon under any
program or activity in ‘which the Grante}e recelvec F .,derai ass:stam.e

Applicability and Period of Obligation

In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment eqmpmer\t property, or structure
provided, leased, or- improved witt Federal assjstance extended to.the Grantee by GOFERR with
federal CARES Act funds, this assurance obligates the Grantee for the period during which Federal
assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or
structure, this assurance obhgates the transferee for the period during which Federal assistance is
extended. If any personal property is so provnded, this assurance obligates the Grantee for the period
during which it retains ownership or posaessmn of the property. -

Employment Practlc&s : : -

Where a primary objective of the F ederal assistance is to provide employment or where the Grantee's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal
assistance extended by GOFERR, the Grantee agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color,
national origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices.-Such employment practices may
include, but are not. hmlted to, recruitment, advertising, hlrmg. layoff or termination, promotion,
demotion, transfer, rates of pay, fraining and participation in upward mopbility programs; or other forms
of compensatlon and use of facilities. . . . .. . C , .

Subreclplent Assurance Yo
The Grantee shall reqmre any mdwldual orgamzanon of 0J1er enuty w1th whom it subcontracts,
subgrants or subleases for the ‘purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or
structure to comply with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be
requlred to sign a wntten assurance form; however; the obli gation of both recipient and subrecipient to
ensure comphancc is not reheved by thc col lectlon or submnssnon of wntten assurance forms.

Exhibit I
: Page 1 of 2
Initials _ Date

[




Datﬁ Collee'tio’n‘erid 'Aeeess to R‘ecoi'di

The Grantee egrees ‘to comprle and mamtam .nformatro'\ pertammg fo programs or actmtles developed
as a Tesult of the Grantee's recerpt of Fédéral assistance irom GOFERR. Siich information shall include,
but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of
prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex,
age and disability; (3) data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual
public contact emplcyees serving beneficiaries of tiae program where necessary to permit effective
participation by beneficiaries unable 10 speak or understand English; (4) the location of existing or
proposed facilities connected with the program and related information adequate for determining
whether the location has or will-have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the
basis of prohibited discrimination;(5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national
origin, sex, age and disability inany. planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6).any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to
the obhgatlon to-assure. comphance by recrprentq wrth laws crted in.the ﬁrst paragraph of this assurance.

The Grantee agrees: to subrmt requested data to GOFERR the U S Department of Treasury or OMB
regarding programs and activities developed by the Grantee from the use of CARES Act funds
extended by GOFERR upon request. Facilities of the Grantee (including the physical plants,
buildings, or other siructures) and all records, books, accounts, and other sources of information
pertinent to the Grantee's compliance with the civil rights laws shall be made available for inspection
during normal business hours, on request of an officer or employee of GOFERR, the U.S. Department
of Treasury or OMB specrﬁcally authouzed to make such mspect1ons

This assurance ,rs grvep in eons_rderatron;of and.for the purpose of obtaming any and all Federal grants,
loans, contracts (excluding procurement contragts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance
extended after the date hereof, to the Grantec by GOFERR including installment payments on account
after such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Grantee
recognizes and agrees that such.F ederal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations
and agreements made in. this assurance; and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial
enforcement of thns assurance. This assurance is binding on the Grantee, the successors, transferees,
and assignees, as well as the pexson(s) whose-si gnatures appear below and who are authorized to sign
this assurance on behalt of the Grantee. .

Grantee Certiﬁcation -
The (Jrantee certlﬁes that it has complied, or that wnthln 90 dayo of the date of the grant, it will comply

with all applicable requiremenss of 10 C. F R. § 1040 5(a copy will be furnished to the Grantee upon
written request to GOFERR), - : S .

~ Grantee Representative Signature - . . .. Grantee’s Representative Title

e

Grantee Name . - ... ... .. .. .o o ~ Date
Exhibit 1

Page 2.0t'2
Initials Date




AAAAAAA
B 4

' GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION RL(:ARDIN(; THE FEDERAL FUNDING

AQ(“OUNTABIL 1Y AND TPA_N_SPARQ\LCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANC

The Federal Fundmg Accountability -and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires grantees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,
2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of
$25,000 or more. If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result

. inatotal award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements,
as of the date of the award

' In accordance w1th 2 CFR .Pat‘c 170 (Reportmg Subaward and Executtve Compensatton o
Information), GOFERR: must report the following information for any grant award subject to the

FFATA reporting requirements:.

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the tundmg action
7) Locationofthe eniity. ... -~ <=~ v s
8) Principle place of p»rf'ormance ) '
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #). -
10T otal compensatnon and names. of the top flve execumn.s d‘
"“'a’” More than 80% of annual gross feventés are from the Federal govemment,
-, and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. . Co'mpénsaﬁdrfinfbnnatidﬁ is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Grantees must subml, FFATA requrrc,d data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in  which the
award or award amendmcnt is mad; }

The Grantee identiﬁed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public. Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive -
Compensatzon Informatzon) and further agrees to have one of the Grantee’s representative(s),
as identified in Sections 1.11 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Grantee agrees to prov1de needed information as outlined above to GOFERR
and to comply wu;h all applicable pmvrslons of the Federal Financial Accountability and
TransparencyAct et e ;

- 2

(Grantee Representative Signature) _ (Grantee Representative Title)

o LR I ERET SR

(GratéeName ) """~ "0 ' (Date) T

1 PR , R Sl Initials . Date



' GOFERR GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBIT J cont.
CERTIFICATION

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the .responses
to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entityis:
2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive.(1)-80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, lpans; grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in.annyal gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants; and/qr cooperative agreements? «

NO ... YES
‘ 5 : o 'i:i’thé answer £o #2 abové is NO, stop |
here

If the answer to. #2 above is YES, please answer the
o followmg

3. Does the public have access to 1nf01mat10n about the compensatlon of the executives in your

business or organization through periodié reporty fileth under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or sectron 6104 of the Internal

Revenuc. Code of 19867 - ~ 1. - i, b

- NO - YES

lf the answer fo #3 above is YLS stop
: : " here : "

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the :
T followmg :

4. The names and compensauon of the five most hlghly compensated officers in your
business or organization are as follows: :

Name: e e Lt o Amount:
Name: Amount:
L o S I LD S PP R
Name: S e Amount: _____
Name; . . . et ot oo+ Amount:
Name: .. . .o S0 Amount:

Initials Date




(GOVERNOR'S OFFICE FOR EMERGENCY RELIEF AND RECOVERY (GOFERR)
(CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND

REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM - MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES

counties@goferr.nh.gov, as applicable.

Grantee'Name: Contact Name:
Date of Request: Contact Title: R
- Request Number: Contact Telephone: | :
Account Number: Contact Emaik:
Grant Amount: : -
Previous Payments: -
Remaining Balance: _ : - : :
. If Applicable : .
: . ; 25% Portion of FEMA" ‘ Amount of
7 jitem The e W & "l- °~' "~ lationship of Total Amount of Costs g:sst‘spaoérit'i:;::::l:s:v Stateor l_.ocal Match. R::n;l::g:!:l‘e:‘:::sm Nan;e(s) of Other Reimbursement FOR GOFERR u§£
DatzCosts Incurred Costs to COVID-19 {Attach . : DTN * [nat Reimbursable from : I Requested from ONLY
Number i - L : . FEMA - B Other Sources Sources - *
C— documentatior supporting costs) , Federai Funds . . GOFERR
B . 3 {a) _oe(d) (c) = {b)/3 ﬁ (d} (e} = (a)-(b}-{c}-{d) -
1 : B
2 -
3 er
4 4
s 5 N g
6 ‘ " >
7 H po=
8 - L
9
10 "
11
12 -
13 T =
14
15 -
Total
1 do herebycertify that 3il Informaticn provided in or attached to this Req Form is complete, accurcte, and up-to-date as _
of the date specified below. 1 certify that | have not submitted requests for costs that are eligible for reimbursement from any other available’
federa! or public funding sources for COVID-19 relief. | further certify that there are no willful misrepresentations of information provided. | ~ -
Junderstand that it is my responsibility to immediately notify GOFERR in regard to any changes, corrections, or updates to the informaticn
Fprovndeu" Municipalities or Counties using the designated signing authority option must also attach evidence demonstrating the authority to
sign. : FOR GOFERR USE ONLY
Authorized Signature(s): Date: Amount Approved
Approver 1 Date
Approver 2 Date
SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST IN BOTH PDF (SIGNED) FORM AND EXCEL SPREADSHEET
FORM WITH DOCUMENTATION SUPPORTING ALLOWASBLE COSTS TO: municipalities ferr.nh. Approver 3 Date

Page 1 of 2

Y

Y x das



LORRARE 3
.50+ - .

Canod e

Tax Abateménts, ‘Vétergqs Credits. & Exemptions



List for Select Board meeting May 18, 2020

Yield Tax

Map/Lot/Unit Location Amount
66/1 89 Holland Way $ 161.66
13/3 Beech Hill Road $ 306.58
Abatement

Map/Lot/Unit Location Amount




Permits Andf'Apbrovals



Temporary Issue Date:
Outdoor Dining Application  tens:

Town of Exeter, New Hampshire 1
Office of the Town Manager B
10 Front Street, Exeter NH Sl
Telephone: 603-773-6122

i
i

Please send completed applications to Darren Winham, Economic Development Director
dwinham@exeternh.gov - 603-773-6122

Please complete the following application and submit it to the Economic Development Department. This is a
temporary outdoor dining license that will be good through June 30, 2020 or longer with approval from the Town.
The Town and business and must abide by the Governor’s order and the Town has the right to revoke any
temporary licenses at any time for non-compliance.

Address of proposed Outdoor Dining Area ("Area"): Founders Park and the Sidewalk on Main St

Assessor’s Map: Lot; Zoning District:

Applicant: Lynn Marquis

Address (Street/City/State/Zip): 9 Water St, Exeter, NH 03833

Phone number(s): 603-793-5116

Email: Imarquis@seadogbrewing.com

Property Owner: Steve Kaneb

Address (Street/City/State/Zip): 6 Kimball Lane, Lynnfield, MA 01940

Phone number(s):

Please check the following boxes as they are completed.

A dimensioned site plan is attached to this Application depicting the following: the existing conditions,
including a depiction of public infrastructure such as curb lines, light poles, bike racks, street trees, tree grates,
manhole covers, meters, licensed A-frame signs, adjacent on-street parking and loading zones, adjacent
accessible sidewalk curb cuts and the like, the proposed table/chair layout plan for outdoor dining
dimensioned routes of travel within the outdoor dining area and on the adjoining public sidewalk, as well as
detail sheets for the proposed enclosure system, tables, chairs, trash receptacles, and the like.

[] Include all existing lighting for the proposed dining area on the above dimensioned site plan. The amount
of lighting will help staff determine the hours of operation for safely conducting business outside.

[] Copy of license from New Hampshire Liquor Commission, if applicant intends to serve alcohol.



O1r you are using private property include an email/signed letter from the plfoperty owner giving you
permission to use their property. Please include all special requirements set forth by said property owner
including certificate of insurance naming them as an additionally insured. - -

L] Permit applicant (business) shall provide proof of general liability insurance in the amount of
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including the Town of Exeter as an additional
insured on a primary and noncontributory basis.. The general liability insurance policy shall not
exclude claims arising from disease or pandemic, or claims occurring during a state of emergency.

[]Permit applicant (business) shall defend and indemnify the Town of Exeter, its officials,
employees and volunteers against all demands, claims, suits and actions secking damages, penalties,
costs, interest, statutory relief and/or equitable relief on account of bodily injury, death, personal
injury, property damage and/or economic mJury arising out of or related to the permit or the
activities of the permit applicant. .

If you are using sidewalk space for patrons, you agree and understand that you will be solely
responsible for cleaning the sidewalk space (inciuding the removal of trash/dropped items from the
sidewalk) daily, and that you may be required to relccate or eliminate sidewalk dining if the
Department of Public Work requires access to the sidewalk space for any reason, including but not
limited to, cleaning, maintaining or repairing the sidewalk or adjacent street.

I/'We - (owner/s) of

(restaurant name) will abide by the most recent Governor’s Order set

forth by the State of NH regarding outdoor dining. I/We understand the failure to do so could end up with

the revocation of my temporary outdoor dining approval.

The Town Staff will not review incomplete applications. All quesﬁons must -be answered and all
applicable check boxes must be checked. Failure to do so shall result in an incomplete application which
will not be processed. The undersigned attests that the supplied information is accurate and complete and

requests that the Town Manager proceed with processing this application.

Applicant Signature Applicant Signature

Date Date



drawing founders park sea dog brewing.jpg

5/15/2020

vers Park Searing

i
Y

Sea Degq Brewon? O

i A et 'f \}’()‘Mr-‘dm{?3 ,PCL(L

F‘f""‘ T

@ R
ct(e

St
I3
A

M

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1 adVz3gqOIKjq1IF6M5IShSTgRABHNEH



Correspondgm;e




% New Hampshire
~ Employment
Security

For the week ending May 9th, 9,491 individuals filed
claims for unemployment insurance with the State of
New Hampshire's Department of Employment Security,
down 24 percent from a revised 12,475 during the week
ending May 2nd, 2020. Nationally, the number of initial
claims was down just eight percent compared to the
week ending May 2nd. Seven states, led by Connecticut
with 262,542, Florida (47,045), Washingtan (13,994}, and
Georgia (13,035) experienced an increase in new claims
during the week. Combined, between March 15th and May
2nd, 173,104 new unemployment claims were filed with the
New Hampshire's Department of Employment Security.
Adding the preliminary number from the week ending May
Sth brings the New Hampshire total reported to 182,925.

Town-by-town breakouts of the number of new claims filed
by New Hampshire residents who also work in the state
are available with a one-week lag (through May 2nd). The
state’s largest city, Manchester, had the most residents
filing for new unemployment claims during the week
ending May 2nd with 842, down 236 (22%) from the week
ending April 25th. Nashua had the next highest number of
new claims during the week with 509, 149 fewer (or 23%)
than during the previous week. The largest percentage
drop in new claims among towns with at least 1,000 claims
occurred in Conway {down 43 claims or 38% from the
prior week). Goffstown (down 37%) and Merrimack {down
35%) experienced the next largest declines in new claims.
Table 1 presents the 20 towns with the largest number of
new claims filed during the week, along with the change
and percentage change in new claims from the prior
week. A total of 68 small towns in New Hampshire (28% of
all towns) had slight increases in new claims totaling 265
during the week, for an average of four new claims each
and a median number of new claims of three.

The claims numbers presented in the claims by town
tables are based on where an individual lives, not
where they work, and do not include initial claims of
New Hampshire residents who work out-of-state (who
file claims in the state where the business they work is
located). For towns with a higher percentage of

New Hampshire workers commuting out to another
state, claim numbers may not reflect the actual number

- COVID-19
UNEMPLOYMENT UPDATE

For Immediate Release: May 14, 2020

NEW |CHANGE | . 7 i
rown | CLAMs | From | CRANGE | ¢t aims
APRIL 25 | PRIOR PRIOR MARCH
TOMAY 2| WEEK WEEK 15TO
MAY 2
Manchester 842 -236 -21.9% 14,891
Nashua 509 -149 -22.6% 8196
Concord 242 -47 -16.3% 4,592
Dover 220 -31 -12.4% 3,661
Salem 178 8 47% 2,316
Derry 176 -68 -279% 3,576
Rochester 174 -70 -287% 3,631
Hudson 146 3 21% 2797
Londonderry 138 -44 -24.2% 2,348
Keene 126 -8 -6.0% 2107
Bedford 125 3 2.5% 1615
Merrimack 123 -66 -34.9% 2,470
Portsmouth 19 -16 -11.9% 2,380
Hampton 114 -42 -26.9% 1,806
Laconia 105 -21 -16.7% 2741
Hooksett 94 -28 -23.0% 1,567
Exeter 93 -4 -41% 1,338
Milford 91 -13 -12.5% 1646
Goffstown 85 -50 -37.0% 1,790
Somersworth 83 -16 -16.2% 1,442




of individuals living in the town who have filed a new
unemployment claim. A town in Rockingham County, for
example, with a large number of residents commuting to
work in Massachusetts may have a larger number of new
claims than is presented in these tables because those
New Hampshire residents will have filed their claims in
Massachusetts. A complete listing of the cumulative initial
unemployment claims by town (alphabetically for towns
with at least 25 new claims) from March 15th through May
2nd, as well as the number of new claims as a percentage
of the town'’s labor force', is presented in Table 4 at

the end of this release. We call this a measure of a

town’s “Covid19 Affected Unemployment Rate.” It is not
equivalent to a town's traditional unemployment rate as it
only counts unemployment claims filed since March 15th
and does not include New Hampshire residents who have
filed an unemployment claim if they work in another state.

It is presented here to provide a metric of the relative
employment impacts of Covid-19 on the population of
each community.? For the week ending May 2nd,

New Hampshire's ‘Covid-19 Affected Unemployment Rate
was 171 percent. Adding New Hampshire residents who
filed a claim in another state as well as individuals who
were unemployed prior to the Covid-19 pandemic raises
the overall unemployment rate.

A visual representation of initial claims activity by town
and region is presented in Figure 1 which shows a map
of New Hampshire towns color coded, into quintiles,
according to the number of initial claims filed between
March 15th and May 2nd.

Figure 2 presents the total number of claims by county
in New Hampshire and Table 2 presents each county’s
Covid-19 affected unemployment rate through May 2nd.

FIGURE 1

Claims by Town

1-90

o 91-170

Bl 71-370

Bl 31-595

B Over595claims

icwn is used fci ih 5 onalysis
Hamcsrire will not cqual tre iotal numbe!

suluyer is lucuted.

v clans.

COVID-18 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH

hy-towesr oF counly coupls in this ref

e betause New Hamoshi-e rasldants working in anotrer
fenr Hompstiire and

T o whalen il five i New Yamip-
Wl o ltrfoigree rom a New Harrnspire orqgonizal on wil,

Release Date: May 14, 2020



COUNTY TOTAL CLAIMS BY NH RESIDENTS WORKING FEBRUARY 2020 COVID-19 AFFECTED
IN NH: MARCH 15 TO MAY 2 LABOR FORCE UNEMP. RATE
Belknap 7,621 31,039 24.6%
Carroll 6,285 23718 26.5%
Cheshire 6,190 41,500 14.9%
Coos 3,326 14,724 22.6%
Grafton 8,659 51,045 17.0%
Hillsborough 41,332 245,905 16.8%
Merrimack 15,344 84,821 181%
Rockingham 28,414 188,982 15.0%
Strafford 13,023 75,410 17.3%
Sullivan 3,213 23,061 13.9%
Totals 133,407 780,205 171%

FIGURE 2

Rockingham
] :

COVID-18 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH

Release Date: May 14, 2020



Note that the rates for Hillsborough, Strafford, and
especially Rockingham County are affected by a higher
percentage of residents who work in another state (and
thus are not counted in county and town numbers here
which do not include New Hampshire residents who file
a claim in another state). For these counties, Covid-19
affected unemployment rates are likely to be two to as
much as four percent higher than reported here.

Claims by Industry

Initial claims by New Hampshire residents working in New
Hampshire are reported at the six digit North American
Industrial Classification System (NAICS) level in Table 3.
Similar to claims reported by town, claims by industry
reported here include only New Hampshire residents
working in, and filing claims in, New Hampshire.

Industry claims by out-of-state residents working in

New Hampshire are not included in this table and thus
the total number of claims by industry in Table 3 will

INDUSTRY

undercount (by the number of out-of-state workers who
have filed a claim in New Hampshire) claims by industry.

Individuals employed at full-service restaurants filed the
most new claims for unemployment insurance between
March 15th and May 2nd (15,662). Another 3,865

New Hampshire residents working at limited service
restaurants in the state have filed claims. Combined,
22,002 New Hampshire residents working in food
services industries have filed unemployment claims in
New Hampshire since March 15th. Collectively, 19,851
New Hampshire residents working in retail industries
located in the state have filed unemployment claims,
with new car dealers (2,601), department stores (1,828),
and supermarkets and grocery stores (1,755), having the
largest volume of unemployment claims between March
15th and May 2nd. A total of 15,382 health care workers
have filed unemployment claims, led by general medical
and surgical hospitals with 5,223 claims filed since
March 15th.

# CLAIMS FILED

NAICS CODE*
Full-service restaurants 72251 15,662
General medical and surgical hospitals 622110 5,223
Limited-service restaurants 722513 3,865
Hotels and motels, except casino hotels 721110 3,766
Offices of dentists 621210 3,624
Child day care services 624410 2,833
Elementary and secondary schools 611110 2,605
Offices of physicians, except mental health 6211 2,602
New car dealers 44110 2,601
Temporary help services 561320 2,009
Beauty salons 812112 1,982
Department Stores 452210 1,828
Supermarkets and other grocery stores 445710 1755
Professional employer organizations 561330 1,700
School and employee bus transportation 485410 1,329
Snack and nenalcoholic beverage bars 722515 1,288
Skiing facilities 713920 962
Food service contractors 722310 940
Fitness and recreational sports centers 713940 930
Family clothing stores 448140 926
Colleges and universities 611310 905
Services for the elderly and disabled 624120 887

COVID-19 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH

Release Date: May 14, 2020



INDUSTRY NAICS CODE* # CLAIMS FILED
Civic and social organizations 813410 886
Wholesale trade agents and brokers 425120 849
Other individual and family services 624190 844
Janitorial services 561720 843
Nursing care facilities, skilled nursing 623110 828
Gasket, packing, and sealing device mfg. 339991 781
General automotive repair 811 748
Electricity and signal testing instruments 334515 726
Office administrative services 561110 716
Warehouse Clubs and Supercenters 4523N 686
Used merchandise stores 453310 665
Furniture stores 442110 654
Sporting goods stores 451110 652
Offices of optometrists 621320 636
Landscaping services 561730 623
Offices of specialty therapists 621340 606
Executive and legislative offices, combined 921140 601
Managing offices 551114 593
Home health care services 621610 586
Automotive parts and accessories stores 441310 578
Gasaline stations with convenience stores 447110 568
Pet care, except veterinary, services 812910 565
Residential plumbing and HVAC contractors 238221 563
Golf courses and country clubs 713910 559
Gift, novelty, and souvenir stores 453220 503
Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses 454110 498
All other home furnishings stores 442299 482
Electronics stores 443142 463

*NAICS - North American Industrial Classification System

COVID-19 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH 5

Release Date: May 14, 2020



----- TABLE’4FINITIAI. UNEMPLOYMENT
_ CLAIMSBYTOWN
cLams | FeB.2020 | SOV cLAIMS | FEB.2020 | SOV

TOWN MARCH 15 LABOR UNEMP. TOWN MARCH 15 LABOR UNEMP.

- MAY 2 FORCE* RATE ** - MAY 2 FORCE * RATE **
Acworth 55 459 12.0% Charlestown 351 2,843 12.3%
Albany 112 362 30.9% Chatham 39 160 24.4%
Alexandria 227 912 24.9% Chester 474 345 15.1%
Allenstown 488 2,493 19.6% Chesterfield 201 1,943 10.3%
Alstead 17 1,083 15.8% Chichester 281 1,588 17.7%
Alton 579 3,009 19.2% Claremont 1,043 6,385 16.3%
Amherst 793 6,419 12.4% Colebrook 249 1141 21.8%
Andover 202, 1,439 14.0% Columbia 40 318 12.6%
Antrim 241 1,427 16.9% Concord 4,592 23,063 19.9%
Ashland 282 1,279 22.0% Conway 1,91 5463 35.0%
Atkinson 472 4,068 11.6% Cornish nz 988 1.8%
Auburn 557 3,634 15.3% Croydon 51 452 11.3%
Barnstead 535 2,656 201% Dalton 146 442 33.0%
Barrington 904 5,523 16.4% Danbury 156 736 21.2%
Bartlett 588 1,459 40.3% Danville 398 2,77 14.4%
Bath town 94 542 17.3% Deerfield 467 2,835 16.5%
Bedford 1615 12,555 12.9% Deering 146 1133 12.9%
Belmont 945 3,576 26.4% Derry 3,576 20,900 171%
Bennington 151 817 18.5% Dorchester 28 200 14.0%
Berlin 888 3,888 22.8% Dover 3,561 18,915 18.8%
Bethlehem 41 1,444 28.5% Dublin 89 891 10.0%
Boscawen 467 1,972 23.7% Dummer 25 142 17.6%
Bow 628 4,561 13.8% Dunbarton 270 1,795 15.0%
Bradford 184 986 18.7% Durham 519 9,395 55%
Brentwood 360 2,642 13.6% East Kingston 184 1401 131%
Bridgewater nz 761 15.4% Easton 29 143 20.3%
Bristol 475 1,842 25.8% Eaton 55 235 23.4%
Brookfield 93 293 31.7% Effingham 158 701 22.5%
Brookline 348 3,480 10.0% Enfield 367 3,166 1.6%
Campton 508 2110 241% Epping 783 4,282 18.3%
Canaan 353 2,042 17.3% Epsom 474 2,996 15.8%
Candia 410 2,598 15.8% Errol 48 164 29.3%
Canterbury 214 1,508 14.2% Exeter 1,338 8,834 151%
Carroll 108 391 27.6% Farmington 797 3725 21.4%
Center Harbor 130 670 19.4% Fitzwilliam 168 1,361 12.3%

COVID-18 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH

Release Date: May 14, 2020




cLAms | FEB. 2020 | SOVID°TY CLAIMS | FEB.2020 | SOVIDTD
TOWN MARCH 15 LABOR UNEMP. TOWN MARCH 15 LABOR UNEMP.

- MAY 2 FORCE * RATE ** - MAY 2 FORCE* RATE **
Francestown 125 1,002 12.5% Jaffrey 410 3103 13.2%
Franconia 136 655 20.8% Jefferson 21 639 18.9%
Franklin 1100 4,055 271% Keene 207 1,949 176%
Freedom 131 766 171% Kensington 125 1,313 9.5%
Fremont 467 2,870 16.3% Kingston 584 3777 15.5%
Gilford 924 3,645 25.3% Laconia 24 7775 275%
Gilmanton 467 1,746 26.7% Lancaster 302 1741 17.3%
Gilsum 76 457 16.6% Landaff 33 279 1.8%
Goffstown 1,790 11,023 16.2% Langdon 44 363 121%
Gorham 358 1,234 29.0% Lebanon 1010 7793 13.0%
Goshen 65 451 14.4% Lee 404 2,884 14.0%
Grafton 134 683 19.6% Lempster 76 629 121%
Grantham 195 1,664 1.7% Lincoin 322 770 M1.8%
Greenfield 162 1,066 15.2% Lisbon 164 862 19.0%
Greenland 374 2,467 15.2% Litchfield 799 4,887 16.3%
Greenville 157 1,206 13.0% Littleton 886 3,256 272%
Groton 103 382 27.0% Londonderry 2,348 16,261 14.4%
Hampstead 684 5151 13.3% Loudon 582 3,357 17.3%
Hampton Falls 169 1,501 11.3% Lyman 87 336 25.9%
Hampton 1,806 9,147 19.7% Lyme 74 850 8.7%
Hancock 131 944 13.9% Lyndeborough 169 1,056 16.0%
Hanover 175 5,093 3.4% Madbury 159 1,097 14.5%
Harrisville 87 609 14.3% Madison 361 1,437 251%
Haverhill 322 2,359 13.6% Manchester 14,891 66,815 22.3%
Hebron 49 413 1.9% Mariborough 21 1,221 17.3%
Henniker 412 2,910 14.2% Marlow town 69 369 18.7%
Hill 122 543 22.5% Mason town m 821 13.5%
Hillsborough 642 3,004 214% Meredith 767 3115 246%
Hinsdale 274 2,158 12.7% Merrimack 2,470 16,570 14.9%
Holderness 217 1,563 13.9% Middleton 170 1,051 16.2%
Hollis 494 4,346 11.4% Milan 126 626 201%
Hooksett 1,667 9,376 16.7% Milford 1,646 9,738 16.9%
Hopkinton 436 3,481 12.5% Milton 452 2,330 18.9%
Hudson 2,97 15,467 14.2% Monroe 61 401 15.2%
Jackson 149 366 40.7% Mont Vernon 201 1,582 12.7%

COVID-18 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH

Release Date: May 14, 2020




LE 4 - INITIAL UNEMPLO? "MENT - TABL INITIAL UNEMPLOYMEN'

CLAIMSBYTOWN L CLAIMS BY TOWN

CLAIMS | FEB.2020 :F?:\é'g;é% CLAIMS | FEB.2020 :F?:\égé%

TOWN MARCH 15 LABOR UNEMP. TOWN MARCH 15 LABOR UNEMP.
- MAY 2 FORCE* RATE ** - MAY 2 FORCE * RATE **

Moultonborough 436 2,219 19.6% Rindge 317 2,943 10.8%
Nashua 8,196 51,919 15.8% Rochester 3,631 18,190 20.0%
Nelson 48 440 10.9% Rollinsford | 296 1,456 20.3%
New Boston 596 3,976 15.0% Rumney 156 958 16.3%
New Castle 46 560 8.2% Rye 431 3,459 12.5%
New Durham 27 1,563 17.3% Salem 2,316 18,512 12.5%
New Hampton 261 1,321 19.8% Salisbury 120 827 14.5%
New Ipswich 304 3,023 101% Sanbornton 337 1,689 20.0%
New London 221 1,941 11.4% Sandown 588 4,279 13.7%
Newbury 187 1212 15.4% Sandwich 19 610 19.5%
Newfields 153 1,071 14.3% Seabrook 843 5180 16.3%
Newingten 68 518 131% Sharon 26 224 1.6%
Newmarket 1,079 5,818 18.5% Shelburne 41 177 23.2%
Newport 573 3,553 16.1% Somerswaorth 1,442 6,891 20.9%
Newton 296 3,283 9.0% South Hampton 54 531 10.2%
North Hampton 396 2,684 14.8% Springfield 88 779 11.3%
Northfield 659 2,554 25.8% Stark 38 194 19.6%
Northumberland 232 1,059 21.9% Stewartstown 66 370 17.8%
Northwood 522 2,672 19.5% Stoddard 101 724 14.0%
Nottingham 493 3,286 16.0% Strafford 17 2,328 17.9%
Orford 87 817 10.6% Stratford 71 255 278%
Ossipee 485 1757 27.6% Stratham 586 4,559 12.9%
Pelham 872 8,237 10.6% Sugar Hill 62 351 17.7%
Pembroke 871 4,612 18.9% Sullivan 58 360 16.1%
Peterborough 563 3,858 14.6% Sunapee 229 1,671 13.7%
Piermont 38 430 91% Surry 65 500 13.0%
Pittsburg 100 384 26.0% Sutton 131 1139 1.5%
Pittsfield 4n 2)22 19.4% Swanzey 688 4101 16.8%
Plainfield 142 1,446 9.8% Tamworth 385 1517 25.4%
Plaistow 541 4,320 12.5% Temple 15 786 14.6%
Plymouth 604 3,989 151% Thornton 416 1,790 23.2%
Partsmouth 2,380 14,074 16.9% Tilton 535 1,837 291%
Randolph 42 141 29.8% Troy 216 1174 18.4%
Raymond 1155 6,360 18.2% Tuftonboro 226 1157 19.5%
Richmond 71 596 1.9% Unity 82 865 9.5%

COVID-18 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH 8 Release Date: May 14, 2020



___C‘ AIMS BY TOWN

CcoviD-19

CovID-19

rown | mAncHs | LaBoR |AFFECTED| | rowy | anchs | Lasom | AFFECTED
- MAY 2 FORCE * RATE ** - MAY 2 FORCE * RATE **'

Wakefield 486 2,310 21.0% Wilmot 118 788 15.0%
Walpole 227 2,380 9.5% Wilton 406 2,190 18.5%
Warner 266 1,587 16.8% Winchester 384 2,058 18.7%
Warren 72 537 13.4% Windham 891 8,219 10.8%
Washington 102 513 19.9% Wolfeboro 539 2,827 191%
Waterville Valley 66 141 46.8% Woodstock 357 972 36.7%
Weare 954 6179 15.4% Totals 133,407 780,205 171%
Webster 185 1180 157% * February labor force counts are used as a
Wentworth 84 535 15.7% pre-COVID baseline
Westmoreland 133 941 141% ** Six towns with fewer than 25 claims are excluded
Whitefield 308 1,280 281% from the table, but are included in totals

The next release of the COVID-19 Unemployment Update will be on May 21st.

For further information contact:

Economic and Labor Market Information Bureau
(603) 228-4124

NEWS RELEASE

NHES is a proud member of America’s Workforce Network and NH Works. NHES is an equal opportunity employer and complies with the
Americans with Disabilities Act. Auxiliary Aids and Services are available on request of individuals with disabilities.

TDD/TTY Access: Relay 1-800-735-2964

Telephone (603) 224-3311

COVID-18 Unemployment Rates Impact on NH

Fax (603) 228-4010

Release Date: May 14, 2020




